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MAJOR EVENTS OF 2016
2016 EE KEEC

JANUARY
—R

On January 21, 2016, the Company successfully bid a quality residential land
parcel in Magiao Town, Minhang District, Shanghai at a total consideration of
RMB2.63 billion. The site area of the land parcel is 41,262 sg.m. and the GFA
is 90,776 sg.m. with an average land cost per GFA of RMB28,972/sg.m..

2016F1 218 » RAIAARE26 3B THE LERNTRSHBE—RELEE
Fitth - Hu3R(GHIETE R41,262F 70K + BERMEIEAR90,776F K - FI9EH
B A AR#E28,9727T Tk o

On January 29, 2016, through public auction, the Company successfully
acquired a parcel of quality commercial and residential land in Tiexingiao Street
Central District, Yuhuatai District, Nanjing, at the price of RMB710 million, with

an average land cost per GFA of RMB11,608/sg.m..

201641 A29R @ ARIAARKE7 1B BEtEAARY11,6087T, Fh
KBS RMREARBOBAET LENEERERM -

FEBRUARY
—_R

L -
0_ mMEERGARLE %

On February 22, 2016, the contest results of 2015/16 Mercury Awards
were announced. Yuzhou Properties stood out from the crowd with its
absolute brand strength. The 2015 interim report was awarded three honors,
including: Best of Annual Report Cover Design (Die-cut)-Gold Award, Annual
Report Cover Design (Special Treatment)-Silver Award, Overall Presentation
(Property Category)-Bronze Award.

201652 228 © 2015/16 Mercury Awards AR S2IE T tr 45 1808 - =MD
ERERUNREE NREAME - 2015FFHRESRIEE=IEKE 8
1E FRBEERBFRERIEN — 28 - FRBEBEIFRME —RE - A
TR - MEFEHER — R -

On February 23, 2016, the 2015 interim report of Yuzhou Properties was awarded Gold Award-Real Estate/
REIT and the honor of Top 50 Worldwide Annual Reports (Rank 39) at the 2014/15 LACP Vision Award with
its excellent design and extraordinary editorial strength.

20162 A23H - @MHE2015F  BidR & /REE L @ MRAT - KIEAKRIRE S - 182014/15 LACP Vision
Award KEF » LEEMEMRKLEMEESTEESAR —E 58 - RE2RERS0RBE1TFEI9R °

SN ERDBRAR
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MARCH
=R

On March 30, 2016, Yuzhou Properties announced
2015 Annual Results. Total revenue increased
by 32.40% to a record high of RMB10,375.50
million. Gross profit increased by 30.39% year-
on-year to RMB3,709.32 million, also hitting a
record high. Gross profit margin reached a high
level to 35.75%, which was a relatively high level
in the industry. The 2015 target for contract
sales was exceeded. Contract sales increased
by 16.80% year-on-year to a record high of
RMB14,018.01 million. Annual dividend was
HK18 cents per share, up 12.50% year-on-year
and the dividend payout ratio was approximately
35.54% of the core net profit for 2015.

20164E3 A30H * AM2015FE 2 FH4E - U A
#HN32.40% = AR#E103187,5508 ¢ © BIFES
= o EANRE EF130.39% F AR EEI7BI32E
TC - JEIEE S o EFIEEESS.75% BT
ERGKE o BETEK2015F A HHEERZ -
ZE LF16.80% © EAR140181,801& 7T
BIESE S - 2FRERBFRABES - 21F
EFF12.50% KB KK B2015F %0 FFER
35.54% °

Major Events of 2016

2016 FE KEE

On April 27, Yuzhou Properties won the
Fourth Place of Comprehensive Strength
of 2015 Hong Kong Stock Top 100 by
QQ.com and Finet.

2016F4 A27H  @MHERL Y B
PR EAL TR [2015F %100
B 2 [4RAEH103] B -

On April 28, 2016, the Group invested nearly RMBS billion and obtained three
major projects in one day, adding approximately 650,000 sg.m. in total to the
land bank. The Group, through public auction, successfully acquired three
premium land parcels in Yaohai District and Xinzhan District, Hefei, which
are all located in the bustling old city district of Hefei with well-established
ancillary facilities. Two of the parcels are located in Longgang commercial and
residential district of Yaohai District. The district mainly comprises commercial
housings and is planned to build modern business service areas and high-end
residential areas. Another parcel is located in the core district of Qilitang Sector,
Xinzhan. The district mainly comprises regional businesses with many schools
and a strong living atmosphere. The Group further consolidated the leading
edge of Hefei and continued to be optimistic about the development potential
of Hefei.

20165F4 H28H @ £EIREARKIS0EIT - —REE=KRIBAFE L HEHL
658 FK + ISR &SR Rarute Xt = e E Rt - 5
REENGIEEHE @ BB - Eh M ERESREMBEEER - &
BHARERTL  RIAZFRARBERGRNSEEER SRR RH
WEBERBZOR  ZBEUARBEREAT  BRRASZ - BFESERE - &£
BiE—FRERIEELED HEBUHALERED -

—p_
Annual Report 2016 ~ i

5



Major Events of 2016
2016 FE KRB

MAY
Fals

LT TR FCT ]

On May 26, 2016, at the “2016 Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies Assessment Results Press
Conference and Listed Real Estate Enterprises Summit Forum” hosted by China Real Estate Association
and China Real Estate Appraisal Center, Yuzhou Properties (01628.HK) ranked 36th in the list of “2016
Comprehensive Strength of Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies” and once again ranked 3rd in the list of
“2016 Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies with Operation Efficiency Top 5”.

20164F5 A 26 » M B A 2 p & R o B S5 2 B RT AR Y (20167 B SS 3t E BT A& RRIREAN R

BHeE FHEASERE| b BINHE01628.HK)EE (2016 BEME FHATIGAEH] $£36
% o WiBE: [2016FF BIEHE EM A RIS EEMER ] 3% °

JUNE
ANE
On June 3, 2016, the contest results of the Questar Award were announced. The brand image promo for

2016 of Yuzhou Properties stood out from the crowd with its excellent creativity, novel shooting themes and
skills and was awarded Brand Image Campaign-Bronze Award.

20166 HA3H ' Questar Award K ESEIHFT L A& RIBEE - BMBE2016FREFREEHREEBAA
B OERNERM REREN L - EREF R RS E [Brand Image Campaign) 58 7& 51 1% o

On June 16, 2016, Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future successfully issued domestic private corporate bonds in
an aggregate amount of RMB2.0 billion with a term of three years. The interest rate was 6.28% and was also
the minimum interest rate for domestic private corporate bonds issued by the Group.

2016F6 A16F - EFIRMBERINEITRERARK0ETHEANLERRIES - FHR3F @ AXREE
6.28% * TR T BB THRALE R RENRERNX -

BMNtERGERAF

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited



On June 20, 2016, the “2016 Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises in China Research Results
Press Conference and the 9th Summit for
Top 100 Property Service Entrepreneurs in
China” hosted by China Property Management
Association, China Index Research Institute
and China Real Estate Top 10 Research Group
was held in Beijing. Yuzhou Properties, which
participated in the contest for the second time,
was again ranked among the “Top 100 Property
Service Enterprises in China”.

201646 H20H  HHBMEEEHE - P&
EEEBT « R EEHAETOP1 0M A £ A
[2016R Bl Y AR B R BTN REME
BENERBEMERGARALERES | ERE
11 BDR2FTNZNDE - BREE [FEY
ERGaERbE] -

Major Events of 2016
2016 FE RS

JULY
tA

On July 11, 2016, through acquisition, the Company successfully acquired
a high-quality commercial and residential project in Zhijiang area in West
Lake District, Hangzhou, covering a site area of 145,000 sq.m., with GFA of
approximately 298,000 sg.m., average land cost per GFA of RMB13,700/
sg.m..

201657 118 - REIAKEES RIAAREAEITRNRB AN E R 2
IR —EBEREIEE - THETE145,000F 75K - EEEEZI298,000F /5
K- EEEAARB13,7007T,F K o

On July 18, 2016, the global authoritative financial magazine “Fortune” (Chinese
edition) released the list of Top 500 in China for 2016. Yuzhou Properties
(01628.HK) was included in the list with its strong overall strength and
remarkable performance.

20167 A18H » 2B (M=) (FXHR) #EMh T20165FEH
HEIS003 B 8 - BMME(01628. HK)BFEBRINESE N - BBMEEX
N

On July 19, 2016, Yuzhou
Properties was awarded the
“Premium Chinese Real Estate
Enterprise Award” for 2016.

201657 H19H - EMEL
BE2016FE [BEFREHE
BEREE] o

On July 29, 2016, “Securities Market Weekly”, one of the most authoritative
securities magazines in China and the only publication designated by China
Securities Regulatory Commission for the disclosure of listed company
information, released the Top 50 Listed Real Estate Companies for 2016.
Yuzhou Properties (01628.HK) ranked 16th with its super strong operational
capability, profitability, efficiency level and growth potential.

20164F7 A29F - PEISARREMNES ML —  PTEBESEERE LT
RAEME—TY — (EFTSET) - 20165 EHE E A FS50% -
BRIMHBEE(01628 HK)/BFEE M8 B LRE N ~ BAIRES - MEKF - KRE N
HEB 6L -
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Major Events of 2016
2016 FEABEL

AUGUST
AV=!

On August 26, 2016, through public bidding and
auction, the Company successfully acquired a
parcel of quality commercial and residential land
in Jimei District, Xiamen, at the price of RMB2.8
billion, with a site area of 42,656 sgq.m., a GFA of
85,300 sg.m. and average land cost per GFA of
RMB32,825/sg.m..

2016F8 H26H & A FIAARE28{EITTRINES
EfmEXREEEER - TivmiE42,656F
FK - EEEETESS,300F K - BEMBAAR
#32,8255T,F K o

On August 29, 2016, Yuzhou Properties
aggressively entered the list of “Top 500 Chinese
Private Enterprises for 2016”. The list was compiled
by All China Federation of Industry and
Commerce with the support of authoritative
official authorities such as the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The
major standard for its rankings is the size of
revenue of the enterprises. The operating revenue
for 2015 of all enterprises included in the list
exceeded RMB10 billion.

20168 A29H - ®iMtbERZEEE [20167
BEREMHES00% ] HE - ZBSEFTEREET
EEER  TES  EXRIEARSE HHERE
B HERMEZRERCERANREKR
N NBIRE2015F A EIRABBHET -

SN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

SEPTEMBER
N2

On September 20, 2016, S&P Global Ratings released a research report to
adjust the rating outlook of Yuzhou Properties from stable to positive and
confirmed the Company’s “B+” long-term credit rating.

2016%F9A20R @ REZHFI R AR BMATIRE - BRIMEENFRELZH
REFERIEM » WHERRA [B+] REGFEEHFIR -

On September 21, 2016, at the 2016 Chinese Real Estate Corporate Brand
Value Assessment Results Press Conference jointly hosted by “China Real
Estate Association, China Real Estate Appraisal Center of Shanghai E-House
Real Estate Research Institute” in conjunction with “Beijing Institute of Housing
Technical Services Association Ltd. and Zhongfang Yanxie Youcai Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (FERBEREMZM AR AR, Yuzhou Properties
(01628.HK) ranked 35th in the list of “2016 Top 50 Comprehensive Strength
of Chinese Real Estate Listed Companies” with a brand value of RMB7.462
billion. Yuzhou Properties ranked 66th in the list of “2015 China Property
Management Corporate Brand Value”.

2016F9A218 ' i [FPRIEHEXRE - DE5EEMER K+ EEHE
BFEFR L] BF [ERFEWRGRMRT AR A R A S RHERE MM E
RAR]] BARMEN2016FBREERNEMEEERFTKAREHS - Mt
FE(01628 HK) A MAEEET4.62(E LR E [20167 BIFEE T ARAEE T
5058 ] 55354 - RIMMELE (2016 EMETBECEMEEE] F664E -

On September 28, 2016, Yuzhou Properties Company Limited issued
domestic private corporate bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB3.0 billion
with a term of three years and coupon rate of 5.30% per annum. Golden Credit
Rating International Co., Ltd granted AA+ credit rating to the Company and the
corporate bond.

2016%F9A28H * @MHERKLBR A RFEBEIEAFARE SR BETREARE
SOBILMEANRIES  FHE=F  BFZEARETFS530% RAHEH
B E ARHE AR A RB TAA+T R T AR R R A AR ES o



Major Events of 2016
2016 FE RS

OCTOBER
T8

On October 19, 2016, the Company successfully issued senior notes in the amount of USD250 million with a term of 7 years for the first
time. The coupon rate of the senior notes was 6%, which was the lowest interest rate for the issuance of notes with a term of 7 years
among companies with the same international rating level (B1 Moody’s/BB- Fitch). Meanwhile, the issuance of the notes also represented
the successful issuance of notes with a term of 7 years by the second mainland real estate enterprise since the beginning of this year. This
reflected international investors’ affirmation of the sales performance and recognition of the financial position as well as their confidence in
the future development prospects of the Company.

201655108190 » AR ERKINBETTHEHN25BETEERE - ZHBARBEREE X R6% @ EAERBEFRRRNAR (B12#
/BB—2&) - 8T TEA7TFHEBRNRENE - ARLRARBEITORSFURE-_RNEHECFEKINEITTFRRE - BR
BT BIFIRE E U A RIHEREN ST - FBHARNRA - URARRERAISOED

NOVEMBER

Awards Ceremony.

MR -

=
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On November 25, 2016, Yuzhou
e :Vﬁ%u;;uimm Properties was awarded the “Best
s Investor Relation Management
Listed Company Award” at the 6th
China Securities Golden Bauhinia

2016411 A25H » RIMERE
7N JE R B AR A SR dR AR AR S
RAE [REREEBEREE L
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Major Events of 2016
2016 FEABEL

10

NOVEMBER

From November 21 to 25, 2016, Yuzhou Properties’ 2016 investors/
media reverse roadshow event, which lasted for one week, was in
full swing. With the rolling out of the national layout of Yuzhou, the
stability of its positioning in the Yangtze River Delta, its excellent urban
layout and dazzling resource value, as a high-quality individual stock
with high dividends and high margins in the domestic housing sector,
Yuzhou was gradually attracting increasing attention from the capital
market and media. This year’s reverse roadshow event even made
a historical record in both scale and duration, with most cities visited

and more diversified representative agencies. Domestic investment
institutions accounted for nearly 50%.

: ﬂﬁ&ﬁg 2016511 A21%250 « RE—ANBMBE2016FREE MREBR
4 W Bl EEEBEMAMENRE - EEBNREERNEN  R=A
| ' ll tfiEE - ﬁ%ﬁmmmﬁ% RRNEREE - (ERNERRES
héﬁtiéwmﬁﬁm& ZEEATHIHAE BT E R IR
o SENRMEHEE) - EEﬂTﬁﬁﬁizﬁ ER&E - B
ﬁﬁ%%'ﬁ%%%Em%ﬁmv%W&ﬁ%%wmﬁw%o

On the evening of November 25, 2016, China Securities Regulatory Commission and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
formally approved Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Stock Exchange to officially launch “Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect” on December 5. This was a significant milestone event in the process of the internationalization of the PRC capital market. The
interconnection mechanism will have a profound impact on the markets of China and Hong Kong. Being a high-quality domestic housing
stock listed in Hong Kong, Yuzhou Properties (01628.HK) was selected to be an underlying stock of Hong Kong Stock Connect published
by HKEX, which was in line with public expectations.

201611 A25HKM « FREES - BEFESENUERRA - BEBRMEMN12A58 EXRE FER] - E-FEEATMSE
ﬁﬁ%kﬁﬁ#ﬂ%ﬁﬁ“%%i&ﬁ%# B EREEISE R AR mISEEREYE - (EADB LMHNEERNER — RMHE
(01628.HK) R FTEs A B K A8 T A MR B IRBIZAIAR

SN ERDBRAR
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Major Events of 2016
2016 FE KB

DECEMBER
+=-R

On December 8, 2016, “Our Age, Our Mall, Trend, Excellent Vision, Win-
win”, Yuzhou Commercial 2016 Partners Summit was grandly held in Hefei.
Government leaders, industry experts and representatives from more than 300
domestic and international merchants of well-known brands gathered together
to jointly witness the grand blueprint drawn by Yuzhou Commercial for Hefei.

2016 12H8H » [Our Age, Our Mall - 8% 5 - £5 | - BIMNEE2016
EIERHESE SRR ARIT - BINESE  1T¥8X &IW\\SOO;**V&
REEFARRERE % HRAZEMNEEASIEEBRNREER

BEMM Plus ™ Platinum Project Certification Ceremony 2016

HEEN HoRTHEmTaE | On December 13, 2016, No.48 Caine Road, Hong Kong of Yuzhou, the first
» . *HK . BEAM » property development project of Yuzhou Properties in Hong Kong, achieved

g a Provisional Platinum rating, the highest under BEAM Plus. This means that
the project will become a model for green buildings in Hong Kong in terms of
environmental quality improvement and energy efficiency.

20165F12A13H * SMHENEETEYEZLREIEE RMNE BB L&
B ERZIEFT(BEAM Plus) mzaﬁeuz&%u EEREZEZEBEEREZERE
BE - REReREZ N ESR DB O RER AL o

On December 20, 2016, Yuzhou Properties won the bidding of a piece of quality residential land in Suzhou High-tech Development Zone,
Tong'an, Jiangsu, at the cost of RMB1.97 billion, covering a land area of 100,800 sg.m. and GFA of 221,900 sg.m., with an average land
cost per GFA of RMB8,865/sg.m.. On December 22, through public auction, the Company successfully acquired a parcel of high-quality
commercial and residential land in Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, at the cost of RMB1.521 billion, with a site area of approximately 128,300
sg.m., and GFA of approximately 231,000 sg.m., at an average land cost per GFA of RMB6,587/sq.m.. At the end of the year, Yuzhou
Properties successively seized two premium residential land parcels in Suzhou within three days at a very attractive price - a total price
of RMB3.4 billion. The Company rapidly established a high-quality land bank of 460,000 sg.m. in Suzhou, which formed a new pattern
of expanding Suzhou and further intensively developing cities in the centre of the Yangtze River Delta and reinforced the foundation for
sustainable development.

2016512 208 » AREIA19.718 mﬁk%%ﬁ%léi%%ﬂl\l%%ﬁ@i@%ﬁﬁf%%ﬂt THEEA10.08EF 5K « BEEEA22.198F 5
Ko BEH(EA8,8667T, F K c 128228 » ARIA1521BTTARBKRIFH S IEAE s TANEELEERL - TimiE%12.83
B K - BE EHUFQMOEP%L IBEH(E 56,5857, F A K o EXRpl] 0 BME=RKABEIEE T3 MNEBE —EE34
BrLESEHNMIEEE=EN  RENRRETI68EF HKEE L HE - BT THREN - E— P FRHR=ZATOHTNTRE  FE
T RSB R AERE o

On December 28, 2016, Moody’s Investors Service changed the Company’s rating outlook from stable to positive, which reflects the
Company’s growing operating scale, increasing geographic diversification robust profitability and strong liquidity position.

2016412280 « B EMEMTARL HRETEE - RRATDELHETERA - wEEEFST - RRENRY LA
# o
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INCOME STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

SR E

* After Business Taxes, Value-add Tax and Surcharges B\ fk M) %+ 1EF X0

12

Recognized Revenue*

U *

RMB million 13,672

AREBET
10,376
7,837 I

2014 2015 2016

Gross Profit
EF

RMB million 4,959

AREBET
3,709
2,845 I

2014 2015 2016

For the year ended December 31, 2016
HZE2016F128318 LFE

Recognized Revenue*: RMB13,671.83 million
RN - AR¥136187,1838 T
Contracted Sales: RMB23,205.73 million
BRHE - ARK232(85738 T

Gross Profit: RMB4,958.91 million

EF - ARM49185,8918 T

Core Profit: RMB2,047.13 million
ZOFE - ARBE20184,7138 7T

Core Earnings per Share: RMB0.54
FRZLEN - AR¥0.547T

Dividend per Share: HK22 cents
BIRARE : 224

BMNtERGERAF

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Contracted Sales
EKHEHE

RMB million 23,206

AREBET
14,018
12,001 I

2014 2015 2016

Core Profit
ALY IRz

RMB million
AEHEST 2,047

1,620
1,025 I

2014 2015 2016

Compared with 2015

#H20155F

(+RMB3,296.33 million or 31.77 %)
(&I AREE32189,6338 718431.77%)
(+RMB9,187.72 million or +65.54%)
(EINARO1(E8, 7728 7T 5k65.54%)
(+RMB1,249.59 million or +33.69%)
(A0 A R #12184,959%8 715 33.69%)
(+RMB427.18 million or 26.37%)
(AR #EA1E2, 7188 7T 5(26.37%)
(+RMBO.10 or 22.73%)
(I ARE0.107T8k22.73%)
(+HK4 cents or 22.22%)
(BB N4 (Ls122.22%)



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION HIGHLIGHTS

Total Assets

BERR
68,861
RMB million
o —
ARBEET 52,846
39,075
2014 2015 2016
December 31 128318
Total Equity
RERIRAR
RMB million 11,673

W E T 10,241
ARBEET 9.390 I T

2014 2015 2016
December 31 12H431H

As at December 31, 2016

1R201658:128318

Total Assets: RMB68,860.51 million
BEMTE - ARKK688(E6,051& T
Total Liabilities: RMB57,187.78 million
BEMARE - ARM571188,7788 T
Total Equity: RMB11,672.74 million
BB - ARK116(87,2748 T
Cash Position*:RMB17,417.53 million
WeAR - ARB174(81,7538 7T
Total Debt: RMB25,786.79 million
BB - AR®257188,6798 T

BRI REER

Total Liabilities
BERE

RMB million 57,188

ARERBTT
42,605
29,685 I

2014 2015 2016
December 31 125318

Cash Position*

BRER G *

RMB million 17,418

AREBETT
11,949
0,785 I

2014 2015 2016
December 31 12531H

Compared with the end of 2015
HH2015FFE

+RMB16,014.65 million or 30.30%)
#n A R E160181,4658 72830.30%)
+RMB14,583.28 million or 34.23%)
A1 A R #5145128,3288 718¢34.23%)
+RMB1,431.38 million or 13.98%)
AR BA4183,1388708¢13.98%)
+RMB5,468.74 million or 45.77%)
A REE54(86,8748 TL3145.77%)
+RMB5,703.67 million or 28.40%)

# A REE57 183678 J15628.40%)

P

* including restricted cash B¥E R #I3R &
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Yuzhou Properties Company Limited (“Yuzhou
Properties” or the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2016 (the “Period under Review”
or the “Year”). During the Period under Review, profit for the year rose by 25.19% year-on-year to
approximately RMB2,088.49 million in 2016. Core profit attributable to owners of parent increased
by 26.37% year-on-year to RMB2,047.13 million. Core earnings per share was RMB54 cents,
representing a year-on-year increase of 21.80%. The Board proposed a final dividend of HK22 cents
per share, and the payout ratio was 36.24%.

In 2016, the global environment was complicated and volatile, while the world economy was full
of challenges. China was under a stage of accelerating structural adjustment during which the real
estate industry experienced policies control, adjusting from loose to ongoing tightening policies in
popular cities: the National People’s Congress and the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference proposed city-specific measures for destocking. As the land
premiums in popular cities rose rapidly, the divergence of policies was further demonstrated: on
one hand, the control policies against popular cities were kept tightening to curb investment and
speculative demands and prevent market risks; on the other hand, destocking strategy was still
implemented in third- and fourth-tier cities to improve the market environment from both supply and
demand sides. Meanwhile, the central government continued to achieve breakthrough and progress
in strengthening construction of long-term effective real estate mechanism, regional integration
and new urbanization and so on in a bid to actively create a good environment for the long-term
development of the industry.

2016 was a year of “transformation” for Yuzhou. In the face of changing market environment, we
responded promptly and actively while fully leveraging our competitive edge to capture market
opportunities, explore diversified ways of land acquisition, realize stable expansion and continue to
maintain our profit level that led the industry. The quality growth of the Group’s results was due to
our accurate and prospective layout. In 2016, we proposed the strategic development goal of “Based
in the Yangtze River Delta, Lead the West Strait Economic Zone, and Expand Nationwide Coverage
in China (L2 K =7#,5|48 87 &, E& 2F E)” pursuant to which we relocated our headquarter
to Shanghai and adhered to intensive development in core first-tier and second-tier cities, having
commenced a nationwide strategic layout centered in Shanghai, Hefei, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou,
Xiamen, Fuzhou and Tianjin and achieving significant transformation. This year, we extended our
reach to Hangzhou and Wuhan market for the first time through merger and acquisition, and acquired
premium land parcels in Suzhou and Tianjin with very attractive prices through auction at the end of
year. As of December 31, 2016, the Group’s land bank amounted to 9.54 million sg.m.. The Group’s
land acquisition strategy has been based on in-depth research and careful investigation of the market
where the relevant land parcels are located, early investment in land parcels with high potential, and

acquiring premium land resources at relatively low land costs, thereby continuously supporting the
Group’s stable development in major domestic markets in the next few years.

S
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For residential development, the Group currently holds 68 development projects in 14 cities in the
PRC such as Shanghai, Xiamen, Nanjing and Hefei. During the period under review, the contracted
sales of the Group and its affiliated companies and joint ventures amounted to RMB23,206 million,
representing an increase of 66% year-on-year, exceeding our upward adjusted contracted sales
target of RMB22,000 million in 2016. The contracted sales area for the year rose by 30% year-on-
year to 1,828,857 sg.m.. The contracted average selling price increased by 27% year-on-year to
approximately RMB12,689/sg.m.. In addition, accumulated sales of properties subscribed for but not
contracted was approximately RMB1,269 million.

2016 was also the most remarkable year in the history of development in the commercial segment of
Yuzhou Properties. The Group leveraged its own advantages in residential real estate development
to skillfully combine its commercial and residential segment, achieving the dual-drivers of “residential
development complemented by commercial development”. During the period under review, Xiamen
Yuzhou Plaza and Shanghai Yuzhou Plaza continued to record impressive operating performance.
In particular, Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza Project have been leading the office market in Xiamen with its
occupancy rate and rental unit price and attracting quality tenants, such as Global 500 enterprises
including China National Petroleum, Industrial & Commercial Bank of China, Coca-Cola, Minsheng
Bank and Ping An Group.

EMAF Yuzhou Country
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EiMeBifF Yuzhou Joy Country

For retail and commercial development and operation, in July, the first complex of shopping mall
developed by the Group in Shanghai covering a GFA of over 140,000 sqg.m. has introduced 82
brands, with customer traffic exceeding 100,000 at the date of opening. This project has become a
landmark commercial building in Huinan district of Shanghai and enhanced the brand awareness of
Yuzhou Commercial. Yuzhou World Trade Center, a landmark building in Xiamen and the most well-
developed modern mega mall in Xiamen, has fully completed tenant mix adjustment at the end of
2016, and has introduced several industry famous brands such as China Film Digital Cinema, King
of the Children and H&M, realized full occupancy rate basically. We also brought customer traffic to
offline physical mall through strategic cooperation with Alipay and ffan.com APP, and cooperated
with various industries such as Didi Dache and Riyuegu Hotsprings Resort to enrich activities in
shopping mall, with daily average customer traffic reaching 60,000.

The property management service of the Group received outstanding results in the customer
satisfaction surveys for several years in a row, reflecting our unabating enhancement in products and
services received unanimous affirmation and recognition in the market. We also hope to gradually
convert customers’ satisfaction of products into their loyalty to the “Yuzhou” brand through our own
efforts.

For hotel operation, the Group focused on the development of serviced apartments as well as
medium to high-end business hotels to establish premium hotel brands, and properly develop resort
hotels to strengthen the core competitiveness of the brands. During the period, Yuzhou Camelon
Hotel Apartment recorded an occupancy rate of 79%, with revenue rose by 25.85% year-on-year.
The preparation and opening of various hotel projects under construction were implemented orderly
as scheduled.

S
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2016 was an important year for the Group’s strategic upgrade, relocation of headquarters in
Shanghai, and total replacement and upgrade of our human resources management system.
In 2016, the Group upgraded the Yuzhou Seeds Management Trainee Project. The targets of
recruitment mainly included outstanding graduates from national key universities and overseas
outstanding universities, who will be trained as core reserved talents of Yuzhou's management in the
future. The Group also successively introduced a batch of quality middle and senior management
personnel from domestic first-tier real estate developers and established a core middle-to-senior
management reserve mechanism. The dual support through building a supply chain of internal talents
and recruiting external outstanding talents enabled Yuzhou to establish a core elite organization.

Continuous optimization of capital structure was also a strong support for the steady growth of the
Company. As at December 31, 2016, the weighted average borrowing cost of the Group was 6.08%,
representing a decrease of 92 basis points as compared to the corresponding period of last year.
The amount of available cash was approximately RMB17,418 million, we had abundant operating
capital and were recognized and supported by rating agencies and major financial institutions for our
sound financial condition. The Group continued to explore all kinds of financing channels to construct
multi-level and diversified financial system, keeping at all time a keen sense of the financing window
of the capital market.

With our ample accumulation of industry experience and outstanding quality, Yuzhou brings not
simply buildings to the city, but also rebuilds the living concept and innovates in city development.
2016 was the first year of “Creativity/Valug” of Yuzhou. On the basis of its “Boutique Building 3.5,
the Group strengthened the elements of culture and creativity in the design of its projects, as
evidenced by the Shanghai Fengxian Project with design of cultural architecture which features the
core contents of books, culture and child education; the community complex for the Hefei Yaohai
Project with planning and design which reflected neighborhood relationship of the district; while
the Hangzhou Project with the design of its sales office which reflected the cultural connotation of
traditional gardens and extended the cultural implication of historical heritage for the place of origin
of the project. Projects like these have fully satisfied demands for functionality and culture of relevant
customers, and created a benchmark for new lifestyle for the local communities.

We pursue for excellence and enhance product quality continuously. Yuzhou Cloud Top International
(BMeETERI), Yuzhou Riverside City Town (File)%Z12 i%#%) and Yuzhou Plaza (&M1/&E¥%) have
all been awarded the “Guangsha Award (E/E2¥)". By the end of 2016, our project located at No. 48
Caine Road in Hong Kong won the highest Provisional Platinum rating under BEAM PLUS, implying
that the project will become an exemplary model for green building in Hong Kong in various aspects,
such as improving environmental quality and energy efficiency.

BMBERNERAT
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We have always emphasized corporate social responsibilities and upheld the concept of “From the
Community, For the Community”. We encourage the Group and its subsidiaries to actively participate
in public welfare activities and contribute in areas such as education, culture, environmental
protection, disaster relief and poverty alleviation. In addition, the Group secured steady improvement
in project progress, quality and development, and at the same time further strengthened
implementation of systems related to safe and civilized construction to promote safe and civilized
construction. It is our first time to use PC system prefabricated structures in the Shanghai Yuzhou
Dingxiangli Project, which has reduced waste in resources and pollution as the major enclosure
components of this project were produced in factory and the residential buildings were built on-site
through a more safe and reliable method.

The Group is fully confident in the long-term development of the real estate market in China, as we have
always been during past years. In 2017, the global environment is expected to remain complicated
and volatile with uncertain factors, which will bring pressure to operators to a certain extent. However,
we anticipate that first-tier and second-tier cities, such as several major core strategic cities planned
strategically by the Group, including cities where the Group established initial market presence in
2016 such as Hangzhou, Suzhou and Wuhan, will always maintain their economic growth at a speed
of top ranking in China, with active fundamentals that attract inflow of large population. In addition,
improvement in living standard of residents and the implementation of the two-child policy will also
stimulate the demand for upgraded housing.

BiMeEEE Yuzhou Commercial Plaza
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We will accelerate the strategic plan of “Based in the Yangtze River Delta, Lead the West Strait
Economic Zone, and Expand Nationwide Coverage in China”, continue to develop around first-tier
and second-tier cities, focus on the core cities and select the right opportunities to replenish land
reserves or acquire quality projects, we will also actively expand our presence in the Pearl River Delta
and Hong Kong market, and seek opportunities actively for expansion into overseas markets on this
basis. We will adhere to our focus on customers and pursue upgrading in products and services
persistently to satisfy the demand of different customers. In 2017, we have confidence to achieve our
sales target of RMB30,000 million, as more quality projects to be launched in the Yangtze River Delta,
it is anticipated the Yangtze River Delta will bring more income and profit contributions. Meanwhile,
the Group will further enhance the development and operating efficiency of investment properties
to ensure sustainable and stable growth in rental income, so as to strengthen the competitive
advantages of twin-engine development of the Group. The stable and sound business model of
the Group, together with other strengths, such as sufficient capital funds and low gearing ratio, will
help the Group to sail through different economic cycles smoothly. The Group will also capture the
right timing to expand our business coverage and adjust our strategies in response to changes in
the market and trends to maintain our consistent performance of stable growth, high profit and high
dividend distribution levels.

In the past 22 years, the Group has experienced countless challenges and opportunities and
developed in a steady and rapid manner along the path of regional scale development. To achieve
the win-win performance with scale and profitability, it depends on the support of all circles and
every employee. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt
gratitude to all shareholders, investors, partners and customers for their trust and support. We will
dedicate to unlock the future opportunities and maximize the value for our shareholders and investors
in creating the best returns.

Lam Lung On
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 21, 2017
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MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, China’s economy followed an L-shaped path and
China’s policy was shifted from steady growth to risk prevention
and reform promotion. In December 2016, the Central Economic
Working Conference put forward “the house is for living instead
of speculation”, and stressed that “people are linked to land”,
“increasing land supply”, “Megacities may boost the development
of small and medium cities around”, predicating that we are
stepping into the liquidity recovery cycle and the real estate industry

has been maturing.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, in 2016,
gross floor area (“GFA”) of commodity housing sold in China
increased by 22.5% year-on-year to 1.57 billion sq.m., of which
GFA of commodity residential housing sold in China increased
by 22.4% year-on-year to 1.38 billion sg.m.; the sales value of
commodity housing was RMB11,800 billion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 34.8%, while the sales value of commodity
residential housing was RMB9,900 billion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 36.1%. As of the end of 2016, the saleable area
of commodity housing was 695 million sg.m., increased by 4.44
million sq.m. as compared with the end of November 2016. In
particular, the saleable area of residential housing was down by 2.00
million sg.m.. The investment in property development amounted to
RMB10,300 billion, which represented a 6.9% increase in nominal
terms or a 7.5% increase in real terms (excluding inflation) year-
on-year. In 2016, the reliance of economy growth on real estate
industry picked up. The real estate industry increased by 8.6%, and
its contribution to GDP rose from 2.7% in 2015 to 7.8% in 2016.

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year, revenue of the Group was RMB13,671.83 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 31.77%. Gross profit was
RMB4,958.91 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
33.69%. Gross profit margin was 36.27%, representing a year-
on-year increase of 0.52 percentage points. Profit for the year
increased by 25.19% year-on-year to approximately RMB2,088.49
million in 2016. Core profit attributable to the owners of the parent
increased by 26.37% year-on-year to approximately RMB2,047.13
million. Core earnings per share was RMBO0.54, representing a
year-on-year increase of 21.80%. The Board proposed a final
dividend of HK22 cents per share, representing a payout ratio of
36.24%.
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SALE OF PROPERTIES

In 2016, the revenue of property sales by the Group rose by
31.39% year-on-year to RMB13,345.45 million, accounting for
97.61% of the total revenue. As of December 31, 2016, the Group
delivered total GFA of approximately 1,482,804 sqg.m., increased
by 33.90% as compared with last year. The average selling price
of the properties delivered and recognized as property sales was
RMB9,000 per sg.m., substantially in line with last year.

The Group bases in Yangtze River Delta and leads West Strait
Economic Zone. Our brand is outstanding in Xiamen, and has
maintained a leading position in Xiamen for 11 consecutive years.
Property sales in Xiamen area accounted for 44.22% (2015:
42.42%) of the Group’s overall revenue of property sales during the
year. Meanwhile, with the completion and delivery of some projects
in Hefei area, i.e. Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire and Yuzhou Central
Plaza have stepped into the phase of completion and delivery
since 2015, the revenue of property sales in Hefei accounted for
29.19% of the Group’s overall revenue of property sales (2015:
33.21%), as compared to revenue recognized only from Yuzhou
Skyline Project in the past. Going forward, delivery procedures will
be completed successively for the sold properties in different cities.
With continuous revenue growth, property sales are expected to
remain the dominant source of revenue for the Group in the future.

Recognized Property Sales

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The recognized sales and GFA sold of each project in 2016 are set ~ FN&R#HFIEHEE R2016FMERHEES B L EER

out in the following table: 3=
Average
Saleable Selling Price
Name of Project City Amount GFA (after tax)
AT ER
HE &8 b o} EEMmE HEEHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AREBTFT) (ERK)  (AREBEHK)
West Strait Economic Zone
HEKER
Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 155,891 6,122 25,464
BN e B EF9
Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 605,619 37,728 16,052
BN o R EF
Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 1,790,871 174,240 10,278
RN o SEIR Mk =1
Yuzhou Cloud Top International Xiamen 57,271 1,484 38,592
BN o ETERIRR EF9
Chunjiang Central Xiamen 2,923,368 141,305 20,688
FITEM EF]
Yuzhou Lucca Town Xiamen 308,480 19,443 15,866
BN o ER/NE =1
Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 70,505 3,440 20,496
SN e B —5R &M
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 1,106,085 103,445 10,692
BN o B EEHT @M
Yuzhou City Plaza Quanzhou 410,667 100,059 4,104
RIMBk T ES EX
Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 500,523 93,224 5,369
B o A
Others Xiamen 59,973 4,693 12,779
HAtb EF
Sub-total’] gt 7,989,253 685,183 11,660
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BEE MR
Average
Saleable Selling Price
Name of Project City Amount GFA (after tax)
A HEEER
HEEHE W ] EEER BMEFIER
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR¥FIT) (FFK)  (AREFHK)
Yangtze River Delta Region
REAKAKRE
Yuzhou Jingiao International Shanghai 6,833 631 10,829
Rl o SAFEIFR i
Yuzhou City Plaza Shanghai 10,973 739 14,848
BN T % g
Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 879,755 107,210 8,206
BN o RIF &
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire Hefei 829,573 106,653 7,778
BN o FEZAEL AhE
Yuzhou Central Plaza Hefei 2,186,523 324,143 6,746
Bl o HRES ale
Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire Bengbu 666,159 150,394 4,429
BN o BEFHED 1R
Sub-total’)\&t 4,579,816 689,770 6,640
Bohai Rim Region
RgRE
Yuzhou Palace Country Tianjin 251,244 36,829 6,822
BN e BT R
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire Tianjin 525,137 71,022 7,394
i o HEHAED RE
Sub-total/ NGt 776,381 107,851 7,199
Total#8 5t 13,345,450 1,482,804 9,000
—E-REER
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BEBZEmR DN

The recognized sales and GFA sold of each project in 2015 are set N2 &5 & [#1E B 7201 5E WS E £ 58 R IEEH

out in the following table: i
Average
Saleable Selling Price
Name of Project City Amount GFA (after tax)
AT ER
HE &8 b o} EEMmE HEEHEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AREBTFT) (ERK)  (AREBEHK)
West Strait Economic Zone
HEKER
Yuzhou Golf Xiamen 90,307 5,221 17,297
EVAKEST PN EF9
Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 579,359 24,797 23,364
B e B EF
Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 2,423,107 146,081 16,587
Rl o RAEE =1
Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 559,697 48,950 11,434
BN o EIR M EF9
Yuzhou Cloud Top International Xiamen 650,643 18,650 34,887
BN o ETEERR EF]
Yuzhou Gushan No.One Fuzhou 185,832 10,484 17,725
BN e T —5R &M
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Fuzhou 707,829 74,769 9,467
SN e WA BB &M
Yuzhou City Plaza Quanzhou 878,760 151,297 5,808
BN T E LS SN
Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 116,170 16,281 7,135
R o Sk _E3k k=]
Others Xiamen 5,550 672 8,259
HAtb EF9
Sub-total’Nat 6,197,254 497,202 12,464
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CBE SRR
Average
Saleable Selling Price
Name of Project City Amount GFA (after tax)
AR ER
HE & W o) EEEE BEFTIEE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(ARBTT) (FRK)  (AREFEHK)
Yangtze River Delta Region
R=EAKERE
Yuzhou Jingiao International Shanghai 28,695 2,882 9,957
BN o IFER 5
Yuzhou City Plaza Shanghai 46,006 4,333 10,618
BN ES i
Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 1,354,467 205,017 6,607
Bl o K3E =Y
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire Hefei 1,086,924 157,800 6,888
=N o F52RAER A
Yuzhou Central Plaza Hefei 932,274 161,025 5,790
Bl o RRES &ahe
Sub-total’J\gt 3,448,366 531,057 6,493
Bohai Rim Region
REEEE
Yuzhou Palace Country Tianjin 511,884 79,157 6,467
Bl e BT R#E
Sub-total’J\ gt 511,884 79,157 6,467
Total#&5t 10,157,504 1,107,416 9,172
—E-ANFFR
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BERE SRR DM

CONTRACTED SALES IN 2016

In 2016, the Group revised up the contracted sales target set in
early this year to RMB22,000 million. During the year, the Group
successfully seized the opportunity of the prosperity in real
estate market driven by favorable polices and strong demand,
overachieved the year’s adjusted contracted sales target with
the contracted sales totaling a record high of RMB23,205.73
million, representing an increase of 65.54% year-on-year, and
accomplished 105.48% of revised contracted sales target for the
year. The total of contracted sales GFA amounted to 1,828,857
sg.m., representing an increase of 30.43% year-on-year. The
average selling price was approximately RMB12,689 per sg.m.,
representing an increase of 26.93% year-on-year. In addition,
the sales of properties subscribed but not contracted totaled
approximately RMB1,269 million.

During the period, the Group constantly developed and strengthened
market penetration in different regions, and enhanced geographical
decentralization, thereby reducing its dependence on specific
markets. In addition to continue to record a satisfactory sales
performance in Xiamen, its cradle and Hefei, a place of strategic
importance, the Group recorded contracted sales amounted
to RMB3.2 billion in Nanjing which we entered into in 2014,
accounting for 14% of the total contracted sales. The Nanjing
market achieved an extraordinary sale from the beginning of 2016
for a single property project to the end of 2016 four property
projects for sale. Benefiting from the increasingly robust housing
demands in eastern cities, our projects in Shanghai, Hefei, Nanjing,
Xiamen and Fuzhou enjoyed great sales and the total contracted
sales recorded RMB19,865 million, accounting for 86% of the total
contracted sales of the Group.
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EiMetRTPark Yuzhou Galaxy Park

Xiamen is the cradle for the Group’s development. For 11
consecutive years, we have maintained a leading position in
Xiamen. In 2016, contracted sales valued at RMB6,588.52 million
were achieved in Xiamen area, accounting for 28.39% (2015:
41.21%) of the total contracted sales of the Group.

Having established a presence in Hefei for more than a decade,
Yuzhou Properties has a leading position in terms of market share
in 2016, with contracted sales amounted to RMB5,252.66 million.
Yuzhou Central Plaza and Yuzhou Royal Seal both achieved
excellent sales records of over RMB1.0 billion, demonstrating the
supreme recognition of our brand by Hefei residents and such
recognition will in turn enhance our market share in Hefei property
market.

In 2016, Yuzhou Bustling Center which is a project located at
Jiading District, Shanghai, and developed for residential purpose
only, created an excellent sales record of RMB2,451.31 million.
Furthermore, Yuzhou The Jiging (&1 e FEE &), our first project in
Nanjing Yuhuatai region has also launched sale in January 2016,
contributed a total of RMB2,633.97 million to contracted sales
in the whole year and the average contracted selling price of this
project was RMB34,377 per sg.m., setting a new benchmark for
the average selling price in the region. The Group launched three
new projects: Yuzhou Lakeside, Yuzhou Moon Riverside and King’s
Garden in the last quarter of 2016, which further solidified the
Group’s presence in Nanjing. Looking forward, our development
in Shanghai, Nanjing, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Fuzhou and Tianjin is
expected to accelerate and these six cities together with Xiamen
and Hefei will become the core eight cities of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BEBZEmR DN

The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2016 are set

RIS EEE R2016F & LHE S B NMEEE

out in the following table: &
Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
ERHE EREE
HE &1 W o) EEMmE BRHENE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AREBTFT) (ERK) (AREEHK)
West Strait Economic Zone
HEKER
Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 239,139 16,870 14,175
Rl o R REE EF9
Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 831,896 61,536 138,519
BN o SZIR Mk EF
Yuzhou Cloud Top International Xiamen 66,875 1,631 41,002
BN o ETERRR =
Haicang Dream Town Xiamen 1,582,884 73,798 21,449
R BRI EF9
Yuzhou Lucca Town Xiamen 1,356,338 64,438 21,049
BN o ER/NE EF
Chunjiang Central Xiamen 2,306,971 99,297 23,233
HITE =
Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 70,415 3,228 21,814
SN e B —5R @M
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase llI Fuzhou 970,238 79,881 12,146
BM e B EEET =5 @M
Yuzhou Cambridge Town Fuzhou 628,800 65,867 9,547
B o RIFEE50 =l
Yuzhou City Plaza Quanzhou 735,339 125,690 5,850
SN T E S SN
Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 677,034 114,195 5,929
SN o Sk _E3k s
Others Xiamen 204,414 10,706 19,093
HAth =1
Sub-total’]N 5t 9,670,343 717,137 13,485
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BEE YRR
Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
BHHE BRHE
HEEHE W ] EEEE BRHEIE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥TFIT) (FAK)  (AR®FEHK)
Yangtze River Delta Region
REAKAEE
Yuzhou Jingiao International Shanghai 13,697 623 21,986
Bl £AEER i
Yuzhou City Plaza Shanghai 6,193 302 20,507
VA ARY- =}
Yuzhou Commercial Plaza Shanghai 493,129 41,393 11,913
RMNEEES s
Yuzhou Bustling Center Shanghai 2,451,306 78,575 31,197
Bl e 2B i
Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life Shanghai 158,941 5,126 31,007
BMe THER s
Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 787,909 98,788 7,976
BN o RIF e
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire Hefei 542,182 64,142 8,453
SR o 5RMER e
Yuzhou Central Plaza Hefei 1,470,824 184,016 7,993
B o PRES e
Yuzhou Town Hefei 76,347 6,883 11,092
BRI ae
Yuzhou Royal Seal Hefei 1,444,023 159,715 9,041
Rl o« XE s
Yuzhou Central Town Hefei 931,374 90,008 10,348
Rl o F oI ae
Yuzhou The Jiging Nanjing 2,633,969 76,620 34,377
Rl e HEE E2p
Yuzhou Lakeside Nanjing 306,007 25,515 11,993
BN e EME E2pn
Yuzhou Moon Riverside Nanjing 58,695 2,085 28,151
Bl o B R
King’s Garden Nanjing 232,287 7,591 30,600
ThEE Bz
Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire Bengbu 447,194 94,836 4,715
B o BEFHED e
Sub-total’)\&T 12,054,077 936,218 12,875
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CEEBNRRON
Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
BRHE BRHE
HEEHE W ] EEER BRHETE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥BFIT) (FFK)  (AREFHK)
Bohai Rim Region
REEESE
Yuzhou Palace Country Tianjin 878,857 104,495 8,411
BN e BT RiE
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire Tianjin 602,450 71,007 8,484
M o BIHED RE
Sub-total/ &t 1,481,307 175,502 8,440
Total#&5t 23,205,727 1,828,857 12,689

BiMe XA Yuzhou Sky Aqua Mall
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The contracted sales and GFA sold of each project in 2015 are set

Management Discussion and Analysis

B ZSTHmR DM

TREINZEEBEN2016FNENHESANEER

out in the following table: 18
Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
ERHE BRHEE
HE &1 W o) EEmE BRHENE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(ARBTIT) (FFK)  (AREFFHK)
West Strait Economic Zone
K E
Yuzhou Golf Xiamen 8,880 511 17,370
EVAREST P EF
Yuzhou Shoreline Xiamen 140,621 4,298 32,716
B e B =1
Yuzhou Central Coast Xiamen 1,621,699 85,422 18,985
B o R =1
Yuzhou Riverside City Town Xiamen 1,127,254 108,850 10,356
BN o JEIR MK =1
Yuzhou Cloud Top International Xiamen 413,207 10,947 37,746
BN o ETERIRR EF9
Haicang Dream Town Xiamen 1,014,490 61,339 16,539
A B R EF9
Yuzhou Lucca Town Xiamen 481,463 22,733 21,179
BN o ER/NE EF]
Chunjiang Central Xiamen 953,513 44112 21,615
ETEM =9
Yuzhou Gushan No. One Fuzhou 21,550 2,075 10,386
BN e T —5R &M
Yuzhou Oriental Venice
Phase | and |l Fuzhou 10,845 606 17,892
BN e RAREH— « —Hf =N
Yuzhou Oriental Venice Phase IlI Fuzhou 819,030 79,000 10,368
BN e RAEEA = HA &I
Yuzhou Cambridge Town Fuzhou 547,449 60,839 8,998
BN o BIFEEE &I
Yuzhou City Plaza Quanzhou 483,691 79,353 6,095
RN T &S SN
Yuzhou Castle above City Longyan 580,526 99,607 5,828
B« L #E
Others Xiamen 19,032 1,798 10,581
Eith =1
Sub-total’)Nat 8,243,250 661,490 12,462
—E-ANFFR 39
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BEBZEmR DN

Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
BHE BHmE
HE &8 b o) A BRHENE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(ARBTIT) (FRK)  (AR¥EFEHK)
Yangtze River Delta Region
R=EAKER
Yuzhou Jingiao International Shanghai 13,517 758 17,824
B o SIGEIE fnpis]
Yuzhou City Plaza Shanghai 87,747 9,600 9,141
RNk T 5 !
Yuzhou Commercial Plaza Shanghai 206,062 15,878 12,978
BIMNE X E S !
Yuzhou Bustling Center Shanghai 656,331 28,740 22,837
Bl o I E fnpis]
Yuzhou Skyline Hefei 1,007,087 147,403 6,832
BN o KIZE A
Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire Hefei 744,476 101,630 7,325
BN o I522ED =y
Yuzhou Central Plaza Hefei 1,031,722 156,616 6,588
B o FRRES Ahe
Yuzhou Town Hefei 422,692 43,961 9,615
RN A
Yuzhou Royal Seal Hefei 616,557 90,936 6,780
BN o REE Y
Yuzhou Central Town Hefei 416,591 50,317 8,279
R o FRoLi &
Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire Bengbu 131,856 31,014 4,251
BN o BEFHAED IR
Sub-total’Nat 5,334,638 676,353 7,882
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EEEZFRmROMN
Amount of GFA of Average
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Name of Project City Sales Sales Selling Price
BRHEE BRHE
HE AR W T EEMEE BRHEHYE
(RMB’000) (sg.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(AR®TIT) (FRAK) (AR FHK)
Bohai Rim Region
REEESE
Yuzhou Palace Country Tianjin 275,430 41,559 6,627
BM « BT R
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire Tianjin 164,696 22,295 7,387
M o BIHED R
Sub-total’\&t+ 440,126 63,854 6,893
Total#&5t 14,018,014 1,402,197 9,997

e | 0

1
1]
1
1|
i
I":
i
ti

BMeTEE Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life
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BEBZEmR DN

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

In 2016, the income from investment properties of the Group
was approximately RMB124.15 million, representing a growth of
approximately 55.87% year-on-year, which is mainly due to the
increase in rental area and rental rate of the properties. During the
period under review, Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza and Shanghai Yuzhou
Plaza continued to record a remarkable operating performance, of
which, Xiamen Yuzhou Plaza has taken the leading position in the
office building market in Xiamen in term of occupancy rate and unit
price of rental, with the occupancy rate of 92.5%, gathering the
tenants from the world’s top 500 enterprises such as PetroChina,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Coca-Cola, China
Minsheng Bank, Ping An Group.

For retail commercial development and operation, the Group
opened the first complex business center with a GFA of more than
140,000 sg.m. in Shanghai in July, recruiting 82 brands with the
occupancy rate of up to 95%, and attracting more than 100,000
people to visit on the day of opening. This project has become
the landmark commercial building in Huinan area of Shanghai,
thereby enhancing the brand recognition of Yuzhou commercial
development sector. Yuzhou World Trade Center, the landmark
pbuilding in Xiamen, is the most mature large-scale modern shopping
mall in Xiamen, which completed the optimization of its tenant
structure by the end of 2016 by introducing well-known brands
such as China film Digital Cinema, King of the Children, H&M and
achieved the occupancy rate of more than 96%. Through strategic
cooperation with Alipay and Ffan App to guide online customers
towards the offline direction and in collaboration with various
industry such as Didi Dache (j#%37) and Riyuegu Hot Spring
Resort (H B &8 REBH) to enrich the activities in the shopping
mall, thereby achieving the average daily customer traffic of 60,000
people.
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Based on the strategic guideline of “Based in the Yangtze River
Delta and lead West Strait”, Yuzhou business focuses on regional
shopping malls, and radiates the landmark business projects by
giving priority to the Yangtze River Delta region and West Strait
Economic Zone such as Shanghai, Hefei, Hangzhou and Xiamen.
Leveraging on its own advantages in residential development,
the Group has made the artistic combination of commercial and
residential housing to form “the 4+1 service system in Yuzhou”
under the two-wheel driving model of giving priority to residential
development supplemented by commercial development. The
4+1 service system in Yuzhou represents that 4 is for 4 segments,
namely intelligent operation and management, brand marketing
and promotion, analysis and adjustment of tenants mix and quality
property service, and 1 is for an intelligent shopping mall. With a
focus on the intelligent shopping mall, the core services of four
segments will provide strong support for enhancing customer
experience, creating tenants value, and refining commercial
operation, thereby achieving the meticulous and intelligent
management of the shopping mall. Meanwhile, By relying on the
existing community management advantage and various diversified
resources, Yuzhou business builds an intelligent community
service platform “Your Life” with close connection with professional
platforms, especially ffan.com and rongyi.com to build the
intelligent shopping navigation catering for consumers for providing
one-stop operation management services to merchants, providing
consumers with more quality and convenient shopping experience,
and establishing a business ecosystem consisting of “consumer,
merchant and operator” so as to form cohesion stronger than the
combination of merchants and shopping mall.

2015 to 2018 are the peak years for new openings of the Group’s
investment properties. The Group will continue to enhance the
development and operation efficiency of investment properties for
sustainable growth in recurrent rental income, further strengthen
the Group’s double-engine competitive edge to improve profitability
and investment return.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BEBZEmR DN

HOTEL OPERATION

The expansion into the hotel industry would broaden the source of
the Group’s revenue. In 2016, the hotel revenue was approximately
RMB20.40 million, representing a growth of 25.85% year-on-
year. According to the Group’s development strategies and the
future development trend of the hotel industry, we have positioned
our hotel business to 1) focus on the development of service
apartments as well as medium to high-end business hotel to
establish premium hotel brands; 2) properly develop resort hotels
and improve the existing hotel portfolio to strengthen the core
competitiveness of the brands. Most hotels of the Group are still
under development and construction, including Wyndham Grand
Plaza Royale Hotel and Howard Johnson Residence in Wuyuan Bay
of Xiamen.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

During the year, the property management companies of the Group
recorded a property management fee income of RMB181.83
million, representing an increase of 48.87% year-on-year. With the
succession in the area of delivered properties, as of December 31,
2016, the Group has served approximately 56,000 households of
owners and residents in total across the country.

The property management service of the Group has achieved high
rankings in customer satisfaction surveys for consecutive years,
which reflects that the market has unanimously recognized and
acknowledged our unrelenting pursuit of high quality of product
and service. Through our own efforts, we hope to gradually
transform our customers’ level of product satisfaction into loyalty
to the “Yuzhou” brand. In 2016, the Group seized upon the great
opportunity to improve products and services and maintained
customer loyalty by listening to customers’ feedback and
suggestions through our customer service centers and numerous
other channels, and have conducted a comprehensive review of
Yuzhou property owners’ major concerns. We listened to their
thoughts and needs in all areas, including landscape planning,
residence design, material quality, construction technique, product
preservation, and benchmarked ourselves against leading industry
standards so as to satisfy the different requirements of our property
owners to the largest extent.

44 SN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

HIEEE

TREAELEEDEAEERARIR - 20165 @ B
JEWAL BARE2,0408 7T © RFIEKR25.85% 1R
BEEENERBEMIANBEXRNERBE - 2K
BEXBEMR) BEHERBREARABHND WA
BEE  2ERmBERE  2) BEERER
BIE - AEERANBEEES - EARMEOROHRS
he SEBETAEZMEEEERZ - 84 : R EP
hGENRN « RIEBEERENEERFETHA

=

T%o

M=ERE

FRN - AEEMEEERBARBSVEEREBRA
BARME(E8,183&8 T+ RF LF148.87% - KEEXR
M EmBESEL N - HZE2016F12A8318 * A &R
BEENS6EF%E -

SENMEXEERBEBELFETPREERETE
SHEREKE - RRTRMAERERRRB N HE
KRR THEN—BAEEERR - RAILFHEEBE
FNEN  BEFHEMNWABEEZRSB(LRE [&
M) BEEEHBE - 2016 F K BEEEPRET LEF
ZRRE  BEFPHNERNZFIR AR ERNRE
REERFEHENRERE  2EEKEMEEZAM
RIMER  BREMAURSETENREMTE -
HABRsEBRE PR MHRE  EIT
2 KmiRE - Y2RMITERRENRELETHRE -
NEARREMmERENTRFR -



LAND RESERVES

Adhering consistently to its strategic deployment of “Based in
Yangtze River Delta, Lead West Strait and Expand Nationwide
Coverage in China”and by leveraging its renowned brand
reputation, the Group has accelerated its development in the
Yangtze River Delta on the basis of strengthening its leading
position in West Strait Economic Zone. With its keen insight and
judgment, the Group wisely place emphasis on the development
of Shanghai, Hefei, Nanjing, Suzhou, and Hangzhou, the top five
core cities that possess the potential of development in Yangtze
River Delta, and successfully gain several additional development
projects with high potential. On the principle of “Establishing strong
foundation in every city entered”, the Group selected strategic
locations with high potential for project development to save cost
and create brand premium. Besides, our Group took the execution,
sell-through rate and profitability as its indications of performance
and strictly manages its risk, so as to ensure the sustainable
development of the Group.

As of December 31, 2016, the aggregate salable GFA of land
reserves of the Group was approximately 9.54 million sg.m., with
over 68 projects located in 14 cities in West Strait Economic Zone,
Yangtze River Delta, Bohai Rim region, Central Region and Hong
Kong; the average land cost was approximately RMB5,072 per
sg.m.. The Group believes that its land reserves currently held and
managed are sufficient for its development over the next four or five
years.
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BB BRI
SALABLE GFA OF LAND RESERVES (SQ.M.) THRFEBNAIHEEEEERE (FRXK)
(As at December 31, 2016) (R2016F12H31H)
Number
Region of Projects Area
hE HEH=E HE
(sg.m.)

(F77K)
West Strait Economic Zone EHRREE
Xiamen =P 25 1,412,018
Fuzhou &M 4 548,516
Quanzhou SN 1 1,031,465
Longyan A 1 202,822
Zhangzhou SE N 1 255,000
Sub-total NEE 32 3,449,821
Yangtze River Delta Region REAKEE
Shanghai ! 9 891,984
Nanjing B 6 517,196
Hangzhou LN 1 298,733
Suzhou RN 2 452,810
Hefei A 11 2,397,447
Bengbu 1R 1 517,938
Sub-total NET 30 5,076,108
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EBELSmADIT
Number
Region of Projects Area
& EHEHE HE
(sg.m.)

Car)
Bohai Rim Region RERER
Tianjin K#E 4 416,492
Sub-total &R 4 416,492
Central Region FEhih[E
Wuhan EWE] 1 598,179
Sub-total NE 1 598,179
Offshore B
Hong Kong B 1 2,214
Sub-total NER . 0214
Total #Et 68 9,542,814

In 2016, the Group acquired 14 new parcels of quality land,
which are located in Xiamen, Fuzhou, Shanghai, Hefei, Hangzhou,
Suzhou, Nanjing, Tianjin and Wuhan respectively, providing an
aggregate GFA of new land reserves of 2,647,724 sg.m., at an
average land cost of approximately RMB9,872 per sg.m., with a
total attributable land premium of approximately RMB16,888.60

million.
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BB BRI
Particulars of the land parcels are set out in the following table: TREYIZHBRAFES -
The
Group’s
equity Total Attributable
Name of Project City interest GFA Consideration Consideration Land Cost
ER AR m TEEfEER BEER BRE  KREEERE THAEAR
(sq.m.) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB/sq.m.)

(A7) (AE®TT) (AREFT)  (ARE/F5X)
West Strait Economic Zone
BREER
Yuzhou Radiance Central Mansion Fuzhou 66% 137,409 1,730,000 1,141,800 12,590
Bill e 2182 &M
Yuzhou Jimei Guankou Project Xiamen 51% 85,300 2,800,000 1,428,000 32,825
BNEZEOER Ef3
Yangtze River Delta Region
R-AKER
Yuzhou Country Shanghai 40% 90,776 2,630,000 1,052,000 28,972
Bl s}
Yuzhou Yuhuatai Project G71 Nanjing 100% 61,152 710,000 710,000 11,610
BIMEABEGNH )
Yuzhou Langxi Community Hefei 50% 234,889 2,388,764 1,194,382 10,170
Bl e BELE Bie
Yuzhou Jade Green Bay Hefei 50% 59,263 718,312 359,156 12,121
& e AR
Yuzhou Galaxy Park Hefei 49% 357,069 1,821,006 892,293 5,100
Bl o SRiTPark Bl
Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion Hefei 36% 100,981 1,119,460 403,006 11,086
Bl o THIA =
Yuzhou Riverside Sapphire Hangzhou 49% 297,000 4,104,000 2,010,960 13,818
Eile B2t M
Yuzhou Gaoxin Project Suzhou 100% 221,847 1,967,000 1,967,000 8,866
BillmsAE B
Yuzhou Xiangcheng Project Suzhou 100% 230,963 1,521,000 1,521,000 6,585
BiESER B

48 Bt ERDERAR

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE YRR
The
Group’s
equity Total Attributable
Name of Project City interest GFA Consideration Consideration Land Cost
BRER W TEBEERES BEEE BRE  AREEAARE hi:uf5
(sq.m.) (RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB/sg.m.)
(F5%) (AR%FT) (AR¥TR) (ARE/THK)
Bohai Rim Region
REEES
Yuzhou Xiging Project Tianjin 40% 96,600 700,000 280,000 7,246
SMFERETER R
Yuzhou Joy Country Tianjin 100% 76,296 340,000 340,000 4,456
B o B P2
Central Region
EhipE
Yuzhou Wuhan Project Wuhan 100% 598,179 3,589,000 3,589,000 6,000
BMEEER HE
Total#@5t 2,647,724 26,138,542 16,888,597 9,872

EiMeEHE Yuzhou Lakeside
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BEBZEmR DN

REVENUE

The revenue of the Group mainly arised from four business
categories, including property sales, rental of investment properties,
property management and hotel operation. In 2016, the revenue
of the Group was RMB13,671.83 million, hitting a record high by
representing an increase of 31.77% over last year, mainly because
of the increase in property sales income recognized driven by the
increase in aggregate GFA of properties delivered. Specifically, the
property sales income was approximately RMB13,345.45 million,
up by 31.39% year-on-year, which accounted for 97.61% of the
total income; the rental income from investment properties was
approximately RMB124.15 million, up by 55.87% year-on-year; the
property management fee income was about RMB181.83 million,
up by 48.87% year-on-year; the income from hotel operation was
approximately RMB20.40 million, up by 25.85% year-on-year.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group mainly encompassed land cost,
construction cost and capitalized interest. In 2016, the cost of sales
of the Group was RMB8,712.92 million, increased by 30.70% from
RMB6,666.18 million in 2015. The increase in the cost of sales was
mainly due to the increase in GFA of properties delivered.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit of the Group was RMB4,958.91 million in 2016,
increased by 33.69% year-on-year. Gross profit margin was
36.27%, up by 0.52 percentage points year-on-year. The increase
in gross profit margin was primarily due to the recognition of a
portion of properties presold during the market recovery period
since 2015.

FAIR VALUE GAIN ON INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

In 2016, the Group recorded a fair value gain on investment
properties of RMB97.39 million (2015: RMB202.94 million),
which was mainly attributable to the fair value gain on investment
properties located in Xiamen and Shanghai.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

In 2016, other income and gains increased by 27.88% year-on-
year to RMB300.99 million. The increase in other income and
gains was mainly due to the gain from disposal of investment
properties in Shanghai, which amounted to RMB172 million. The
gain from disposal of investment properties was arising from the
sales and delivery of approximately 58,000 sg.m. of investment
properties with contracted amount of approximately RMB718
million, minus cost of investment properties sold of approximately
RMB546 million. Among the cost of investment properties sold,
approximately RMB89 million was arising from revaluation gain
recognized in previous years.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by 1.59%
year-on-year from RMB288.57 million in 2015 to RMB293.15
million in 2016, which accounted for 1.26% (2015: 2.06%) of total
contracted sales. With an effective cost control measure, the Group
continued to invest in the online marketing and expanded more
diversified marketing channels in 2016.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses grew by 36.06% year-on-year
from approximately RMB296.10 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB402.88 million in 2016, mainly due to the business expansion
of the Group and the increase in number of staff, especially for new
cities the Group entered during the year, for instance Hangzhou,
Suzhou and Wuhan, and relocated the headquarter to Shanghai. In
2016, the proportion of administrative expenses to total contracted
sales decreased to 1.74% (2015: 2.11%), mainly due to the
effective cost control measures by the Group.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased by 160.48% year-on-year from
approximately RMB73.07 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB190.33 million in 2016. The increase was mainly due to
the impairment of goodwill of approximately RMB164.27 million
recognized during the year, arising from business acquisition in
previous years.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Fﬁ}iﬁ Zaﬂ-uﬂﬁ )&% *ﬁ

H AW A K Wz

2016 F E M A Rz A ARESEIE L  BF L
F127.88% o EMMARKEIEMEZHNEHE LS
MIREE  HEAARKE1E7,20087T - HE#%
B W REHE KR T458,000F 5 KR E Y
¥ AHNSBHOARETE1,8008L IKEERE
MERARHAREESE4,6008TT - Hh - BEREY
ERAKARKES Q008 T E B FEMRMER Yz
MEELE °

SHEN D HAA

REBHEE MO HEKAB2015F M AR EE2(88,857
BT RF FF1.59%E2016F AR 2(89,3158
L (REHHEELTEMN1.26% (20154 - 206%) °

+

2016¢ AEBEE BB RN AIEHIE I - FERK
BRNEBEEHE - %)%Eiﬁﬂﬂymftﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁ

1TTHRAS

REBEMNTHHASZR2015FNHARE2(E9,6108
IT  IRE FFF36.06% E2016FEH A RIK4(82888
T TEAREEEFIERRET ASUEN (LER

AEBFRNEE TMM - BN R EURFHR T I LA
HMBELE) - 2016FNITHAXMRASHHEEZL

PITFEE1.74% (20154 : 2.11%) » TEEFH
BRBEI AR BIE I

REE

H B <

HtFAZH2015FMHOARKET 3078 T IRF LA
160.48% Z22016F M) AR #E1189,033&8 7T - B #1E
MEZHRFABRBTFEEBUESIBNOAR
¥1186,427 LI BRMBEFTE ©

—z
Annual Report 2016 ~ AR 51
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BEBZEmR DN

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs of the Group increased by 26.90% year-on-year
from RMB349.04 million in 2015 to RMB442.95 million in 2016.
The increase was mainly due to the early redemption of a bond
of HK$1.5 billion with coupon rate of 10% and a senior notes
of USD300 million with coupon rate of 8.75% during the year in
order to reduce the financing cost of the Group. The redemptions
generated a loss of approximately RMB197.22 million.

SHARE OF PROFITS AND LOSSES OF JOINT
VENTURES

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures recorded profits of
approximately RMB91.79 million in 2016, as compared to losses
of approximately RMB41.97 million in 2015. The profit was mainly
arising from the sharing of profit of a joint venture project located in
Xiamen which delivered a portion of presold properties during the
year.

INCOME TAX

Income tax of the Group increased by 42.91% year-on-year from
approximately RMB1,475.29 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB2,108.27 million in 2016. Such increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in the revenue and profit during the year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the profit attributable to
non-controlling interests increased by approximately 26.7 times to
RMB313.57 million. The increase was mainly due to the share of
profit arising from a non-wholly owned project located in Xiamen,
which has delivered a portion of presold properties during the year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
PARENT

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the profit attributable to
owners of the parent was approximately RMB1,774.91 million,
representing an increase of 7.13% compared to RMB1,656.85
million in 2015 mainly due to the above mentioned factors. Core
profit attributable to owners of the parent increased by 26.37%
from RMB1,619.95 million in 2015 to RMB2,047.13 million in 2016.
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BEBE 2SRRI
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE AND CORE BREARBINESRZOEF

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Core earnings per share is calculated by dividing the core profit — BIZOEFINTE A2 B R BB AEEZLF
attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average  ERUFRNEHTERBRINEFHEE - FRELRR
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The calculation — #ZOEFIRIA TERETE -

of basic and core earnings per share are based on the following

data:

2016 2015
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARBFRT) (ARETFT)

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

Less: Fair value gain on investment properties,
net of deferred tax

Less: Fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments

Less: Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary
net of loss on remeasurement of a
pre-existing interest in a joint venture

Plus: Realised fair value gains on investment
properties disposed, net of deferred tax

Plus. Equity-settled share option expenses

Plus: Loss on redemption of financial liabilities

Plus: Impairment of goodwill

Plus: Share of fair value loss on acquisition of
remaining interests in joint ventures,
net of deferred tax

SAREE AEMLFE 1,774,914 1,656,853
B BRIBER R EYE AR E

Wzs 73,044 152,207
B iTEEm T AR ERE 85,458 44,583

B BB — PR A Tk
B BN A%

UNCIIRRCR: Sl E - 128,356
a0 BEREMERRIEERE S

EERREMELAERE 66,879 -
M0 AR B R IR 2 2,352 3,959
- BReRaEEEEE 197,218 196,771
a0 EERE 164,265 -

o0 WA SN RIS M ERR
FEIEFR A EL G A RE
&8 - 87,516

Core profit attributable to owners of the parent

SRR ARG OF)E 2,047,126 1,619,953

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

E#ITE BRI T8

issue ('000) (LAFED) 3,815,999 3,677,918
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) BRERRZN (BRARET) 0.47 0.45
Core earnings per share (RMB per share) FizOAaF (FRARET) 0.54 0.44
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BERE SRR DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial policy and strived to
maintain a healthy debt level amid its fast expansion to support
sustainable development. Meanwhile, the Group continued to
explore varied channels of financing, kept a close eye on capital
market’s financing window and take reducing overall borrowing
cost as a goal. Thanks to these, the Group’s overall borrowing
cost dropped from 7.00% at the end of 2015 to 6.08% at
the end of 2016. The series of corporate financing measures
further replenished the Group’s cash flow in support of business
development, extended the average maturing term the Group’s
debt portfolio and optimized debt structure, which helped lower the
Group’s overall borrowing cost.

RBEERIMBER

EEETFEENMBEE  EEERREERORE -
HMOEEBEERTREKT  UIHFEBEFESE
R AREERFERRSRENBRERSE KAHE
$m%%ﬂé@u% SRR - WA EEERE
RARBE - BRAZFRE  AEENEERENK
mmwiﬁﬁmrm%hﬁmmiiﬁm6%%o—
RIMEEREREE - PAEEBNRSMUIF
E¥BEE  ERAFEHBEGNHTIHFRLELCES
K BRI EEEERAENE -

Details of new indebtedness: FEEEEE -
Public/ Carrying Coupon Credit
Issuer Type Private Amount Maturity Rate Rating
BIA Rl DE/RE RESHE FEiER ZEAE RETR
Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Onshore Private RMB2.0 billion Three years 6.28% AA
Real Estate Development corporate bond
Company Limited
EFEMEELE ERATF BE AR% =f 6.28% AA
REERAH &% 2087
Yuzhou Properties Company Onshore Private RMB3.0 billion Three years 5.30% AA+
Limited corporate bond
BINEERDERL R B e AR =F 5.30% AA+
&% 0%
Yuzhou Properties Company Term loan facility US$400 million Three and half 3.85%-+Libor N/A
Limited years
EMEERAERAR EHER iEET =Y 3.85% T
& +HREBT
EEFE
Yuzhou Properties Company Offshore senior US$250 million Seven years 6.00% BB-/B1
Limited notes
BMEERAERAR EIME % 25EET tF 6.00% BB-/B1
2
BN E R B RA
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CEERRON
Details of early redemption of indebtedness: IRRIERIE TS ¢
Public/ Carrying Coupon Credit

Issuer Type Private Amount Maturity Rate Rating
BITA Bl DB/ B EHSH FIEER FEF= &R
Yuzhou Properties Company Guaranteed Private HK$1.5 billion 6 years 10.00% N/A

Limited corporate bond
B ERDERA ] BRAAE g 15T NE 10.00% N/A
Yuzhou Properties Company Offshore senior US$300 million 5 years 8.75% BB-/B1

Limited notes
BMERNERAR BIMBERE 3OEET ki3 8.75% BB-/B1
CREDIT RATINGS EEFHR

In September and December 2016, Standard & Poor’s and 201698 N128 @ IZEER (B TEHITATEE
Moody’s upgraded our issuer’s credit rating outlook to “B+” [B+] ) ki@ (LTEHTANEE [B1] ) H5HA
(“Positive” outlook) and “B1” (“Positive” outlook) respectively.  FFE&RFIHBIRZE [IE@E] R =28 (LFETA
Meanwhile, Fitch maintained our issuer’s credit rating at “BB-" 44 [BB— | ) #Hf%HErS [BE] -
(“Stable” outlook).

EiMeE 2T Yuzhou Riverside Sapphire
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BEBZEmR DN

BORROWINGS &K

As of December 31, 2016, the Group’s has total bank and other ~ 2016512 A31H » AEBEWBRITHNHMWERAHA
borrowings of RMB20,281.41 million, which were secured by ~ AR®202/88,141870 - BASBREEAEAARE
the investment properties, properties held for sale and properties ~ 162{89,202& TR B W E @ H{EIHERRMMEN
under development of the Group with an aggregate carrying value — TEE¥EIEEE - MEBLRIESHE A ARKS5(E5398
of RMB16,292.02 million. The outstanding balance of senior 7T ° 20165 * AEBEMRITNEMER LS EREL
notes was RMB5,505.39 million. In 2016, the Group’s bank and ~ #& A ARK257(88,679& 7T + BHEIT -

other borrowings and outstanding balance of senior notes totaled

RMB25,786.79 million, with the repayment periods set out as

follows:
December 31 December 31
Maturity EEFHE 2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12A31H
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®TRT) (AREFT)
Bank and other borrowings SRITAEMER
Within 1 year or on demand R1FE 2 AR FEEK 4,807,778 3,987,373
In the second year RE2F 6,894,017 1,665,505
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REIEFESTF (BIEEEEWSE) 8,539,162 8,845,312
Beyond five years 51 40,450 118,050
20,281,407 14,616,240
Senior Notes BEEE
In the third to fifth years, inclusive REIFEFESF (BIEBERSF) 3,793,277 5,466,883
Beyond five years 5F 1% 1,712,109 -
5,505,386 5,466,883
Total AH 25,786,793 20,083,123

CASH POSITION

BEikR

As of December 31, 2016, the Group had RMB17,417.53 million of & ZE2016F12A831H 1 - REBMBE S MRS ZEY
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, up by 45.77% from MR HIIR & AARE174181,7538 7T © 2015512
RMB11,948.79 million as at December 31, 2015. A31BEMAREE119184,8798 7T © £F45.77% °
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B ZSTHmR DM

NET GEARING RATIO EARABHE

As of December 31, 2016, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated ~ #ZE2016F 128311 * KAEENELABEL XA
as the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and senior notes 71.70% © #2015 12 431 AM79.43% * T T77.73
less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and divided by ~ EE D2 CFEELL R AT EHEITREMEES MEEL
total equity) was 71.70%, down by 7.73 percentage points when — ZiERIRE MRS EEBEE LI R HIIE SR AR E
compared to 79.43% as at December 31, 2015. The decrease was %) - TEHNERALHEEQIFIL N -

mainly attributable to the collection of contracted sales proceeds

during the year.

EiMeXE Yuzhou Royal Seal
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BERE SRR DM

CURRENCY RISK

As of December 31, 2016, among the RMB25,786.79 million
of total borrowings of the Group, approximately 63.2% was
denominated in RMB and 36.8% was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars. In 2016, the Group successfully
tapped the onshore funding source — issuance of onshore
corporate debt and optimized the debt structure and reduced the
foreign exchange risk of the company through early redemption of
the costly senior notes in United States dollars and early repayment
of guaranteed bonds with high coupon rate in Hong Kong dollars.

Starting in 2016, the Group entered into certain structured forward
currency contracts with a bank to hedge the foreign exchange
exposure. All structured forward currency contracts have a maturity
term of one year. As at December 31, 2016, the aggregate notional
amount of structured forward currency contracts is approximately
US$370 million (December 31, 2015: Nil).

The proportions of bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
cash balance of the Group in terms of currencies were as follows:

B E R

HZE2016F12A31HIE - FEREEARK257(E
8,679F 7T - #9563.2% A AN REFHAKX36.8% A5
TLRETTEHE © 2016 F EEK IR ARBIMER
BRETEARARAE  UEBRRFENRSKNANET
BAZERRREESESERGERES - LMEL
EREE - REEELRR

B2016%F 8 - AEEE—FIRITRI LA THEBIEERE
HASMNEA K - LAERIMEM DO - FTA &R IERAEE
AHMEHEAR A —F - R2016F12A31H « A&
MIREEE M EREELNS.7TEET (2015F12H31
H: &)

AEBEBNRITREAMER  EAZBERRSEHRNE
BEELLAIINT

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Bank

and Other

Borrowings

and Senior

ng Notes Balance
(\) ) N RATREM Cash
é. B BE Balance*
“§ EjR e WE AR
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARBFIT) (AREFT)
HK$ e 891,133 577,017
RMB AR 16,293,573 13,954,681
uss$ ETT 8,602,087 2,879,969
Others Hi - 5,867
Total =X 25,786,793 17,417,534
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COMMITMENTS

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had commitments in respect
of development expenditure on real estate of approximately
RMB4,479.38 million (December 31, 2015: RMB5,351.10 million).
The Group is also committed to the payment of land premium in
respect of land acquisition of approximately RMB2,992.49 million
(December 31, 2015: RMB2,098.79 million) and in respect of
acquisition of project companies of approximately RMB3,547.22
million (December 31, 2015: RMB179.46 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provides buy-back guarantees to banks, which offered
mortgages to domestic properties buyers in Mainland China of
the Group. As at December 31, 2016, outstanding buy-back
guarantees amounted to RMB15,228.70 million (December 31,
2015: RMB9,239.47 million). The Group provides guarantees to
bank and other lenders in connection with facilities granted to joint
ventures amounted to RMB4,032.01 million (December 31, 2015:
Nil).

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

i) In July 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with independent third parties to acquire the
entire equity interest and shareholders’ loan in a property
development company which hold three parcels of land
located at the southwest side of Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC at a consideration of RMB2,330 million
for the entire equity interests and RMB1,774 million for the
shareholders’ loan.

ii) In December 2016, the Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal
of a 51.5% equity interests of a subsidiary, which hold three
parcels of land located at the southwest side of Hangzhou,
the PRC for a consideration of RMB1,200 million.

Except for the above, the Group had no material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is led by an experienced and professional management
team. Since the establishment of the Group in 1994, the Group
has been undergoing rapid development and expansion under the
leadership of the Board. Senior management is very experienced
in properties development industry with over 12 years’ experience
in average for most of the senior executives. With the strong
leadership and international insight of the management as well
as excellent execution, together with strict implementation of the
best international practices according to the actual situation of the
Company, the Group has developed as one of the leading real
estate developers in China.

2016 was a significant year for the Group’s strategic upgrade,
our headquarters has been established in Shanghai and the
human resources management system has been upgraded
comprehensively. In 2016, the Group has updated the“Yuzhou
Young Talents” management trainee program, the outstanding
graduates from domestic key universities and overseas well-
known universities became the focus of recruitment as the key
reserve talents for Yuzhou to manage its cadres cultivation in
the future. Furthermore, the Group has successively recruited a
number of outstanding mid-to-senior level management personnel
from domestic first-tier real estate developers and established
a core reserve mechanism of such to upgrade the organization
construction of Yuzhou's elites with the combination of the building
of internal talent supply chain and the introducing of external talents.

We believed that human resources, particularly the senior
executives and professional project management team, are of
critical importance to maintaining the competitive strengths of
the Group. The Group aims to achieve the international standard
of outstanding performance through compliance with the best
international practice in respect of strict management system and
corporate governance. As at December 31, 2016, the Group had
3,401 (2015: 2,981) staff in total.

In addition to basic salaries and other staff benefits, discretionary
bonuses and share options may be awarded to employees who
display outstanding performance and contributions to the Group.
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PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK22
cents per share for the year ended December 31, 2016, subject to
the approval by the shareholders on the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on June 6, 2017 (‘“AGM”).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from June
2, 2017 to June 6, 2017, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer of shares of the
Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on June 1, 2017.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the AGM, the final
dividend will be paid on or about July 5, 2017. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from June 19, 2017 to June 21,
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to
the proposed final dividend, all transfer of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
June 16, 2017.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company redeemed in full the 8.75% senior
notes due 2018, which were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, at a redemption amount of US$313,000,000,
representing 104.375% of its principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SHARE
DEALINGS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers contained
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the requirements set out

in the Securities Code throughout the year ended December 31,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“Board”) and the management of the Group
are committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The corporate governance principles of
the Group emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

During the year, the Group had adopted, applied and complied with
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
except the following deviation:

Code provision A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Lam Lung On has been assuming
the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group since January 1, 2012. Although these two roles
are performed by the same individual, certain responsibilities are
shared with executive directors to balance the power and authority.
In addition, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the board as well as senior management. The Board
has three independent non-executive directors who offer different
independent perspectives. Therefore, the Board is of the view that
there are adequate balances of power and safeguards in place. The
Board would review and monitor the situation on a regular basis
and would ensure that the present structure would not impair the
balance of power in the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The board of directors of the Company announces that on January
27, 2016, the Company has granted share options under its share
option scheme adopted on May 24, 2010 to certain directors and
employees of the Group which, subject to the acceptance of the
Grantees, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
19,790,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the
Company at the exercise price per share of HK$1.812.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
policies adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

For 2017, the global economic outlook is still not optimistic. With
the decline of the global potential growth rate, the financial market
becomes more fragile, the growth of trade and investment is weak
and the anti-globalization trend becomes more obvious. These
factors will curb the strong, sustainable, balanced and inclusive
growth in the global economy. The domestic economy continues
to stay at the bottom of the long cycle and there is still downward
pressure for economy. However, more favorable factors emerged,
such as the speed-up of structural reform, more conservative
monetary policy, the stabilized demand level and positive growth
in corporates’ earnings. This shift will drive funds back to the real
economy and establish a foundation for economic recovery in a
medium-term.
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The Central Economic Working Conference convened in mid-
December 2016 expressly put forward that the economic growth in
2017 will focus on “stability” and monetary policy should be steady
and moderate, which have a significant impact on expectations
on the development of China’s real estate market. As a result of
the steady and moderate monetary policy, comprehensive loose
monetary environment will no longer exists in 2017. Taking into
consideration the impact from expectations on U.S. dollar rate
increases, the central bank may moderately tighten the domestic
RMB liquidity to balance the stability of RMB. For policies of the
property sector, in addition to strengthen the efforts that recovering
the properties to residence, China will promote the construction
of the housing system through taking policies appropriate to local
conditions, precise control and long-term effective mechanism for
mid-and-long term.

In 2017, it is expected that the tier 1 and 2 cities in the Group’s
strategic layout, such as Shanghai, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Hefei,
Xiamen, Fuzhou and other core strategic cities, will maintain the
leading economic growth rate in China. Those cities have active
fundamentals, therefore have attracted a number of population
inflow. In June 2016, the National Development and Reform
Commission issued the “Development Planning of Yangtze River
Delta City Agglomeration” ( {F;Z =AM m B EEE R E) ), which
pointed out that the Yangtze River Delta city agglomeration is one
of the regions where have the most dynamic economy, the highest
degree of openness and the strongest innovation ability and have
absorbed the largest expatriate population in China. It is also the
important intersection of “One Belt, One Road” and Yangtze River
Economic Belt and it play an important strategic position in national
modernization and all-round development. We entered Wuhan in
2016 for the first time. Wuhan was enrolled as National Central
City at the end of 2016, which bear the responsibilities to lead the
development of other cities in this region, promote the economic
and social development in this region. It further manifests our
strategic insight and accurate timing to enter Central China market.
In addition, with the introduction of the two-child policy will also
stimulate the demand of updaters.
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Following the adjustment to the strategic layout of the Group during
2016 and the relocation of our headquarters to Shanghai, the
Group will strive to plan higher level developments from a higher
starting point on the back of the regional edge of Shanghai as a
national or even a global hub for finance, talents and information
exchange. In future, the Group will continue to adhere to the major
strategy of “Based in the Yangtze River Delta, lead West Strait
Economic Zone and Expand Nationwide Coverage in China (3Z,&
=/ 3l¥88A&E - &#25 )", with a focus on core cities,
including Shanghai, Hefei, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou, Tianjin,
Xiamen, Fuzhou and Wuhan, accelerate and improve its layout
in the Yangtze River Delta region and continue to consolidate its
leading position in the West Strait Economic Zone , accelerate the
development in Bohai Rim and Central China and actively explore
Pearl River Delta region and Hong Kong markets. With the sound
growth in contracted sales and financing costs continuing to fall,
we will continuously strengthen its mode of operation, and try to
achieve optimal investment returns and cash flows with appropriate
turnover modes for different projects in various cities to attain
stable debts, and inventory management and release, as well as
the balanced growth in profits and business scale. The Group will
continue to be customer-oriented, promote the upgrading of its
products and services, and expand its scope of business.

In addition, by further strengthening cash management, adopting
sound financial policies, and actively and effectively communicating
with various institutions in the domestic and international capital
markets, the Group will continue to establish long-term, stable and
amicable relations with them, integrate financial resources, improve
investment efficiency through innovative financing, experiment with
financial instruments including securitized assets, and provide new
momentum for its business reforms through financial innovations.
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Meanwhile, by strictly controlling investment risks, the Group
will continue to adhere to the strategy of developing projects in
regions with mature city functions, auxiliary facilities, and enough
population. By deploying in key cities in advance, the Group
will lay a good foundation for future businesses, and through
continued cooperation and innovation, the Group will give full
play to its professional competence and brand reputation and
actively look for strategic cooperation opportunities. Through
products innovation, the Group will explore all kinds of products
and develop well-diversified industry-leading products. We believe
that these operational strategies can help the Group maintain its
competitiveness in the ever-changing market and reduce risks to
ensure its sustainable development and maintain its steady growth,
high profits and high dividend levels to maximize the value for our
shareholders.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
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“We are firmly committed
to improving corporate
governance, strengthen team
building, and strive to lead
the industry and conform to
international standards.”
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For 22 years, Yuzhou Properties has followed the philosophy of
“Benefiting from Society and Benefiting Society” and is committed
to practicing the business model of sustainable development while
developing its operations to build cities characterized by harmony
and integration between people and the environment.

Energy conservation and environmental protection is an important
aspect of the sustainable development strategy of Yuzhou
Properties. We attach importance to environmental responsibility
and actively incorporate environmental protection into the business
decision-making process. Through the continuous optimization of
construction management, the incorporation of the green building
concept and the strengthening of green property management,
we hope to reduce the impact on the environment during different
stages from project development, construction to use. The Group
has planned to entrust a certification institution to quantify carbon
emissions generated by the Group’s operations so as to develop
carbon reduction targets, plans and measures to further promote
the process of environmental protection.
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Environment, Social and Governance
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While ensuring the progress and quality of projects, Yuzhou
Properties is committed to promoting safe and civilized
construction, and continuously improves site safety management.
Our project management team ensures that all construction workers
are adequately trained in safety and conducts regular inspections
on projects as an important indicator for the annual performance
appraisal of subsidiaries. We are committed to implementing safety
measures in all aspects of our operations to create a healthy and
safe working environment for employees.

Yuzhou Properties has stringent requirements on project quality
and service quality. We actively explore and provide customers
with diversified premium projects and services with an innovative
attitude. The projects of the Group are highly recognized for their
construction quality. Yuzhou Cloud Top International (&) =18
BIB%), Yuzhou Riverside City Town ()  ZI2 &) and Yuzhou
Plaza (Bill&*5) were awarded the “Guangsha Award (/& 25)”.
In addition, the project of No.48 Caine Road, Hong Kong achieved
a Platinum rating, the highest under BEAM Plus. The Group also
has a sound product and service complaint mechanism to properly
respond to customer appeals and establish customer support and
trust.
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We believe that the business model of sustainable development
needs to be extended to the upstream and downstream of the
supply chain in order to bring a greater positive impact on the
society. Yuzhou Properties is committed to driving business
partners to consider factors such as environmental protection,
production safety and product liability in their operations. We have
been implementing green purchasing policies and also require
products provided by suppliers to obtain “China Environmental
Labeling Certification” and meet the relevant national standards to
reduce the impact of projects on the environment.

Today, the state, the society and customers all have higher
expectations of real estate enterprises. In the future, we are
firmly committed to improving corporate governance, strengthen
team building, and strive to lead the industry and conform to the
international standards. By upholding the corporate philosophy
of “Stable Operation and Creating Value”,
respond to the expectations of stakeholders and join hands with all

the Group will actively

circles in the journey of sustainable development to jointly create
harmonious and livable green cities.

Lam Lung On

Chairman

Environment, Social and Governance
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Yuzhou Overseas City
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza
Yuzhou Harbour City
Yuzhou New City

Yuzhou Garden

Yuzhou Galaxy Garden
Yuzhou New Manor
Yuzhou World Trade Center
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast
Yuzhou University City
Yuzhou Castle above City
Yuzhou Sunshine City
Yuzhou Golf

Yuzhou Shoreline

Yuzhou Cloud Top International
Yuzhou Plaza

Yuzhou International Hotel
Yuzhou Central Coast
Yuzhou Riverside City Town
Haicang Dream Town
Yuzhou Lucca Town
Chunjiang Central
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Yuzhou Xiang'an Commercial/Office Project 2 ¥ % 73 18 B

Yuzhou Jimei Guankou Project

Yuzhou Skyline

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire
Yuzhou Central Plaza
Yuzhou Royal Seal
Yuzhou Town

Yuzhou Central Town
Yuzhou Sky Aqua Mall
Yuzhou Langxi Community
Yuzhou Jade Geen Bay
Yuzhou Galaxy Park
Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion

Yuzhou Gushan No. One

Yuzhou Oriental Venice

Yuzhou Cambridge Town
Yuzhou Reliance Central Mansion

BMBEROAERAT

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire

Yuzhou Jingiao International
Yuzhou Plaza

Yuzhou Commercial Plaza
Yuzhou City Plaza

Yuzhou Bustling Center
Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life
Yuzhou Noble Mansion
Yuzhou Country

Yuzhou Jinshan Project

Yuzhou City Plaza

Yuzhou The Jiging

Yuzhou Moon Riverside
Yuzhou King’s Garden
Yuzhou Lakeside
Jiangning G59 Project
Yuzhou Yuhua Project G71

Yuzhou Riverside Sapphire

Yuzhou Xiangcheng Project
Yuzhou Gaoxin Project

Yuzhou Wuhan Project

Yuzhou Castle above City

Yuzhou Palace Country
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire
Yuzhou Joy Country
Yuzhou Xiging Project

Yuzhou Zhangzhou Project

Yuzhou Caine Road Project
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YUZHOU RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS
BMEEREREE

YUZHOU BEAUTIFUL GARDEN LIFE
=i

74

« JTEE

e The project is located north of the old urban district of Jiading, west to

Chengliu Road, north to Shupin Road and south to the natural lake of Tang Jia
Bang. It has occupied a superior geographical location, which is away from the
bustle of the old urban district and is only one step away from the center of the
old urban district. It not only makes an oasis of serenity amid chaos, but also
can enjoy mature business and transportation facilities of the old urban district.
Therefore, it’s called “the back garden of Juyuan sector”. Within the sector,
quality of the products in the region will be improved with presence of more
and more large-scale brand real estate enterprises, a modern new type city will
be created in the future.

Project Highlights IEE =25

e The project is composed of nine 14-storey low density high-rises, with distance

of nearly 50 meters among buildings to ensure lighting and private space of
each building. The unique riverside park on the south and a green coverage
rate of nearly 36% in the community have created an excellent community
environment for the owners. Each unit has excellent functionality. Horizontal
hall designs of 5.9 meter for 113 sg.m. and 6.4 meter for 135 sq.m. have
provided more comfortable space and more spacious landscape as compared
surrounding competing products.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

SHANGHAI
Lisg
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

Site Area:
THER :

sg.m.
31,13 3%
Total GFA:
HRFREEMEGE ¢

sg.m.
56,051 g»x

Architectural Form: Residential high-

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages 3I2IR$E BB
o IHEMMEEZMEIAIL - FAREERAK - JtHE

BIRE - BMEBFERDIK - HEERAIZ
I8 BEERnEE  Xazuho—4$2
o MMERIMEGY - XA ZREPLANEER
BEE - A [HERBEEE] - RN
ERSZRYERRECHES B TREANER

=y
e °

BEBEAMFI4ENEZESBERAK 5
ITE0KMREB(RFE T BRI MR AL 22 o
BB —E BT RAE AR NERNBIE36%H
BICEE  GREIITETIREMTEERRE - 113
K5 9K LA K 135 K6 4K EERE - BfE
BEETH  EEMAOSE -
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EERITHEEHNE
YUZHOU BUSTLING CENTER SHANGHAI

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

Site Area:
THER :

sg.m.
55,017  srx
Total GFA:
HRFREEMEGE ¢

sg.m.
126,540 “rx
Architectural Form: high-rise

residential
BERE  BEREE

Geographical Environment #3235

e | ocated 2 km away from the most prosperous commercial street in the old e FEiRFTEMEREENEHE2RAE TR

urban district of Jiading, embracing complete well-established commercial % SHEEREKARE o BAPER 15
facilities. The project is also adjacent to the North Jiading Subway Station of e WEBBHEERESE  AgAZE
the No.11 Line of Metro Transit, enjoying abundant high quality educational AR EMAREIERE - ERAISI2EF A
resources. Moreover, the project occupies the supreme location near several KARIEE + #5 T Art DecoiZ SERRFHEH o

parks which form a natural oxygen bar of almost one hundred mu. Designed in
the classic architectural style of Art Deco, the project features a 20,000 sg.m.
central garden.

Planning and Design 3R &I5&5t

e The project is composed of eleven 11 to 26-storey residential high-rises and HEBE11EEE26/E 5 BT £ & 496,000F
an approximately 6,000 sg.m. refined commercial street. Main units of 86~141 FRBREEEE  86~141FFKEHFRI—
sa.m. were sold out as soon as they were launched. EETT - BNRGHEEE -

M é\‘
W
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YUZHOU ¢ MOON RIVERSIDE
=

e IRAZE

Geographical Environment 1215

Moon Riverside is located in the surrounding area of Xishan Bridge in Yuhuatai
District. Adjacent to the outer part of Qinhuai River and with the distant Guanzi
Hill in the sight, the project enjoys agreeable natural scenery. Kindergarten,
primary school, food markets and various other facilities are attainable in the
surrounding area and daily necessities of life are readily available within 1
kilometer.

The project is one of the few improved housing properties in the district. Its
fagade design draws on the Chinese elements and combines simplicity of
modern style, interpreting the sense of quality and culture heritage for living
in simple and civilian language, and forming a unique Chinese overseas
style. Units of the project range from 83 to195 sq.m. in size, covering various
products from meeting the rigid demand for family of three members to
satisfying the enlarged need for family of three generations. Combined with a
unique concept of innovation, the unit design takes into the Nanjing citizens’
living preference of good ventilation between the south and the north as well
as gaining bright light from the south side, addressing nearly all of the major
concerns of clients, such as reasonable size, neat layout and premium gift.

Planning and Design #3 858 5t

76

The project plans to build residential property consisting of three 18-floor high-
rise buildings and eight 6+1 floor garden houses, all with Chinese overseas
architectural style.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

NANJING
AR
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

Site Area:
THEER ¢

sg.m.
17,199 7K
Total GFA:
HRFRERMEGE ¢

sq.m.
30,957 Tk
Architectural Form:
FREEFRE -
high-rise, garden house
BE ¥R

s MARIARECRAER/AR - MEINRE
A AEBEEEF L LK REER - ﬂi%ﬁj]?ﬁ

NE L EMSERBEEERERS 1RE
HENABEERLEREE -
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HEr EEBE TP TR - NARARIREESE LS
A AR ANRREEREBEENSE R
K4 RCBERERP RS - EREES
£A83-195m * -—OZRMBAIFERE=RRA
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EBRITMRRERE
YUZHOU LAKESIDE NANJING
Bl o B2 AR

Project Description

BE&N

Site Area:
TGS ¢

sq.m.
52,763 K
Total GFA:
YAl

sq.m.

116,076 F5

Architectural Form:

FEERIRE -

high-rise residential, community
commercial

BEEE  HEHE

Geographical Environment 1 BIRIE

* Yuzhou Lakeside is located in the core of Riverside New Town, adjacent to o BINEMEIE B MANETIFHZL - BEVETE

Riverside Old Town with a full range of supporting facilities in the surrounding e - BREEREES  FRAIERER -
area; the location can overlook Mulong Lake in its east side with excellent lake EBBRENHREIR -
views.

Planning and Design #3858 5t

e We adopted a new Asian style as project facade based on the traditional e IBH VEFKANDMERE - ERAEFREME

culture with a strong geographic characteristic and incorporated western FEMERXEAIRE AT - £62
culture. For the color, we keep the project in original colors of natural colors, FREEAVENRECH  RZABE - hize
mostly in brown, walnut and other dark colors, which presents a simple EAREBER  ERELHANEENRES

atmosphere in the visual.

—m
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YUZHOU THE JIQING
Bl e TEE

g

NANJING
AR
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

@fg
: "r Site Area:
Wy R
sqg.m.
4 41,494 =i
J Total GFA:
MRS
sg.m.
112,865 Fix
Architectural Form: high-rise
residential
BERE: aEEE

i
‘

Geographical environment 3I2JRE

® | ocated at the intersection of the southern old city area of Nanjing and the
international Hexi New City, landscape belt alongside the Nanhe River under
construction will be the most beautiful section of the Nanhe River when
completed.

e Bus station in front of its main entrance. 10 minutes’ walk to the Zhonghuamen
Station of Subway Line 1 or 5 minutes’ walk to the Fengtainanlu Station of
Subway Line 8 under planning.

e Supporting facilities including commercial centers, schools, transportation and
hospitals.

® Education facilities: one self-built public kindergarten, Yuhua Experimental
Primary School, No.1 Branch of Nanjing Experimental School (private).

Project Highlights IEE =26

® The first project offering duplex apartments in the district.

® Designed for building all high-rise houses (flat or penthouse) ranging from 89 to
143 sg.m..

* The system of “Boutique Building 3.5” perfectly demonstrates the developer’s
care to the product details, among which the roof garden and the balcony for
clothes drying are rare designs in Nanjing.

® “You Life Store” will be built to provide the owners with 24-hour convenience.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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YUZHOU ROYAL SEAL HEFEI
=

| e XE (=]
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&MN

Site Area:
T HEGE

sg.m.
156,667 Tk
Total GFA:
HRFREEMEGE ¢

sqg.m.
470,000 5%
Architectural Form: high rise, garden

house, commercial units
BEFE:BE  FRE  BE

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages I2IRE BAIER
e The project is located at the intersection of Fanhua Avenue and Zhurong e IFE(REBREERNEHMARBMBRINE - FAAMEMA

Road, standing at the gate of Southwest of Hefei. It is situated along o AIRAREIR B0 7SR AR 4R - BEARAE I3
Metro line No.7, and is adjacent to the Metro line No.3 under construction, SRAR - MEZRIFTRE - FREK - SIES  HEXKE=
connecting four main roads comprising 3 longitudinal roads and 1 Ht—RRVQEIR T =58 o FIR IR - K2 - BAZR
horizontal road, i.e. Chuangxin Avenue, Feicui Road, Jinzhai Road, Bi% - ARESNAEBIRG - ZRARMEDH -
and Fanhua Avenue. Around the project are four business district, i.e. BEEFE I -

Zhonghuancheng, University City, Pearl Plaza as well as Hong Kong and
Macao Plaza with several shuttle bus lines across the city and prosperous
life within reach.

Planning and Design #R &I5¢5t

¢ Yuzhou Royal Seal is constructed in two phases, comprising Art Deco high @M e REHMEZERFAE - =F—HiArt Decom

rises in Phase | and brown stone houses and English-style blocks in Phase B —HBAFE  EhEABEHREREZEERE 8%
II, with facilities of 9-class kindergarten and wet market of 2,000 sq.m.. The QI E ~ 2,000 BEMIHFEE o LB EE
elegant life concept is inherited from European architectural style. B - EABEEEES

—z
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YUZHOU CENTRAL TOWN
* PR

=i

80

Geographical Environment 8321815

® Yuzhou Central Town is located at the intersection between Xinbengbu
Road and Wuliu Road in Xinzhan District, and in the center of the “141 city
ancillary blocks”, integrated into the main town, facing Yaohai, connecting
Xinzhan, and linking the north town. The project is next to Wuliu Road
Station along the extension line of Subway Line 1. Two main streets, being
Xinbengbu Road and Wuliu Road, meet here to provide highly convenient
transportation.

Planning and Design R &5 5t

e Total GFA around 340,000 sg.m., consisting of a French-style central
residence area and a British-style community block. Fully upgraded multi-
function, high-quality and much comfort to redefine town.

® The project’s self-built British-style double-ground-floor block with a
GFA of 55,000 sg.m. brings in light-luxury living quality and lifestyle. Its
enrich experiences of all sectors, all fashion, around the clock and by
all access, are creating exotic commercial streets with Yuzhou'’s unique
characteristics.

® A kindergarten with a GFA of 3,500 sq.m. providing international pre-
school education.

* Dominated by units with the average area ranging from 78 to 112 sq.m..

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

HEFEI

(=]~
PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

Site Area:
THEER ¢

sg.m.
97,467 Frx
Total GFA:
MR IR ¢

sg.m.
341,135 w»x

Architectural Form:

high-rise residential, commercial strest
=2 517

=EEE  mEE

o BN o Fr S (L HT A [ T IR B E Y R KE R R
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YUZHOU LUCCA TOWN XIAMEN
=i

I

E-E/\$E EP

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
HEBN

Site Area:
THbEFE :

sg.m.
54,323  wix
Total GFA:
YRIREEE IR ¢

sq.m.

136,000 7%

Architectural Form:

R A
Villa/Upper/Bungalow/Business
RE &E/ FE

Geographical environment 3I2IR%

* Yuzhou Lucca Town is located at the intersection between the Hongzhong o BN o ER/NAEMRIL XHE R L EXERE
Road in the recreational and educational district of Xiang’an and the Puwei EHEZIER - EITENEERE -
Road, adopting the Italian architectural style as its main design.

Project Highlight EE 5%
e The project is characterised by the ingenious design that turns a 14 meters s HEZARGER  TazxmE 1 ORAEH E -

height hillside into a terrace, creating the only project that features Italian style LB HITEXEPIE — B ER - [
terrace villas in Xiamen. Across the community, a sunken commercial street is BEdEA K TIRBAEANEESEERES
built to separate the residential high-rises area from the villas area, forming two F - TEMEASATENHR - FREEEREX
independent and distinctive districts featured with various unique scenic spots WEESESE  EMPORRBEEES P
with different levels, offering a recreational living place with cultural flavors in the BREIRT5E220F H K ZEE » FFE RRIE -

new city center. Housing units are designed to be residential high-rises, garden
houses and villas with the size ranging from 75 to 220 sg.m..

P %
sdtds
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FUZHOU
=Pl

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

YUZHOU ORIENTAL VENICE
=i

* RO BEH

Site Area:
T E T

sg.m.
706,397 1%
Total GFA:
HRFEEREAS ¢

sg.m.
549,185 +xx

Architectural Form: Residential high-
rises and villas
B mEET - RIE

Geographical Environment 1 BIRE
s HAMNEETHE [AFZH] ®R LR -

® | ocated at Chengmen and Luozhou of Cangshan District, which is known

as “the Town of Confucianism,” the project is in proximity to the first subway
line of Fuzhou and is only 1.6 km away from the subway station. Despite the
isolation from the busy world, the project can reach the city with 15 minutes
to Zhongting Street and 20 minutes to Dongjiekou. With the well-developed
traffic network, this project provides great convenience for its owners. Blessed
with a great natural environment, the project is embraced by Wulong River on
three sides and by thick tangerine forest on one side. Along the north coast of
Waulong River, there is a coastline which has a length of approximately 1,750
meters (east-west length of 1,700 meters and average north-south length
of approximately 500 meters). The project also utilizes water resources by
drawing running water from Wulong River to construct the 200-mu natural and
ecological internal lake, which creates a high-quality natural living environment
consisting of a lake inside the project and a river outside it for owners of every
unit to overlook the river and live near water.

Planning and Design R &35t

¢ Oriental Venice Phase II- the “Duke Island” villas has a wide variety of housing
units. It has a total overall site area of 143,653 sg.m., with a total saleable GFA
of 58,065 sqg.m., building density of only 15.5% and greenery coverage of up
to 41.3%.

SN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

N —# o N EIEEIRRE Bk E
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YUZHOU COMMERCIAL PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS
BNEERERE

YUZHOU PLAZA XIAMEN
BRiMES EPS

Geographical Location 3IBTE

® The project is situated at the heart of Xiamen CBD, a gathering place of
government institutions, financial agencies and business circles, and is
15-minute drives from Gaogi International Airport, Xiang’an Tunnel and the
International Conference & Exhibition Center, 8-minute drive from Haicang
Bridge and the train station, and 5-minute drive from the ferry terminal.

Project Highlights IEE =25

® | akeside view at hand: With its building by Yundang Lake, the project has a nearty 4,000
sg.m. outdoor green plaza connected to the boardwalk of the lakeside park.

* Premium facilities: Supreme lobby with a height of 10.3 meters, well-decorated office
space with a height of four meters, 12 high-speed Fuiitec elevators in efficient operation,
LOW-E insulating tempered glass and central air-conditioning with household-based
charging.

¢ Well-established business facilities: As Xiamen'’s sole super Class A office building with
a full lake view, the project is equipped with supreme business facilities such as high-end
conference centers, corporate exhibition halls, staff cafeterias, VIP elevators and a three-
storey smart car park — the largest of its kind by Yundang Lake.

e Star property service: The project adopts one-stop star service of customer-oriented
property management.

* Energy-saving and environmentally friendly: The project is decorated in the architectural
style of Art Deco and supported by a 5A smart system designed for intemational first-
class office buildings. The project is also energy-saving and environmentally friendly by
implementing the standard of green buildings.

o R EPIHREBEZLOME - ERRZRTH
B SRBEREAEE 150 BERIFEERE
5 PREE - BRGRPL - BOEZERAN
B AL 5D EE R IENGEE o

s HHEMERE - NEHEEE RN B HERK -
4,000 75 K FEINEACEI5EE AR N ERSE o

o HREMBIZLE 103K UFERLKE  4KES
BERATH 1205 tEaREHaBuES
EELOW-EPZ=(LIFE » P BP R -

s TEMBIME  mGmtL  ERE BT
ERE VIPEBER EEEFESEZEEY
HRANEEFOERBLE - REMME—2H

c ERMERY KA UXNERMESTER
% AERE -

o ERREERIR  BRAArt DecoZ iy S A EE[AR - AL
BEEFRRTEARB(LRL  ERER
A ERBEIRIR o
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YUZHOU WORLD TRADE CENTER XIAMEN
| o tHE I EP3

=i

Geographical Environment 1215

* Yuzhou World Trade Center occupies a supreme location, the intersection o BN o HE LR EPT KB ILFIEPT IR AR

between Xiamen Train Station and Xiamen BRT, with flourishing flows of people BRIER - HIEBENIEAE - AERARYR
and logistics. FARE ©

Project Highlights BB 5%

e Yuzhou World Trade Center is the first city complex project and the highest o BN o HERLEBEME RN MIRESEIEE -

landmark project for commerce and residence in Xiamen. Located in central thERFHEMRENEEETER - RmF
downtown, the Center integrates shopping, leisure and residence, forming a DEZOHER - £BEY - KB BER—B &
“World-Trade-Center Business Circle” across the area. ABEEAT [tEEmmEl -

e The project is composed of the 66,000 sg.m. and has two 43-storey high-rises e JH H 16.658 T 77 KAt B i MR 43 E # 8
which divided into two phases. World Trade Center enjoys well established =EREMAR - ZIEE D AWM - HEENESR
and premium leisure facilities in Xiamen City. Apart from securing a number of EFM&KAREENETRBEE - BBAE
anchor tenants such as Wal-Mart, Pizza Hut, MUJI, China Film Digital Cinema, ORI - MBE MU (BODR&GR) -+ ¥
Yourtime Books (£ & £ %), Haidilao Hot Pot, Watsons, Haagen-Dazs, TG =Z6EE  BEE  EBEK - BiRE
Starbucks, La Chapelle and Sushi Express, the center also introduced over B 2BE%R  NEBER  FHEZEEHEN
400 merchants with different sizes from various industries. PR AR T A00% AR NTRIZEEHERK ©

84 BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited



YUZHOU PLAZA
=i

=27

Geographical Environment I8R5

e Situated at the heart of Jingiao Development Zone, the project is adjacent to
Biyun and Lianyang International Communities, one street away from Office
Park Il, and 6 km away from Waigaoqgiao Free Trade Zone. That is a rare 5A
first-class smart office building at Jingiao CBD.

Project Highlights IHE 52 %5

® | ocated at the heart of Jingiao CBD, the project offers the advantage of a
three-minute drive to all facilities for international business and life central to
Biyun Community, with optimal resources of hotels, finance and commerce
and large-scale business circles.

* All the office space at Yuzhou Plaza is delivered with refined decoration. In a
clear height of 2.8 meters, the office space is equipped with VRV central air-
conditioning with flexible time-sharing and household-based control, which can
deliver a substantially higher efficiency and lower cost of air-conditioning.

® The overall project is designed in the principle of simplicity, modernity and
smoothness, with an exterior of full-glass curtain wall, an elegant and fashionable
style and sufficient attractiveness for business.

)y N
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Business and Landbank Summary
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Business and Landbank Summary

FXBERITHREBHE
YUZHOU COMMERCIAL PLAZA SHANGHAI
BMEEES L

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
BE&N

Site Area:
TGS ¢
sg.m.

40,911  5»x

Total GFA:
HRFEEEE AR ¢
sq.m.

110,460 Fix

Geographical Environment/Location Advantages #1285 BAIER
e The project is located in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, 16 kilometers away e HAMM EETHRENE - BEEARKSE16A

from Pudong Airport, and 10 minutes’ walk to Subway Line 16. Transportation B ME16RASITI0ONE R E - WMEF - ™
convenient and radiate in all directions. It's also 20 minutes’ drive to Disneyland B o MR TEREE - BEER20HE - £
and 10 minutes’ drive to Shanghai Wild Animal Park. Its superior geographical BEABYERE10DE - EUNIENE KX
location will bring tremendous business opportunities with its regional value ZXIEEEBEHEEROE RS -
transformation.

Project Highlights IEE =24
e Its smart shopping plaza, covering a floor area of 60,000 sg.m., features e GEFRMEEBYMESI [T - T47E]

the themes of “fast-paced city, slow-paced life” by introducing smart and BERE  SIARABRESHBENEEEER -
interactive services provided by feifan.com and rongyc.com, creating a one- ITEEEM - BY - &k - RERE KTV &2
stop shopping mall with supermarket, cinema, KTV, gym and plenty of options FoREEEN—WUNEYTL - BRIEKNA
for shopping, dining, child entertainment and education. It is now the signature EEEmEE R R -

commercial building in Huinan Area.

Al
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Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMWEREEE

YUZHOU CENTRAL PLAZA HEFEI
=i

I

PRES ’ =]

Project Description MI2IRE

e Total GFA around 1,200,000 sg.m., among which the commercial floor area s HEMBEEME12087 B EEREEEL

is about 360,000 sg.m., located at the intersection between Changjiangdong RB6ETT - MRLHE T RIT R AR R G E
Road and Liaoyuan Road of Feidong County in Hefei City, Anhui Province, RERXO: HBREGERSGHEEZENEE 2
and enjoyed seamless connection with the ground areas above Metro Line FERREZNESETENEEE  ABKES
2. It is the bridgehead connecting the old town of Feidong County and Hefei AEEREME—IRRAC R EA L - BERER A D20
City, meanwhile being the only modern commercial center for the eastern part 8 o ZIA B EMREIZ108 75 Shoppingmall * &
of Hefei City, covering over 200,000 population in the surrounding areas. The SEFEAMRE  FUAEGERMEREEEF
commercial planning of this project contains a 100,000 sg.m. Shoppingmall Do BB REE . RE KB BY - FES
and an 80,000 sg.m. Diamond Block, and is positioned to be the chief RBHREEEERAE -

comprehensive living center for Hefei Dongcheng and to be a large commercial
complex integrating catering, entertainment, children, leisure, shopping,
accommodation into one.

Project Highlights EE =25

e Central Plaza mall focuses on the unprecedented fashion brand portfolio and o ok IS mall A SR BT FT R B R i A4 &
ok,
Be

intelligent operation management to offer one-stop shopping experience. Its BELBLEEEAZD - —UABYEEER
coverage includes diversified sectors, such as supermarkets, cinemas, brand BEXRAEE Bk mEEEE - ZER
collection outlets, children entertainment, sport and leisure, international % EHKE  BERER - MRk - B2
catering, fashion clothing, theme catering and living facilities, so as to reshape R AEERESES b ERE - EBRFEAER
the commercial landscape of Dongcheng and to bring a brand new lifestyle to B RRWHEBEERDFEETR o

the consumers in Dongcheng.

e The Diamond Block of Central Plaza is the first block offering open-experience s FAESEATRAEERRAERTR 28
to people, which comprises of an all-in-one street (i.e. Block A, B and C) for A-BMC=iRmEBR &M - MAR - B -
commercial experience. By integrating five functional sectors (i.e. catering, =% SR AINEEZERE - Hishopping mallfzak
shopping, enjoyment, entertaining and education) and forming interconnection BHE®R - R - EEEARE [=h—88)
exchange with shopping mall, it will bring a brand new “trinity” experience of K2 FTRERR o

consolidating culture, commerce and leisure to customers.

—m_x
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHERIMEEHE
Average
Land Cost
Project Site Area Location per GFA  Address
¥
HE THEE NE BEME i
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(F77K) (ARM/FHK)
Completed Projects
ExTEA
Yuzhou Overseas City 27,703 Xiamen 830  North of the Junction of Hexiang West Road and Hubin
Bl o EFETRM EF West Road, Siming District
PHAEREAREBERERI X O4EE
Yuzhou Shuilian Manor 12,909 Xiamen 910  West of Jinshang Road North
=M o AKE LT B EaolSlas gl
Yuzhou Hai Tian Plaza 6,316 Xiamen 396  Xiagang Yongfugong, Siming District
Bl o BRES EM BHREEEXES
Yuzhou Harbour City 20,089 Xiamen 761 Hubin North Road, Siming District
ey Y Foipit EM BRERELK
Yuzhou New City 25,610 Xiamen 647  Haotou, Dongdu, Huli District
SMFTE EFd MERFERE
Yuzhou Garden 27,345 Xiamen 586  Jinshang Road, Huli District
SMEE &M NEE SR
Yuzhou Galaxy Garden 26,367 Xiamen 1,718  Fanghu, Huli District
=il o ZMTEE EM R R
Yuzhou New Manor 45,619 Xiamen 498  No. 414—417, Nanshan Road, Huli District
eV EEn) EFM B ILREA14— 4175
Yuzhou World Trade Center 19,454 Xiamen 845  No. 75, Xiahe Road
B o B =1 ERBET55%
Yuzhou Golden Seacoast 70,793 Xiamen 1,590  West of Xinggang Road, Haicang District
B e EERERE EF RS EE R T
Yuzhou University City 90,750 Xiamen 932  Tongji Road, Xike Town, Tong'an District
Sl o K2 EF9 (R % & PO 1] L[] 6% 3%
Yuzhou Castle above City 52,715 Xiamen 1,273 Fanghu, Huli District
M o 5 EFM AR
Yuzhou Sunshine City 22,868 Xiamen 1,301 North of Wulv Road, West of Tongsheng Road,
=il o B TEM =9 Tong'an Industrial Zone
Rz TREPEEREILA - REEAR
Yuzhou Golf 55,986 Xiamen 1,165 Maqing Road, Haicang District
Sl e BBX EFM BEREEFR
88 BMwERGERAT
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHRITHBEHRE
Total Sold GFA Total Unsold GFA
HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for

Total Total Sold Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only  Reserve the Project GFA
HWoE g2 2& HWARE NG| EB

BBEMEE HE CREEE RAXEEE EE HEHE BERE  THEE  ERGh EEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
() (%) (k) (k) (FK) (%) (B5K) (F5K) % (FHK)
236,745 235,644 235,644 — 1,101 — 1,101 1,101 100% 1,101
27,325 27,325 27,325 — — - - — 100% -
64,575 63,359 63,359 — 1,216 355 861 1,216 100% 1,216
186,013 186,013 186,013 — — — — — 100% —
90,770 87,144 87,144 — 3,626 262 3,364 3,626 100% 3,626
92,119 90,042 89,753 289 2,077 385 1,692 2,366 100% 2,366
91,689 91,463 91,463 — 226 226 — 226 100% 226
118,652 118,590 118,590 — 62 62 — 62 100% 62
182,640 133,049 131,872 1177 49,591 491 49,100 50,768 100% 50,768
226,679 195,029 189,048 5,981 31,650 — 31,650 37,631 100% 37,631
467,112 445,259 444,818 441 21,853 14,757 7,096 22,294 100% 22,294
231,017 218,978 167,604 51,374 12,039 9,281 2,758 63,413 100% 63,413
72,257 59,671 59,559 112 12,586 12,586 — 12,698 100% 12,698
114,574 78,337 75,731 2,606 36,237 36,237 — 38,843 100% 38,843

—z
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Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMREBEHES

Project

HH

Yuzhou Shoreline

Bl B

Yuzhou Cloud

Top International
Bl o« ETEEIR
Yuzhou Plaza

BMNES

Yuzhou Central Coast

Bl e FRIER

Yuzhou Jingiao International
Bl o SRR
Yuzhou Plaza

BMES

Yuzhou Commercial Plaza

Bl e BAXES

Yuzhou City Plaza
BN ES
Yuzhou Skyline
Bl o K37

Yuzhou Jade Lakeshire

Bl o B53RHE

Yuzhou Gushan No. One

B o ZI—5%

Sub-total
N

90

Site Area

THEE

(sa.m.)

(FIK)

107,622

15,652

3,333

123,240

49,738

6,818

40,911

50,628

446,757

95,978

234,160

1,679,361

BMBEROAERAT

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Location

vE

Xiamen

EF]

Xiamen

JEF]

Xiamen

EF]

Xiamen

JEF]

Shanghai
i
Shanghai
£B

Shanghai
i

Shanghai
£B
Hefei
Bl

Hefei

ahe

Fuzhou
&M

Average

Land Cost

per GFA

¥

BEE
(RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥,/FHK)

3,560

3,174

2,417

2,225

1,242

2,620

2,367

1,445

388

1,755

1,831

1,354

Address

3k

Area of 05—11, East of Xinggang Road and North of
Jiaosong Road, Haicang District
BERS—1RE - BERUR - ASKALL
South of West Liangian Road, West of Yundingzhong
Road, Siming District
BRERERAKER - ZTRPEAR

North of Minggong Building, Hubin South Road, Siming
District

BHREREES AEILA

Area of 11—10, East of Xingbin Road and North of
Xingdong Road, Jimei District
EXEBN—10FBRABBRA - BAREILA

No. 333 Jin'gang Road, Pudong New Area
THRR S HK3335%

Qiu 3/6, Qiu 2, No 9 Street, Jingiao Export Processing
Zone, Pudong New Area
HRFESELOMTROEHSEE 2

No 9868 Hunan Road, Nanhui Industrial Park,Pudong
New Area

HRATR A E T ¥ B R A 986855

Site A0408, College Community, Lin'gang New Town
H 78 #T BB it RA0403H 52

West of Songlin Road, Northeast of Planning Road,
Ranfang Village, Taohua Town, Feixi County

FEFE S IER A S BRI -

TAMRER LATE

East of Ziyun Road, South of Feicui Road, Taohua
Town,Feixi County
PEFRGMIEE R TR IAR - FRE AR

Niushan Village, Yangli, Gushan Town, Jin’an District
SREsLEFEFL



Total Sold GFA

Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMWEREEE

Total Unsold GFA

HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Total Sold Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only  Reserve the Project GFA
HWoE g2 g2 HWARE NG| EB
BBEMEE HE CREEE RAXEEE EE HEHE BERE  THEE  ERGh EEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
(Eax)  (FK)  CEAR) (FaK) (FK)  (FAK) (FAK) (FFAK) %  (FFK)
421,316 332,828 332,339 489 88,488 74,088 14,400 88,977 100% 88,977
71,214 52,708 48,482 4,226 18,506 — 18,506 22,732 100% 22,732
57,861 — — — 57,861 — 57,861 57,861 100% 57,861
615,331 558,337 552,234 6,103 56,994 31,994 25,000 63,097 100% 63,097
230,955 195,747 173,406 22,341 35,208 2,493 32,715 57,549 100% 57,549
28,624 — — — 28,624 — 28,624 28,624 100% 28,624
110,460 61,678 57,683 3,995 48,782 22,931 25,851 52,777 100% 52,777
98,494 15,205 5,071 10,134 83,289 48,012 35,277 93,423 100% 93,423
1,187,376 1,084,842 1,058,282 26,560 102,534 5,234 97,300 129,094 100% 129,094
287,934 283,929 264,454 19,475 4,005 4,005 — 23,480 100% 23,480
79,923 64,821 64,425 396 15,102 15,102 — 15,498 100% 15,498
5,391,655 4,679,998 4,524,299 155,699 711,657 278,501 433,156 867,356 867,356
Annual Report 2016 SR-AEER
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHERIMEEHE
Average
Land Cost
Project Site Area Location per GFA  Address
¥
BHH THEE NE BEME i
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(F77K) (ARE/FIK)
Projects Under
Development
ERER
Yuzhou International Hotel 60,018 Xiamen 1,175  East of Huli Avenue, South of Huandao East Road, Huli
SMNEEABE B District
HERIRSREAR - HERBEIAR
Yuzhou Riverside City Town 284,414 Xiamen 1,556  Area of 12—07, North of Movie & TV City, South
BN o IR M B Wuxian Area, tong'an District
RZ@12—-07 A A REARBALH
Haicang Dream Town 189,752 Xiamen 2,773  Northwest of the Intersection with Wengjiao Road and
TERERUA EF Xinyang Bridge, Haicang District
BRRS AR ENG B X ATEILEA
Chunjiang Central 70,109 Xiamen 8,979  South of the junction of Xinglin North Road and Xingjin
BB EFM Road, Jimei
SERAMILEEATREZ X A
Yuzhou Lucca Town 54,323 Xiamen 12,059  Southeast of the junction of Xiyan Road and Honggian
Bl o EFR/NE EFd Central Road, Xiang'an
ALRREERELA PRI X OREA
Yuzhou Bustling Center 55,017 Shanghai 10,405  North of Huancheng Road, East of Liuhu Road, Juyuan
Bl e EHE = New District, Jiading District
RERBEFRYVAEIAR « R
Yuzhou Beautiful Garden Life 31,139 Shanghai 9,104  East of Chengliu Road, West of Chuangxi Road,
EMe THE s Xuhang Town, Juyuan New District, Jiading District
SERERRBRITEERARRMA
Uiyl
92 BMwERGERAT
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Total
GFA

REEmR

(sa.m.)

(F1%)

102,142

559,276

545,229

305,160

136,000

126,540

56,051

Total Sold GFA

Total Unsold GFA

HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Sold  Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment
GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only
= g2 2& HWARE
HE CREEE RAXEEE HE BEHEE BERE
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.)
(Eax)  (FAK)  CEAR) (FAK) (FK) (FAXK)
— — — 102,142 — 102,142
299,641 288,739 10,902 259,635 179,135 80,500
545,229 427,813 117,416 — — —
143,409 141,305 2,104 161,751 76,751 85,000
87,171 19,443 67,728 48,829 48,829 —
107,315 — 107,315 19,225 19,225 —
5,126 — 5,126 50,925 50,925 —

Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMWEREEE

Land Interestin Attributable

Reserve the Project GFA
A e

TifE  Emhh B2EEE
(sq.m.) % (sq.m.)
(FHAK) % (FHK)
102,142 100% 102,142
270,537 100% 270,537
117,416 20% 23,483
163,855 51% 83,566
116,557 100% 116,557
126,540 100% 126,540
56,051 100% 56,051
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHERIMEEHE
Average
Land Cost
Project Site Area Location per GFA  Address
¥
BHH THEE NE BEME i
(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.)
(F77K) (ARS/Fr)
Yuzhou Noble Mansion 109,266 Shanghai 13,242  East of Daye Road and South of Puxing Road, East of
Bl ¢ EEfT i) Xianpu Road, Jinhui Town, Fengxian District
ZECEEAEARRAINBE REREA -
BERRA
Yuzhou Country 41,262 Shanghai 28,972  South of Yinchun Road and West of Fuguo Road,
RN fimis] Magjao Town, Minhang District
RTRSBHERER U - SRBIAR
Yuzhou Central Plaza 279,535 Hefei 1,421 South of Changjiangdong Road, East of Liaoyuan
Bl e FRES & Road, East Urban District
REpmE R TRER « BRER
Yuzhou Royal Seal 156,667 Hefei 2,825  South of Fanhua Avenue, West of Taishan Road,
EM e KEE e Taohua Town, Feixi County
FEFE SR IER S R EAR - RILFELAT
Yuzhou Town 36,387 Hefei 3,900  North of Yangtze River West Road, West of Fanwa
SBIMN = Road, Shushan District
R R IR - BZERAR
Yuzhou Central Town 97,467 Hefei 4,286  Intersection of Xin Beng Bu Road and Wu Liu Da Dao
M o R Bl Road, Xinzhan District
Fuh @ 3 R R AR AB R X O
Yuzhou Sky Aqua Mall 49,126 Hefei 4,831  Southeast of the junction of Wuliu Road and New
Bl e KX & Bengbu Road, Xinzhan District
Ry E R EERTOREA
Yuzhou Langxi Community 93,956 Hefei 10,170  East of Langxi Road and North of Minghuang Road,
Bl e BELE & Longgang Plate, Yaohai District
EBRERERBEDERRIAR - B2
Yuzhou Jade Green Bay 23,705 Hefei 12,121  South of Xin'anjiang Road and west of Yueliangwan
BN o BEIHE & Park, Longgang Plate, Yaohai District
5 R BE IR B R 2T B AR
A B AR
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHRITHBEHRE
Total Sold GFA Total Unsold GFA
HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Total Sold Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only  Reserve the Project GFA
HWoE g2 2& HWARE NG| EB
BBEMEE HE CREEE RAXEEE EE HEHE BERE  THEE  ERGh EEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
(ERx)  (FK) CEAR) (FaK) (FAK) (FAR) (FAXK) (FFK) % (FAXK)
174,826 — — — 174,826 174,826 — 174,826 40% 69,930
90,776 — — - 90,776 90,776 - 90,776 40% 36,310

918,698 517,641 489,431 28,210 401,067 301,057 100,000 429,267 100% 429,267

470,000 276,136 — 276,136 193,864 193,864 — 470,000 49% 230,300
109,160 74,250 1,814 72,436 34,910 33,126 1,784 107,346 51% 54,746
341,135 140,325 - 140,325 200,810 200,810 — 341,136 100% 341,135
144,923 — - — 144,023 144,923 - 144,923 100% 144,923
234,889 - - — 234,880 234,889 — 234,889 50% 116,481

59,263 - - - 59,263 59,263 - 59,263 50% 29,389

—z
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Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMREBEHES

Project

HH

Yuzhou Galaxy Park
Bl o 88/ Park

Yuzhou Moon Lake Mansion

B o FHIKA

Yuzhou Prince Lakeshire
=M o BEFIHED
Yuzhou Oriental Venice
Bl o« F B EAT
Yuzhou Cambridge Town
=il o BlEER

Yuzhou The Jiging
BlMe EEE

Yuzhou Moon Riverside

Bl o B AE L

Yuzhou King's Garden
Bl o MERE

96

Site Area

R

(scim)
(FIK)
119,023

56,114

133,667

706,397

54,507

41,494

17,199

28,257

BMBEROAERAT

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Location

vE

Hefei
&

Hefei
SIE

Bengbu
i
Fuzhou
M
Fuzhou
&M

Nanjing
BR

Nanjing
R

Nanjing
BN

Average

Land Cost

per GFA

¥

BEE
(RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥,/FHK)

5,100

11,086

660
2,846

4,256

16,657

13,567

16,389

Address

3k

Southeast of the junction of Xiaocheng Road and Wuliu
Road, Xinzhan District

s R YR A B R AR A

North of Tianshi Road and West of Kaifu Road,
Shushan Economy Develpoment District
HILEERZEERME AL - BREIAA

South of City Hall, West of Longhu Road
BUrFEa Al - BE 9 EE PRl

Longjiang Village, Chengmen Town, Cangshan District
A LEPIEE I

North of Wenbidonglu, West of Qiming Middle School,
Lianjiang County,
BTHXEREILAE - BT 2REA

West of Fengtainanlu, north of Xinglong Street,
Yuhuatai District
MERRBAEKAR - ®EA4LA

Shangjiao Street, North of Qinhuai New River, Yuhuatai
District

WMIERREREE - FENTLA

North of Shengtai Road, East of Shengtai 14 Road,
Binjiang Development Zone, Jiangning District

TERERBARAL - BA T AR LR



Total
GFA

REEER

(sqm)
(F73K)
357,069

100,981

668,333

549,185

136,268

112,865

30,957

61,626

Total Sold GFA

Total Unsold GFA

HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Sold  Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment
GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only
= g2 2& HWARE
HE CREEE RAXEEE HE BEHEE BERE
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.)
(Eax)  (FAK)  CEAR) (FAK) (FK) (FAXK)
— — — 357,069 357,069 —
— — — 100,981 100,981 —
170,928 150,395 20,533 497,405 497,405 —
345,582 289,844 55,738 203,603 187,870 15,733
126,706 — 126,706 9,562 9,562 -
76,620 — 76,620 36,245 36,245 —
2,085 — 2,085 28,872 28,872 —
7,591 — 7,591 54,035 54,035 —

Business and Landbank Summary

EERITHEEHNE
Land Interestin Attributable
Reserve the Project GFA
NG EB
TihfEfE  Embte  EEESE
(sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
(FAxX) % (FAXK)
357,069 49% 174,964
100,981 36% 36,353
517,938 100% 517,938
259,341 100% 259,341
136,268 100% 136,268
112,865 100% 112,865
30,957 100% 30,957
61,626 40% 24,650
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHERIMEEHE
Project Site Area
BE TEE
(sq.m.)
(FAK)
Yuzhou Lakeside 52,763
Bl e EHNE
Yuzhou Riverside Sapphire 145,330
Bl e BT
Yuzhou Xiangcheng Project 128,313
SMERM B E B
Yuzhou Radiance Central 45,128
Mansion
Bl e 1EE
Yuzhou Palace Country 135,173
=il o BRF
Yuzhou Royal Lakeshire 109,090
=i o A
Yuzhou Joy Country 42,387
Sl o AT
Yuzhou Castle above City 100,878
M o 3 3k
Yuzhou City Plaza 428,188
BN ES
Yuzhou Caine Road Project 278
VIS ERELE
Sub-total 3,976,329
et
98 BN E R B RA

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Location

vE

Nanjing
BN

Hangzhou

M

Suzhou
EM

Fuzhou
&M

Tianjin

R

Tianjin

AV

Tianjin
R
Longyan
RS
Quanzhou
S
Hong Kong
&k

Average

Land Cost

per GFA

¥

BEE
(RMB/sg.m.)
(AR¥,/FHK)

3,661

13,738

6,585

12,590

1,060

1,062

4,456
1,921
374

135,140

4,326

Address

3k

East of Jinsang Road,South of weiliu Road, Binjiang
Development Zone, Jiangning District
TEBTHEEL=RUAR - @ AR
Intersection of Fenghua East Road and Wutong Road,
West Lake District

PR SR R BRAR A B O X R

Beigiao Street, West of Louyan Road, South of
Zhongjing Road, Xiangcheng District

BB ILEEE - EniREaA - PSEEA

South of Minjiang Road and North of South Second
Ring, Yantai Area, Cangshan District
AlLEERLRE  BIXKERA - BRI
South of Beihua Road, East of Guihua Chunxi Avenue,
Jinghai New Town
eI EREA - REEEERA

East of Tuanbo Road, South of Duliujian River South
Road, Tuanboxi District
EVHAREDEREUR - BRI EEAR
Tanggu New City, Binhai New District
BRI

East of Lianzhuang Road, Xinluo District
R E AR IR A

South New Zone of Huian County

BRHBATR

Caine Road 48, Central, Hong Kong
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Business and Landbank Summary

EHRITHBEHRE
Total Sold GFA Total Unsold GFA
HOEREME BREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Total Sold Delivered Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only  Reserve the Project GFA
HWoE g2 2& HWARE NG| EB
BBEMEE HE CREEE RAXEEE EE HEHE BERE  THEE  ERGh EEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
(ERx)  (FK) CEAR) (FaK) (FAK) (FAR) (FAXK) (FFK) % (FAXK)
116,076 25,515 — 25,515 90,561 90,561 — 116,076 49% 56,877
298,733 — — — 298,733 298,733 — 298,733 49% 144,886
230,963 — — — 230,963 230,963 — 230,963 100% 230,963
137,409 — — — 137,409 137,409 — 137,409 66% 90,690
319,748 235,193 136,038 99,155 84,555 84,555 — 183,710 100% 183,710
130,908 102,083 71,022 31,061 28,825 28,825 — 59,886 100% 59,886
76,296 — — — 76,296 76,296 76,296 100% 76,296
312,330 297,730 109,508 188,222 14,600 — 14,600 202,822 100% 202,822

1,425,866 501,832 394,401 107,431 924,034 765,314 158,720 1,031,465 100% 1,031,465

2,214 — — — 2,214 2,214 — 2,214 100% 2,214

9,441,895 4,088,108 2,519,753 1,668,355 5,353,787 4,795,308 558,479 6,922,142 5,604,503

—m
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Business and Landbank Summary

FHERITMREBEHES

Project

BH

Projects Held for Future
Development
FAEHEER
Yuzhou Xiang'an Com/
Offi Project
BINALEIIER
Yuzhou Jimei Guankou
Project
BINEEENIER

Yuzhou Jinshan Project

BMEIRE

Yuzhou Jiangning
Project G59
BIMIEIEEG59
Yuzhou Yuhuatai
Project G71
BMRIERTERGT
Yuzhou Gaoxin Project
SMEHIER

Yuzhou Xiging Project
SMEEEE
Yuzhou Wuhan Project

SMREER

Yuzhou Zhangzhou Project
SINEMIER

Sub-total
Nat

Total
fE4a

Projects with Primary Land
Development
Qualification

ME— R+ HEREEN
HH

Yuzhou City Plaza

M T S

Total
B

100

Site Area

R
sam)
(FHHK)

8,264

42,656

174,814

61,145

14,221

100,839

90,756

168,617

100,067

761,369

6,417,059

478,225

478,225

BMNtERGERAF

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Location

vE

Xiamen

EF]

Xiamen

EF]

Shanghai
9!

NanjirE

R

NanjirE

R

Suzhou
ERM

Tianjin
AR
Wuhan
%

Zhangzhou
M

Quanzhou

FM

Average
Land Cost
per GFA

P4
BHLE
(RMB/sq.m.)
(T FHK)
3,013

32,825

1,324

3,717

11,610

8,866

7,246

6,000

2,400

6,517

3,592

NA

Address
3l

Intersection of Xiang’an Avenue and Xiang’an West
Road, Southern part of Xiang'an New Town
LB AL REE LB XM

Eest of Anren Avenue, West of Xuefu Road, North of
Guankou Middle School, West area of Guankou East,
Jimei District
EXRENRIAR - RCRBUR - BK

PATE - EOFRELIL

Site 2988, North of Tingfeng Road, Zhujing Town,
Jinshan District

TR RTET AR 1208855 i3k

West of Jingsan Road, South of Weiliu Road, Binjiang
Development Zone, Jiangning District
TEEETRERCZRAR - 5K A™E

South of Jiangguan Road and West of Xichun Road,
Tiexin Qiao Road, West Sothern part of Yuhuatai
MIEA B OBEE T RENAE - AFRUA
Intersection of Zhenshan Road and Zhenbei Road,
Tongan Town, Gaoxin District
SRATEALIREAEIRIA

South of Binhai Park, Zhangjiawo Town, Xiging District
AE5RRREHEEEAERA

Economy and Technology Develpoment District,
Wuhan

REEBERMRER

South of Zhanghua Central Road, West of Lianke
harbour, Urban district

MRZEERPIEUAR - EREREA

No 1 Yingbig Avenue, Chengnan Industrial Zone, Huian
B G RDEXER




Business and Landbank Summary

EHRITHBEHRE
Total Sold GFA Total Unsold GFA
BEEEREHE BAREEE
Sold and Total Held for
Total Total Sold Delivered  Pre-sold Unsold Held for Investment Land Interestin Attributable
GFA GFA GFA GFA GFA  Sale Only Only  Reserve the Project GFA
HwoE 28 28 BWARE D] i)
HEEWE HE CREEE RAXERE miE  EMERE  BMERE LffEE EXRE E2EER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) (sa.m.) % (sa.m.)
(FErk)  (FHK)  CERK) (FrK)  (FF5K)  FERK) (FFK)  (FFK) % (FRK)
89,300 89,300 — 89,300 89,300 100% 89,300
85,300 85,300 85,300 — 85,300 51% 43,503
211,418 211,418 211,418 - 211,418 100% 211,418
134,520 134,520 134,520 — 134,520 51% 68,605
61,152 61,152 61,152 - 61,152 100% 61,152
221,847 221,847 221,847 — 221,847 100% 221,847
96,600 96,600 96,600 — 96,600 40% 38,640
598,179 598,179 598,179 — 598,179 100% 598,179
255,000 255,000 255,000 — 255,000 100% 255,000
1,753,316 — 1,753,316 1,664,016 89,300 1,753,316 1,587,644
16,586,866 8,768,106 7,044,052 7,818,760 6,737,825 1,080,935 9,542,814 8,059,504
701,885 701,885 701,885 — 701,885 100% 701,885
701,885 701,885 701,885 — 701,885 701,885

Annual Report 2016
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
KREIFRMR

Since its listing, the Company has gradually formed a scientific and
systematic management mechanism for investor relations after
plenty of exploration and practice, which serves as a bridge for
effective communication between the Company and the capital
market. Adhering to the disclosure principles of openness, fairmess,
transparency and multi-channel, the Company discloses its financial
and operation information to the capital market timely. It also listens
attentively to various suggestions and proposals with regards to
the Company’s management and operation in a proactive, sincere
and modest manner so as to improve the Company’s management
quality, enhance shareholders’ value and maximize their interests.
In 2016, the Corporate Finance and Investor Relations team of
Yuzhou Properties was awarded the “Best Investor Relations
Management Listed Company Award” at the 6th China Securities
Golden Bauhinia Awards Ceremony. In addition, Yuzhou Properties
ranked the fourth among” Top 10 Comprehensive Strength (Small
enterprise)”in the “2015 Hong Kong Stock Top 100” award list for
listed companies in Hong Kong, which moved up one position than
last year.

ADHERING TO TIMELY, JUST, FAIR AND
ACCURATE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Group strives to maintain a high level of transparency and
excellent corporate governance. Through the establishment of
an efficient communication system with investors, it facilitates
a win-win relationship with investors and the Group to enable
stakeholders, such as investors, analysts, credit rating agencies
and the media, to have access to the Group’s business philosophy,
business strategies and growth potentials, and thus gain wider
recognition from capital markets, which is conducive to the Group
for expanding its financing channels and reducing its financing
costs. To ensure transparency of its operations, the Group issued
press releases,monthly newsletters and announcements to
shareholders and stakeholders regularly.

102 BMBEROAERAT
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DEPLOYING INTERACTIVE MULTICHANNELLED
COMMUNICATION TO REALIZE EFFECTIVE
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Furthermore, for the year 2016, we held 23 non-deal road shows
covering Singapore, Hong Kong, Taipei, Seoul, Beijing, Shanghai
and Shenzhen, and participated in 17 investor summits or seminars
hosted by renowned investment banks or securities brokers.
Through holding face-to-face meetings, telephone conferences,
and project visits with investors, we communicated with analysts
and investors for over one thousand times, and actively and
accurately presented the operating performance and development
of the Group, which led to wider attention from the capital market.

Various renowned domestic and international investment banks
also included the Group into their research coverage and continued
to perceive optimistic prospects of the Group. Citi increased its
target price to HK$4 and maintained a “Buy” rating because of
the Group’s balanced growth, visible profitability and safe balance
sheet. Macquarie believed the 2016 results were better than
expected and that an estimated contracted sales target rising 30%
annually could be met, while maintaining the “Outperform” rating.
CIMB increased its target price to HK$4.5 and reaffirmed “Buy”
rating based on the Group’s strong fundamentals. BOCI reaffirmed
its “Buy” rating and upgraded its target price to HK$3.96 because
of the Group’s strong contracted sales and solid operational base.
ABCI also reaffirmed its “Buy” rating and increased its target price
to HK$3.90 due to the Group’s continuing outstanding results.
Fixed-income analysts from Bank of America Merrill Lynch and
HSBC also issued research reports, which again recommended
increasing holdings in its offshore high-yield USD senior notes.

Investor Relations

REERIMR

DREOHBRREEFHMEEN

tESh - 20165 - MMIEITT235ERFRIE - BE
g - &E - it B LR EEBMRY 2
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SHEENBIETHRES -

EREANINNEHEE MDD IR EBNAREEEE
C BRERNASEE - Hi - EERARFTI6FE
BARY) EERBTRRAERERE  LHABREZRLE
T R TEA] TR - BERERABLRFI6FEER
RIEE - FEERR BIRA7TF AL E S BIRFH30%M
BiZ - @5 (BEAT] 38 - BERBEN QR
EMEAE - FHABZEZR458T  #5F [BA] #F
o PIRBIBRERARAYNESHHENRENER
o LHEBEEREI.6ETL B [BEA] FIH - 2
REERARNAXERESE - LHABIREZRI.908
T ER [BA] I - EREMBELNESESN
RN RARRE - BRAEBEBRNER R WEE
TUER T -
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Investor Relations

REBRR

The company’s official website (http://ir.xmyuzhou.com.cn) has
always been the official channel for disclosing information. The
official WeChat platform of “Yuzhou Properties” Investor Relations
was launched and commenced operating in 2014, making Yuzhou
Properties the first company in the industry to launch an official
WeChat platform for investors, marking a debut in new media
communications for investor relations management. This WeChat
platform is aimed to serve as an effective bridge of communication
for the maintenance of investor relations, information exchanges
and inquiries handling, to pass on the Company’s strategies, new
products promotion, investor relations information, latest news of
the Group, industry news, housing market observations and value
investing information to investors, which obtained positive feedback
from various investors, journalists and peers. The era of Mobile
Internet is constantly changing the ways of communications and
the channels to obtain information. In addition to regular ways to
interact and communicate with investors and other information
disclosure channels, the new media communication platforms
including the WeChat platform have been extensively used. The
content and reach of our investor relations management continue to
expand so as to facilitate our corporate governance improvement
and market capitalization management.

The Group believes that effective handling of investor relations can
help reduce financing costs, improve the liquidity of the Company’s
shares and optimize its shareholder base.

SN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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OTHER NECESSARY INFORMATION FOR
SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to shareholding, such as transfer of shares,
change of name or address, and loss of share certificates should
be addressed in writing to the Registrar:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2862 8628

Facsimile: (852) 2529 6087

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Enquiry hotline during normal office hours:
Telephone: (852) 2508 1718

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts,
please contact:

Corporate Finance and Investor Relations Department,

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

Units 4905-06, 49/F, The Centre,

99 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2508 1718

Facsimile: (852) 2510 0265

Email: ir@xmyuzhou.com.cn

Investor Relations

REERIMR

HMRRANER

RERAEE
B MTAERONEEMRGBS - ERaHE
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TiE  (852) 2862 8628
{EE : (852) 2529 6087
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EE ¢ (852) 2508 1718

EH : (852) 2510 0265

B : ir@xmyuzhou.com.cn
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Investor Relations

REBRMR
LIST OF INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIESOF THE ~_S—N\FEREZHHREH—BX
COMPANY CONDUCTED IN 2016
HE ih 2 JEED
1 201651 A12H By FETOERBAPEFE2016
January 12, 2016 Beijing 14th Annual dbAccess China Conference 2016
2 201651 H13H b HERGEIR
January 13, 2016 Beijing Non Deal Roadshow
3 201641 H15H il HER IR
January 15, 2016 Shenzhen Non Deal Roadshow
4 2016%2H17-18H i 20167EIEF 13 ERARIREEFE
February 17-18, 2016 Hong Kong Citi 13th Annual Asia Pacific Investor Conference 2016
5 20164F3 A30H B BMHE2015F 2 FEBERHE
March 30, 2016 Hong Kong Yuzhou Properties 2015 Annual Result Presentation
6 201643A31A EF  HE R IR
AM of March 31, 2016  Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
7 2016%3A31A T  &HE FHERFIR
PM of March 31, 2016 Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
8 20164 A1H 3l FERGIR
April 1, 2016 Shenzhen Non Deal Roadshow
9 201654 A5H B HERFIE
April 5, 2016 Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
10 20164 A5H e REETES®
April 5, 2016 Hong Kong Investor Luncheon
11 201654 H6H FINE R HIIE
April 6, 2016 Singapore Non Deal Roadshow
12 20164F4A7H TN FHER IR
April 7, 2016 Singapore Non Deal Roadshow
13 201654 A19H BB RIREBEEREA
April 19, 2016 Hong Kong SWS Corporate Day
14 201654 H21-22H N EYBSFLEATPEFMESZ
April 21-22, 2016 Hong Kong HSBC 7th Annual Greater China Property Conference (HK)
15 2016%5H4H BB HERHHIR
May 4, 2016 Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
16 2016%5H16-17H ait HER IR
May 16-17, 2016 Taipei Non Deal Roadshow
17 201645H18H B 2B SN EIER R B
May 18, 2016 Hong Kong CIMB China property corporate day
18 2016%5A25H =P 2016 FBHEE AT RIS
May 25, 2016 Xiamen Guosen Securities Mid-term Strategic Conference 2016
19  2016%5A31H 5 BN E016FREEFRE
May 31, 2016 Hong Kong Yuzhou Properties 2016 AGM
106 BMLERGERAR
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Investor Relations

REERIMR

H o2 SEE
20  201646H14-15H B FHERFHIR
June 14-15, 2016 Seoul Non Deal Roadshow
21 201646H23-24H e TEFE T KR EHE &
June 23-24, 2016 Hong Kong Citi Asia Pacific Property Conference
22  201646H23-24H Sl AEEF2016FFH (b)) REKES
June 23-24, 2016 Beijing Haitong Securities 2016 Interim Strategic Conference (Beijing)
283 2016%F7H6-7H R~ B HER DR
July 6-7, 2016 Shenzhen/Shanghai  Non Deal Roadshow
24 2016%F7A12H HE AEEREmERER
July 12, 2016 Hong Kong Haitong International Property Corporate Day
25  2016%8A23H B BMHE2016F T HIRE RS
August 23, 2016 Hong Kong Yuzhou Properties 2016 Interim Results Announcement Presentation
26  2016%F8H24-26H HE HERFHIR
August 24-26, 2016 Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
27  2016%F9A1-2H EAIMIIE R HHE
September 1-2, 2016  Singapore Non Deal Roadshow
28  2016%9H6-8H B FERFHIR
September 6-8, 2016 Hong Kong Non Deal Roadshow
29  2016%9A13H wIY R HE
September 13, 2016 Shenzhen Non Deal Roadshow
30  20164F9AH22H i ZIEBFERIRBBERES
September 22, 2016 Shanghai Essence Securities Strategic Conference
31 20169F9H23H wI BEEFREBRES
September 23, 2016 Shenzhen China Merchant Securities SZ-HK Stock Connect Conference
32 20164 11H2-3A Big FIREM2016FFEIREEE
November 2-3, 2016 Beijing BAML 2016 China Conference
33 20165 11H3-4H il TEHEPEREEFS
November 3-4, 2016 Macau Citi’s China Investor Conference
34 20164 11H6H EF By [@RREE] REg
November 6, 2016 Xiamen Essence International Investment Strategy Conference
3  2016F11A10-11H  &FE FrEMsRERER
November 10-11, 2016 Hong Kong Nomura Asian High Yield Corporate Day
36 20169 11H21-23H MR &R B8 SME016FREERMKE
November 21-23, 2016 Nanjing/Hefei/ Yuzhou Properties 2016 Investor Reversed Roadshow
Shanghai
37  2016%F11H24-25H [EZp e SN E2016F i8R M)A
November 24-25, 2016  Nanjing/Shanghai Yuzhou Properties 2016 Media Reversed Roadshow
38 20169 12A7-8H el ERFFMEMOITFERES
December 7-8, 2016 Shenzhen HTSC 2017 Strategy Meeting
39 20164 12H20H =P DREGERR | BIMREES
December 20, 2016 Xiamen Oversea Investment Summit Carnival
40 20169 12H21H 3l HERHHIR
December 21, 2016 Shenzhen Non Deal Roadshow

—p_
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
EBEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS =y

The Board of Directors consists of seven Directors, of whom four ~ EE@HR7R/BEMANK  EF4LERITEE - EH43%
are executive Directors and the remaining three are independent ~ ABY IEFHNITES - EFZEZEMNTHTHRIBIF - &
non-executive Directors. The Directors are appointed for a term  ZHE€MEHA MBS R AAREAS T NREAE
not exceeding three years. The power and duties of our Board of ~ $R&EEESH TIE  PITREARE LRBRIRESE -
Directors include convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting &2 FE R PR ESKT 2 MIEENE - HIERMNEETE
the Board’s work at shareholders’ meetings, implementing ~ ENRE - HIE RPN FE D EIRER KIEnekm 7t
resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings, determining our ~ P& ARAIREE - LA R TE AL S T2 A4 KR40 8)3% F 1Y
business plans and investment plans, formulating our annual ~ HAb#E 1 - BRREREEE -

budget and final accounts, formulating our proposals for profit

distributions and for the increase or reduction of registered capital

as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as

conferred by our Memorandum and Articles of Association.

108 SN ERDBRAR
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Lung On (&%), aged 52, was designated as the Chairman
of our Board and our Executive Director on October 9, 2009.
He founded our Group in December 1994. He is also a member
of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of our Company. Since December 1994, Mr. Lam has held
positions including but not limited to chairman, deputy chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for overseeing the development planning
and strategic layout of the Group as well as the major decisions
on the investment and human resources of the Group. He has
over 20 years of experience in residential, commercial and
hotel property development and investment. In 2006, Mr. Lam
became an honorary citizen of Xiamen accredited by the mayor
of Xiamen. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Election Committee, a member of the
Standing Committee of the All-China Federation of Returned
Overseas Chinese, the Central Committee of the China Democratic
National Construction Association and a member of the Fujian
Committee and Tianjing Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the Director of the Proposal Committee of
the Provincial Association of Provincial CPPCC Members. Mr. Lam
also serves as the president of the Hong-Kong Xiamen Friendship
Union, the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian
Associations, the Honorary President of the Hong Kong Chinese
Importer’s & Exporter’s Association, executive deputy chairman of
the board of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation, the executive
deputy chairman of the China Federation of Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs, the Honorary President of Hong Kong Association
of Overseas Chinese Society, the visiting professor of the University
of Science and Technology of China and the executive director
and visiting professor of Jimei University. Mr. Lam graduated from
the University of Science and Technology of China with a master’s
degree in Engineering in November 1996. Mr. Lam is the spouse
of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive Director, and the brother
of Mr. Lin Longzhi, our Executive Director and brother-in-law Mr.
Lin Conghui, our Executive Director. Mr. Lam has not held any
directorship in any other public listed companies in the past three
years. Mr. Lam worked for Xiamen Land Development Company, a
state-owned enterprise, before he founded our Group.

Directors’ Biographies
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Directors’ Biographies

ESEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Kwok Ying Lan (383 B), aged 46, was designated as our
Executive Director on October 9, 2009. She is also the Deputy
Chairman of our Board. Since joining our Group in April 1997, Ms.
Kwok has held positions including but not limited to chairman,
director and general manager in most of our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for the financial, capital and auditing work
of the Company. Ms. Kwok has over 19 years of experience in
property development and financial management. Ms. Kwok
has been an executive director of the Xiamen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment, a Member of the Xiamen
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People ‘s Political Consultative
Conference, a director of Fujian Overseas Women'’s Friendship
Association, the Deputy Chairman of the Hong-Kong Xiamen
Friendship Union, and the Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong
Chinese Importer’'s & Exporter’s Association. She is the spouse
of Mr. Lam Lung On, our Executive Director, and the sister-in-law
of Mr. Lin Longzhi and Mr. Lin Conghui, our Executive Directors.
Ms. Kwok has not held any directorship in any other public listed
companies in the past three years. Ms. Kwok worked for China
Construction Bank Xiamen Branch, a state-owned bank, before
she joined our Company.

Lin Longzhi (tk3E %), aged 48 was designated as our Executive
Director on October 9, 2009. Since joining our Group in December
1997, Mr. Lin has held positions including but not limited to
chairman, director and general manager in our subsidiaries and is
primarily responsible for coordinating with the public relationship
and strategic layout of the Group. Mr. Lin has almost 19 years of
experience in property development and investment. Mr. Lin was
a member of the 12th Xiamen Municipal People’s Congress. He
also serves as the deputy president of the 6th Xiamen Real Estate
Association, the deputy president of the 7th China Real Estate
Association and deputy chairman of the Xiamen Association of
Enterprises with Foreign Investment. Mr. Lin is the younger brother
of Mr. Lam Lung On, our Executive Director, the brother-in-law of
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive Director and the brother-in-law
of Mr. Lin Conghui, who is also our Executive Director. Mr. Lin has
not held any directorship in any other public listed companies in the
past three years.

SN ERDBRAR
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NITES (&)

BRIEHE - 465% © MN2009F10 A9HEZE AT
BITES - BENARMNESEEERE - B1997F4
AMAREBIAR » P T ERRMAZHHB AR
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TEAEFTIINERECEXBHENEHIESE - BN A
FRARB AHEERENIMZESLE  BEEH
INGREEERE  BAEMMEASEESER B
BHREDAOBEASR - FAMELZLEE (REH
TEE) MM  MEBLEURMEBEE (QF
HITESR) HAE - FLLTRBEN=FAILEIE
FERAMEM ETARNES - Bz NBAFRIER
R—REFRIT—PREZRBITEPIDT -

MBEE - 485%  FR2009F 10 A9RELZEANITE
F o B1997F 12 AMAREE AR - MEAEZEREK
MAZHWB AR ETZEBN (RIEETRRE
ER EENEBER)  FXZAEHEEEAHH
BELEEBKEGD -  MTEBEM190FNEIbER
RIEEESR MEEBREMMETZEARRERAK
EREK  -MAEBRNMECE A NEEMEHEERSE
gk FtETBEEHEEXHEIERREMTING
BECEBERER - MTEARMERLE (REIH
TEE) N33 PR (REAWMTES) /)
WMFRMIEIELEE (MARRRITESE) WABT -
MAEERBEA=FIRBREEFRMEM ETATNE
$ o



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Lin Conghui (#B8#E), aged 46, was designated as our Executive
Director on October 9, 2009. Since joining our Group in July 1998,
Mr. Lin has held positions including but not limited to chairman and
director in most of our subsidiaries and is primarily responsible for
the daily operation management of Fuzhou subsidiary and Longyan
subsidiary. Mr. Lin has over 18 years of experience in project
management. He graduated from Tongji University with a diploma in
Architecture Engineering in January 2006. Mr. Lin is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lin Longzhi,
our Executive Directors. Mr. Lin has not held any directorship in any
other public listed companies in the past three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Kwong Siu (&), aged 82, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on October 9, 2009. He is also
a member of the audit committee of our Company. He has more
than fifty years of banking experience. In addition, Mr. Lam had
held the following positions in the banking sector:

° a non-executive director of Bank of China International
Limited (formerly known as BOCI Capital Limited) since July
2002;

° an independent non-executive director of CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limted (formerly known as The Hong Kong Chinese Bank,
Limited), from January 2002 to March 2014;

° the deputy chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank of China Ltd since
October 2001; and

e an independent non-executive director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as CITIC Ka Wah
Bank Limited), a Hong Kong incorporated company which
was listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (00183), from
1996 to March 2014, until the withdrawal of its listing in
November 2008.
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Directors’ Biographies

ESEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Lam has been serving the following companies which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in the capacity of:

° an independent non-executive director of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited (00868) since August 2004;

e an independent non-executive director of Fujian Holdings
Ltd., (00181) since December 2003;

* an independent non-executive director of China Overseas
Land & Investment Ltd. (00688) since September 2003; and

° an executive director of Far East Consortium International
Limited (00035), since September 2011;

° an executive director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited, a Cayman
Islands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (01125), from June 1999 to July 2001; and

* an independent non-executive director of Ananda Wing On
Travel (Holdings) Limited (now known as Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited), a Bermuda incorporated company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (01189), until January
2008.

Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia Star in 2003 and
Gold Bauhinia Star in 2016. He was a delegate of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC to the 10th National
People’s Congress. He currently serves as the honorary chairman
of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations, life honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce, deputy
chairman of the Fujian Hong Kong Economic Co-operation, life
honorary chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
adviser of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and the
honorary president of the Chinese Bankers Club of Hong Kong.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Wee Henny Soon Chiang (also known as Wee Toon Kian) (E1f&
i8), aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on October 9, 2009. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of our Company. He has more than thirty
years of experience in public accounting practice. Mr. Wee was an
independent non-executive director of The Quaypoint Corporation
Limited (now known as China Uptown Group Company Limited),
a Cayman lIslands incorporated company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (02330), from September 2001 to November
2006. He is the founder of Henny Wee & Co., a firm of Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) registered at Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 1988. Mr. Wee is the
partner of Henny Wee & Co. since 1988 and following a merger
with another local firm of certified public accountants on April 1,
2016, he is the managing partner of the merged SWC & Partners.
He worked at Glass Radcliffe Chan & Wee as a partner. Mr. Wee
received a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce from the University
of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia, in March 1971. He
became an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants (Australia) in July 1975, and a Certified Public
Accountant (Practicing) of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants,
now known as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, since 1988.

Dr. Zhai Pu, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on December 28, 2016. He is also a member
of the audit committee of our Company. Dr. Zhai obtained a
Ph.D from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom in 2000
and a bachelor’s degree in Material Science and Engineering
from Tsinghua University, China, in 1996. He has been the Chief
Executive Officer of China Alpha Fund Management (HK) Limited
since July 2015. Dr. Zhai has worked in the field of investment
banking as Managing Director of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia
Pacific) Limited from September 2009 to March 2015, and as
Managing Director of Macquarie (Hong Kong) Limited from May
2007 to August 2009. He has over 15 years of experience in
corporate development and investment banking in the Greater
China market.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
SREERBN

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY ERERATIWE
SECRETARY

Hui Chun Yip, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company ~ #F#% » 375% * AAR A Z B K AEEF A A ME -
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Hui joined our Company in March ~ FF5E A R2015FE3 A IMARRQA T - B &5 AEBEHFR
2015 and is responsible for our Group’s strategic planning, R&| - PEREFTE - KEEWER - BB BRER
corporate finance activities, investor relations and oversight of ¢« ARIMEFIE - REREHI REHK ETE RS
financial reporting procedures, company secretary matters, internal & © JIARNEB BT - LA TR ERFHIERAR A
controls and compliance with the requirements under the Listing 7 (REBBZATER ETA A - {5 H5701668)
Rules. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Hui worked for China South T EG&MC%mE R8s  FHEERE  MHEERST
City Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange 1B » /NN —RER 56 S45FT T1E - E£%Fat -
of Hong Kong (Stock code: 01668), and was responsible for &5t MK EREABBISFLER - SFLLEEERE
corporate finance activities, financial management and financial B X AZ - S THEIBEE2+ 24  FE4AH A
reporting. He has also worked in an international C.P.A. firm. Mr.  EEEHASHEE -

Hui has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting and

financial management. Mr. Hui graduated with a bachelor’s degree

in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong

Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise property
development, property investment, the provision of management
services and hotel operation. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS

The Group’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 153 to 301.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the year and
discussion on the Company’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this annual report. Description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Company are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
December 31, 2016 are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is set out
in the “Income Statement Highlights” and “Statement of Financial
Position Highlights” section on page 12 and 13 of this annual
report. The financial key performance indicators are commonly
used by the property development industry which shows the
profitability and liquidity performance of a company. A discussion
of the Group’s environmental policies and performance is set out in
the “Environment, Social and Governance” section on page 68 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EBBRS

PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

At the board meeting of the Company held on March 21, 2017,
the board of directors proposed a final dividend of HK22 cents per
share for the year ended December 31, 2016, which is subject to
the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on June 6, 2017. The
final dividend is proposed to be paid on or about July 5, 2017 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at the close of business on June 21, 2017.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from June
2, 2017 to June 6, 2017 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered in order to
determine the identities of shareholders entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfers (accompanied by the share certificates, as applicable)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on June 1, 2017 for registration.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from June
19, 2017 to June 21, 2017 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered in
order to determine the identities of shareholders entitled to the
proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers (accompanied by the share certificates,
as applicable) must be lodged with Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited not later than 4:30 p.m. on June 16, 2017
for registration.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

A summary of the Group’s results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
pages 302 to 303. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages
304 to 308.

SENIOR NOTES

The Company issued US$200 million senior notes, US$250 million
senior notes, US$300 million senior notes, US$300 million senior
notes and US$250 million senior notes with a maturity of five years
and bearing a coupon interest rate of 13.5%, 11.75%, 8.75%,
8.625% and 9.0% in December 2010, October 2012, October
2013, January 2014 and December 2014 respectively. In addition,
the Company issued US$250 million senior notes with a maturity
of seven years bearing a coupon interest rate of 6% in October
2016. The 2015 due senior notes amounted to US$200 million
was fully redeemed in December 2013. The 2017 due senior notes
amounted to US$250 million was fully redeemed in October 2015.
The 2018 due senior notes amounted to US$300 million was fully
redeemed in October 2016. For the details of the senior notes of
the Company, please refer to note 28 to the financial statements.

BONDS ISSUE

On July 25, 2013, the Company entered into an investment
agreement with China Life Trustees Limited (the “Subscriber”),
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company agreed to issue, 10% guaranteed bonds (the “Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1.5 billion due in 2019.
The Bonds were guaranteed by Mr. Lam Lung On (“Mr. Lam”) and
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (“Ms. Kwok”), directors of the Company, and
certain subsidiaries of the Group and secured by share charge over
829,094,400 shares of the Company held by Mr. Lam and Ms.
Kwok. On February 25, 2016, the Company redeemed in full the
Bonds and the personal guarantees and the share charge given by
Mr. Lam and Ms. Kwok under the Bonds were released, details of
which are set out in note 27(b) (i) to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEBRS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company redeemed in full the 8.75% senior
notes due 2018, which were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, at a redemption amount of US$313,000,000,
representing 104.375% of its principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 33 and 46 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At December 31,
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions

2016, the Company’s reserves available

of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB1,346,122,000, of which RMB741,822,000 has been declared
as final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB14,320,000 (2015: RMB5,077,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, no sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 30% or more of the total sales for the year and of the
total purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman)

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lin Longzhi

Mr. Lin Conghui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016)
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang

Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of Messrs. Lam Kwong Siu and Wee Henny Soon
Chiang and Dr. Zhai Pu, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 108 to 114 of the
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Lam Lung On, Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, Mr. Lin Longzhi
and Mr. Lin Conghui, being executive directors, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from November 2, 2012, which has been renewed for
another term of three years commencing from November 2, 2015,
subject to termination by either party giving not less than three
months’ written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr.Gu
Jiande, Mr. Lam Kwong Su and Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang,
being independent non-executive directors, for a term of three
years commencing from November 2, 2012. Upon expiry of the
term, the Company has issued a letter of appointment to each
of Mr. Gu Jiande, Mr. Lam Kwong Su and Mr. Wee Henny Soon
Chiang, to renew the term for another three years commencing
from November 2, 2015, which is subject to termination by either
party giving not less than one month’s written notice and retirement
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.

Mr. Gu Jiande resigned as an independent non-executive directors
with effect from December 28, 2016 due to age reason. Mr.Gu
confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there
were no other matters relating to his resignation that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. Dr.
Zhai Pu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from December 28, 2016. The Company has
issued a letter of appointment to Dr. Zhai, for a term of three
years commencing from December 28, 2016, which is subject
to termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice and retirement and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of directors
are considered to have interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees and emoluments are subject to review by the
Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board which are
determined with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no
director had an interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management
of the Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate
coverage for certain legal actions against the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2016, certain Directors and
companies controlled by certain Directors entered into transactions
with the Company which are disclosed in note 41 “Related Party
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At December 31, 2016, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

BER S
AR FE BT EHRRIENE14AE BRIRR S 15 E
SR R BIRARMI A1 (R B -

BIERRS

HZE2016F12A31BEFE  ATEERHAETES
THI AR EARNARGIVRS - BEFEBEEAAR
TE A I RRMTA [FEFXS] -

ESHRMDERS

R2016F 128318 + EFERARElERBEEE (T
EABLSRBEGRD ( [FBEHFRBEKEG] ) BXV
) MR A RSN AR RIRIEES MAFE KD
FI52FBFENERM - NRE ETEITAESRET
BERXGELETREMG ARG RE BB IR
W

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company: RANTERRNEBE
Percentage
of the
Directly Company’s
beneficially Through issued share
Note owned spouse Total capital
EARARE BT
Name of director ~EZEH R Btat HEEERES ERERE B REAMESE
Mr. Lam Lung On MEER ST @) 1,296,000,000 1,302,691,000 2,598,691,000 68.10
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan R+ @) 1,302,691,000 1,296,000,000 2,598,691,000 68.10

(@

Ms. Kwok Ying Lan and Mr. Lam Lung On are married to each
other.

Save as provided above and in the sub-section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the directors have any interests
or short positions or short positions in the share capital of the
Company or its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On May 24, 2010, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
time for a period of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint
venture business partners, service providers of any member of
the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group to participate in the
Scheme (“Participants”).

On December 31, 2012, the Company granted share options
(the “Share Options”) under the Scheme to certain directors
and employees of the Group (the “Grantees”) which, subject to
their acceptance, entitles them to subscribe for an aggregate of
43,693,200 new shares of HK$0.1 each (the “Shares”) in the share
capital of the Company, as adjusted as a result of the bonus issue
of the Shares by the Company in July 2013.

On December 31, 2013, the Company further granted the Share
Options under the Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for
an aggregate of 11,626,000 new Shares. On January 20, 2015,
the Company granted the Share Options under the Scheme to the
Grantees which, subject to their acceptance, entitles the Grantees
to subscribe for an aggregate of 16,445,000 new Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BAGRESTE (@|)

On January 27, 2016, the Company granted the Share Options 20164513278 » AR B DREZT AR AR L
under the Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their — BiE#E (EEFARABZHSAEE) @ HEARAR
acceptance, entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate B4 3£19,790,0000% 3 M1 - EFFBEWMT

of 19,790,000 new Shares, the details of which are disclosed as

below:
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share  Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately
options granted [apsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding ~ date on which
Key Management Period during asat year ended year ended year ended Exercise asat  share options
Personnel and which share January1  December31  December31  December 31 price December31  were granted
other eligible employees Date of grant  options exercisable 2016 2016 2016 2016 (HKS) 2016 (HKS)
HEW165
HE2016F 128818 BE016F kit
20165 12831R LLEER 128318 Hoot6E  REERR
1818 LEER  ENSE/ LEER 128318 BRERH
Y7EE TTEEAR AETRN Ry HEERN 1M ke AEARN  ENRGE
RAEERES RHiBH BREVTOECHE  BREHE  BREEE  BREHE  BREHE (#7) EREHA (%7)
Executive Director #rEs
Lam Lung On HER 311202012 11/2016 - 31/12/2022 480,000 - - - 18750 480,000 187507
31122012 1/1/2018 - 31/112/2022 360,000 - - - 18750 360,000 1.87507
31122012 1/1/2020 - 31/112/2022 360,000 - - - 1.8750 360,000 187507
311202013 1A/2017 - 31/12/2023 400,000 - - - 1.9300 400,000 1.9300
31122013 1/1/2019 - 31/112/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
31122013 11/2021 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
200012015 21/1/2018 - 2011/2025 400,000 - - - 1.8920 400,000 1.8920
20012015 21172020 - 2011/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
200012015 21/1/2022 - 2011/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
21112016 28/1/2019-27/1/2026 - 400,000 - - 1.8120 400,000 18120
27/1/2016 28/1/2021- 27/1/2026 - 300,000 - - 1.8120 300,000 18120
211112016 28/1/2023- 27/1/2026 - 300,000 - - 1.8120 300,000 1.8120
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BAREESTEl (&)
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share  Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately
options granted lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding ~ date on which
Key Management Period during asat year ended year ended year ended Exercise asat  share options
Personnel and which share January1  December31  December31  December 31 price December31  were granted
other eligible employees Date of grant ~ options exercisable 2016 2016 2016 2016 (HKS) 2016 (HKS)
HEN165
HEN165 128318 BE20165F kit
120165 12A31R LLEER 1231R 016E  REEER
1818 tEER  ENSE/ LLEER 12838 BREAH
HTEE TREEAR RBATER R RN 15 RE  AEAEN  AMRGE
L2 ERES RHAH RRETFIECHE  BREHE  BREHA  BRERR  EREHE (r) HREHE (%r)
Kwok Ying Lan J58 31122012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 480,000 - - - 1.8750 480,000 1.8750"
31122012 11/2018 - 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.8750"
311202012 111/2020- 31/12/2022 360,000 - - - 1.8750 360,000 1.87501
31122013 1/1/2017 - 31/112/2023 400,000 - - - 1.9300 400,000 1.9300
31122013 11/2019 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
31122013 11/2021 - 31/12/2023 300,000 - - - 1.9300 300,000 1.9300
20012015 211172018 - 2011/2025 400,000 - - - 1.8920 400,000 1.8920
200012015 21/1/2020- 2011/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
200012015 21/1/2022 - 2011/2025 300,000 - - - 1.8920 300,000 1.8920
21112016 28/1/2019-27/1/2026 - 400,000 - - 1.8120 400,000 18120
21112016 28/1/2021- 27/1/2026 - 300,000 - - 1.8120 300,000 18120
27/1/2016 28/1/2023- 27/1/2026 - 300,000 - - 1.8120 300,000 18120
SE-REER 125
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BAREESTEl (&)
Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share  Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately
options granted lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding ~ date on which
Key Management Period during asat year ended year ended year ended Exercise asat  share options
Personnel and which share January1  December31  December31  December 31 price December31  were granted
other eligible employees Date of grant ~ options exercisable 2016 2016 2016 2016 (HKS) 2016 (HKS)
HEN165
HEN165 128318 BE20165F it
120165 12A31R LLEER 1231R 016E  REEER
1818 tEER  ENSE/ LLEER 12838 BREAH
HTEE TREEAR RBATER R RN 15 RE  AEAEN  AMRGE
L2 ERES RHAH RRETFIECHE  BREHE  BREHA  BRERR  EREHE (r) HREHE (%r)
Lin Longzhi TR 31122012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 9,840,000 - - - 1.8750 9,840,000 1.87507
31122012 11/2018 - 31/12/2022 7,380,000 - - - 1.8750 7,380,000 1.8750"
311202012 111/2020- 31/12/2022 7,380,000 - - - 1.8750 7,380,000 1.8750°
Lin Conghui v 311202012 11/2016 - 31/12/2022 5,040,000 - - - 18750 5,040,000 1.8750°
31122012 1/1/2018 - 31/112/2022 3,780,000 - - - 1.8750 3,780,000 1.87507
31122012 1/1/2020 - 31112/2022 3,780,000 - - - 18750 3,780,000 187507
21112016 28/1/2019-27/1/2026 - 200,000 - - 18120 200,000 18120
211112016 28/1/2021- 27/1/2026 - 150,000 - - 18120 150,000 18120
21112016 28/1/2023- 27/1/2026 - 150,000 - - 18120 150,000 18120
126 BMBEROAERAT
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Share options Closing price
reclassified/ of shares
Share  Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately
options granted lapsed exercised Share options before the
Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding ~ date on which
Key Management Period during asat year ended year ended year ended Exercise asat  share options
Personnel and which share January1  December31  December31  December 31 price December31  were granted
other eligible employees Date of grant ~ options exercisable 2016 2016 2016 2016 (HKS) 2016 (HKS)
HEN165
HEN165 128318 BE20165F kit
120165 12A31R LEER 1231R 016E  REEER
1818 tEER  ENSE/ LL5EA 12838 BREAH
YES TEEEAR AETRN RiE AN 15 RE  AEAEN  AMRGE
L2 ERES RHAH BRETTOE2OE  BREHE  BREEE  BREHR  BREHE (r) HREHE (%r)
Key Management Personnel and other eligible employees TEEBABREMAEREE
N/A TR 31122012 1/1/2016 - 31/12/2022 711,840 - 0 - 1.8750 711,840 1.87507
N/A NER 31122012 1/1/2018- 31/112/2022 533,880" - 119,880 - 1.8750 414,000 1.87501
N/A NER 311202012 11/2020- 31/12/2022 533,880 - 119,880 - 18750 414,000 1.8750°
N/A ol 311202013 11/2017 - 31/12/2023 2,488,000 - 510,400 - 1.9300 197,600 1.9300
N/A ayili 31122013 1/1/2019- 31/12/2023 1,866,000 - 382,800 - 1.9300 1,483,200 1.9300
N/A il 31122013 1/1/2021 - 31/12/2023 1,866,000 - 382,800 - 1.9300 1,483,200 1.9300
N/A NER 200012015 21/1/2018 - 20/1/2025 4,516,000 - 504,000 - 1.8920 4,012,000 1.8920
—E-XEFR 127
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Share options Closing price

reclassified/ of shares

Share  Share options cancelled/  Share options immediately

options granted lapsed exercised Share options before the

Executive Director, outstanding during the during the during the outstanding ~ date on which

Key Management Period during asat year ended year ended year ended Exercise asat  share options

Personnel and which share January1  December31  December31  December 31 price December31  were granted

other eligible employees Date of grant ~ options exercisable 2016 2016 2016 2016 (HKS) 2016 (HKS)

HEN165

HEN165 128318 BE20165F kit

120165 12A31R LEER 1231R 016E  REEER

1818 tEER  ENSE/ LL5EA 12838 BREAH

YES TEEEAR AETRN RiE AN 15 RE  AEAEN  AMRGE
L2 ERES RHAH BRETTOE2OE  BREHE  BREEE  BREHR  BREHE (r) HREHE (%r)

N/A NER 200012015 21/1/2020 - 20/1/2025 3,387,000 - 378,000 - 1.8920 3,009,000 1.8920

N/A il 200012015 21/1/2022 - 20/1/2025 3,387,000 - 378,000 - 1.8920 3,009,000 1.8920

N/A NER 21012016 28/1/2019 - 27/1/2026 - 6,916,000 1,044,000 - 18120 5,872,000 1.8120

N/A iyilii 21012016 28/1/2021 - 27/1/2026 - 5,187,000 783,000 - 1.8120 4,404,000 18120

N/A By clii 21012016 28/1/2023 - 27/1/2026 - 5,187,000 783,000 - 1.8120 4,404,000 18120

(1) Adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of shares by the Company
in July 2013.

(1) EARETTMA AL E]R2013F 7 AIEL 55 -

128

On January 26, 2017, the Company further granted the Share
Options under the Scheme to the Grantees which, subject to their
acceptance, entitle the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
22,690,000 new Shares. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Grantees is a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules).

The grant of Share Options to each of the above directors had
been approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company in accordance with Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and
approved by the remuneration committee of the Company.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide Participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company, to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole, and to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to Participants.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Scheme shall
not exceed 345,599,999 shares of the Company in aggregate,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on
the date of adoption of the Scheme (i.e. May 24, 2010), as adjusted
as a result of the bonus issues of the Shares by the Company in
July 2012 and July 2013, and the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company to each Participant in any 12 month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue. At the time of
grant of the options under the Scheme, the Company may specify
any minimum period(s) for which the options must be held before
it can be exercised. The period within which the options under the
Scheme may be exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years from
the relevant date of grant.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option to be granted
under the Scheme is HK$1.00 and the exercise price of the
option shall be such price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to the Participant at the time an offer of the
grant of an option is made, but in any event, shall be no less than
the higher of:

(@ the closing price of the share of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(c) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the date of
grant.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report, being the latest practicable date prior to the
date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the accounting
policies, accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters, and reviewed the consolidated financial statements and
results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Group’s subsidiaries are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China.
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Group’s
subsidiaries in China while the Group also has a corporate and
administrative office in Hong Kong.

Our establishments and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands, Samoa, Singapore, Hong Kong and China. During
the year ended December 31, 2016, as far as the Company is
aware of, there was no incidence of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group’s business.
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AUDITORS 7% 4 LT

The financial statements have been audited by the Company’s R ERC HAR RIXEBM L Kk @it EHTEX -
auditors, Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being eligible, will LXK @FHRIEEATEREERFBF RS LRET - W
offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual & &EEEER - AR FARHR2009F11 A2BESE
general meeting. There has been no change of the auditors of the ~ JBEFIFT LTS » AR RAZ BRI EEH) -

Company since the listing of the Company’s shares on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange on November 2, 2009.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD REEZE
Lam Lung On MER
Chairman FE

Hong Kong B

March 21, 2017 201743 H21H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXREBRS

The Board of Directors (“Board”) and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture, successful
business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all, except A.2.1, where applicable, of the rules of the
Main Board, code provisions and, where applicable, most of the
recommended best practices as set out in Appendix 14 Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended December 31, 2016.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises 7
members, consisting of four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lin Longzhi

Mr. Lin Conghui
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016)
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang

Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016)

Upon the resignation of Mr. Gu Jiande as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the chairman of Nomination Committee, the
chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company on December 28, 2016, Mr.
Lam Kwong Siu was appointed to replace Mr. Gu Jiande as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and the chairman of
Remuneration Committee, and Dr. Zhai Pu was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including Independent Non-Executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent Non-Executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other, except that Mr. Lam Lung
On, Chairman, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Kwok Ying Lan, our Executive
Director, and the brother of Mr. Lin Longzhi, our Executive Director,
and brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Conghui, our Executive Director.
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As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved, Directors have agreed to disclose
their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Directors are continually updated on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules, the CG Code and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure the compliance with the same
by the Directors. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All of the existing Directors
had provided record of training they received during the year
to the Company. They participated in continuous professional
development mainly by attending seminars or reading various
materials regarding corporate governance, regulatory development
and other relevant topics.

R [EEATE ] EXREEHEELTARSKMA
BHHEREENBENMMEE AR EthEAEHEARE
SMFMAERAER  EZCRBERSARARKE
HAGE o

TERESEHBMLMAA - EERERTREM
EEBERNSHERNES  UEREFETHRR
E o TEBEESNEXERRENATE - AR
AP B REE - TEREESEHERAR
AR A F E W R B IIRCEE - 0P 2B B2 NH
HEYMERARNEEER  EEERRIEMHERERE
BAFER NERFEERER -

Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development
and other

relevant topics
EES -

EERER
HAthHEE
Directors EEEK FEEI
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MEEZ L (LEREEHTTE) v
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SHRFLE (FEE) v
Mr. Lin Longzhi MBEE v
Mr. Lin Conghui RERHE S & \
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016) ZRELE (201612 A28 AEHT) \
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEIR LA ol
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang =L V
Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016) BEFBT (20165F12 H28HEZR ) ol

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules
as a code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2016.
Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its Shares
are required to prohibit from dealing with shares of the Company
during the black-out period.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lam Lung On
is the Chairman and also the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
After due consideration to the unique history and development of
the Group’s own business and structure, the Board decided to
maintain this structure. Mr. Lam has extensive experience in real
estate management projects, is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategy planning and business management. The Board believes
that the current structure gives significant benefits to the Group as it
maintains a strong and effective leadership and ensures an efficient
decision making process. Furthermore, the Board comprises
reputable and experienced professionals who assist in maintaining
a balance of power without compromising the consistent leadership
of the Group. The Chairman, as convener and chairperson of Board
meetings, has no special power which is different from that of other
Directors in the decision-making of the Board.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years while each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles and the CG code, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years and are subject to re-election. Newly appointed Directors
are also required to offer themselves of re-election at the next
following general meeting (in the case of filling a causal vacancy)
or at the next annual general meeting (in the case of an addition to
the existing Board) following their appointment. Accordingly, four
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Lung On, Mr. Lin Longzhi, Mr. Wee
Henny Soon Chiang and Dr. Zhai Pu, shall retire from office and
are eligible to offer themselves for re-elecction at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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&;#

Board Meetings £x2g

During the year, four board meetings were convened by the FR > ARG EBHMNAEEESE EFHFEFS
Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings ~ &3&I150aA T ¢
was as follows:

Number

of attendance
Directors BEEERE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MBeL5cE (FEREEHITE) 4/4
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SRzt (FEE) 4/4
Mr. Lin Longzhi MEE 4 4/4
Mr. Lin Conghui MRERNE S A 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016) =Z@EEgAE (201612 A28HEHT) 4/4
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEIKSTE 4/4
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EEEAE 4/4
Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016) 2EEL (20165F12 528 A EE(E) 0/0
The Directors are provided with agenda and relevant Board &3] EEfEAECSRe SN EENEEESe

materials related to the agenda in advance before the meeting.  #1%} - /A ﬂ A LABE R 55 f A Bl = AR B IR B A A | A
They can access to the senior management and the company £ WESEMNERT  SRBUNEEER  &H
secretary of the Company at all time and, upon reasonable request, A BIRIE -

seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Board Committees ExFEE

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board BEEARNTEENEL TR EE2R T T =AE
has established three Board committees including the audit ELEe  pHEXRZE® ( [BE%EEE®] ) %
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee MEZEEEe ( [HFMEES]| ) RIEZXZES ( [IE4
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the ZE8®|) (#iEA [EEXE®] ) - EEe0i
“Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). HEEEZEeTHRABESBEANRTHRE -

The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities

as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises of three members,
namely Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (chairman), Mr. Lam Kwong
Siu and Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016) (Mr. Gu
Jiande resigned on December 28, 2016).

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. Develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. Review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. Review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4, Develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. Review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee (both English and
Chinese versions), which follow closely the requirements of the
CG Code and are modified from time to time and adopted by the
Board, are posted on the websites of the Company and HKEx.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Audit Committee
held meetings with the senior management and independent
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auditor of the Company to review the interim and annual results, &iﬁ%ﬁ C RETRRAA TR ERERE R AEEEIER
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems cEEHEEREZEGYRNOT

of the Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Audit

Committee meetings was as follows:

Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (chairman) =EBEE (£/F) 3/3
Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016) =@kt (2016512 A28HEHT) 3/3
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEIRFTE 3/3
Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016) 2EiEL: (2016F 12 A28 AL T) 0/0
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises of three
members, namely Mr. Lam Kwok Siu (chairman) (appointed on
December 28, 2016), Mr. Lam Lung On and Mr. Wee Henny Soon
Chiang (Mr. Gu Jiande resigned on December 28, 2016).

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include determining the policy and structure for the remuneration
of all executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive
Directors and senior management, reviewing incentive schemes
and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the remuneration
packages for all Directors and senior management, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, which
follow closely the requirements of the Code Provisions, including
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management, have been adopted by the
Board, and are posted on the Company’s website and Stock
Exchange’s website.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held meetings to review the structure of the
remunerations and grant of share options for Directors of the
Company. The attendance of the Directors at the Remuneration
Committee meetings was as follows:

Mr. Gu Jiande (chairman)

=S

FMEZEeBRm =Rk BANK  BIMEKRLEE (£
) (R20165F12 A28HERE) - MELkENE
fEsR s A (ZREEAN20165F12 A28 H ) -

PR E R T RRERRFERBRTESTOHHN
BERERE  FEATESESEEEABNTIER
B i ABEtd  BHEFORFAOUREER
REZLSEEEABNFMGE - ARIBIIEH
TEFNFMRNESSRLES -

FNEZ B e BESEEME T TRRXHBRE - &8
RETMAERTESERSREEABNABHFMNE
B CARHEFERM  ASRERAAFREUELEE
R P FRA8h L -

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE  HFHEERITERMU
EMARPEESHFHNREERR TERESE - B2
FHMEZEggHNOT -

EREst (FE)

(resigned on December 28, 2016) (2016412 A28 HEHT) 2/2
Mr. Lam Lung On MBS E 2/2
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang SRR E 2/2
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (chairman) WEIKSTE (F8)

(appointed on December 28, 2016) (2016512 A28 HEZT) 0/0
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises of three members,
namely Mr. Lam Kwok Siu (chairman) (appointed on December 28,
2016), Mr. Lam Lung On and Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang (Mr. Gu
Jiande resigned on December 28, 2016).

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least once every
year to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of
the Company, identifying, screening and recommending to the
Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors, overseeing the
process for evaluating the performance of the Board, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Company has made the terms of reference of the nomination
committee on HKEx’s website and the Company’s website.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Nomination
Committee held meetings to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The attendance of the Directors at the
Nomination Committee meetings was as follows:

Mr. Gu Jiande (chairman)
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(resigned on December 28, 2016) (2016512 H28H & E) 2/2
Mr. Lam Lung On MBEERKE 2/2
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EHE®RTA 2/2
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu (chairman) WEIKEE (£/)

(appointed on December 28, 2016) (20165F12 A28 HEE(E) 0/0
Board Diversity Policy BEEEITTEE

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (“‘Board Diversity Policy”) with a view to achieving
a sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board'’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

During the year, the Company has arranged appropriate Directors
and Officers liability insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

Internal Controls

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and for review of their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems
are designed to help the achievement of business objectives in the
following categories:

1) Effectiveness and efficiency of operations which include
safeguarding assets against unauthorised user or disposition;

2) Reliability of financial and operational reporting; and

3)  Compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and internal
policies and procedures.

An internal audit department has been established to perform
regular financial and operational reviews and recommmend necessary
actions to the relevant management. The works carried out by the
internal audit department ensure the risk management and internal
control system are in place and function properly as intended. The
results of the internal audit and reviews are reported to the Directors
of the Company. The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during
the year ended December 31, 2016 and considered them effective
and adequate.
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Independent Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the external auditor of the
Company received approximately RMB3,081,000 for annual audit
services and approximately RMB2,380,000 for other non-audit
services rendered.

Communication with Shareholders and
Shareholders’ Rights

The Company ensures that fair and transparent disclosure is
made for its business and financial performance through a variety
of formal communication channels. Information regarding the
Company is published in its website: www.xmyuzhou.com.cn.
Interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the Company
are despatched to Shareholders. The website of the Company
provides information such as e-mail address, correspondence
address, telephone numbers for enquiries, and provides information
on the business activities of the Group. Shareholders may at any
time send their enquires and concerns to the Board in writing either
by email to ir@xmyuzhou.com.cn or direct mailing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.
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Communication with Shareholders and

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in the requisition; and the Company
shall hold general meeting within two months after receiving the
requisition. If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general meeting,
pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for
election and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his/her willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged
at the Company’s head office or the office of the Hong Kong
Share Registrar of the Company. The period for lodgement of such
notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of such general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. All substantive resolutions at
general meetings are decided on a poll which is conducted by the
company secretary and scrutinised by the share registrar of the
Company. The results of the poll are published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. Regularly updated financial,
business and other information on the Group is made available on
the website of the Company for Shareholders and investors.
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Communication with Shareholders and

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Code Provision A.6.7

Under code A.6.7, Independent Non-Executive Directors should
attend general meetings of the Company. During the year, one
Independent Non-Executive Director was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on May 31, 2016
as he held other prior business engagements. Attendance of the
Directors at the general meeting was as follow:
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Number of

attendance
Directors EEERE HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lam Lung On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) MBEZ L (F/ERE/EHITE) 1/1
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan (Vice Chairman) SHEFLE (FEE) 1/1
Mr. Lin Longzhi MBEE ST 0/1
Mr. Lin Conghui MEERE ST A 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors JTEHITESE
Mr. Gu Jiande (resigned on December 28, 2016) = (2016512 A28HEHTE) 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEIRFEE 1/1
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EEREE 1/1
Dr. Zhai Pu (appointed on December 28, 2016) BEB L (2016512 A28HERT) 0/0

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group which were
prepared in accordance with statutory requirement and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the publication of
the financial statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 144 to 152.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B EENR S

P
EY-x

To the shareholders of Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuzhou
Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 153 to 301 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterents
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staternents
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

BIZHEABRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
Adequacy of provision for income tax and other taxes

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s income
tax expense of RMB2,108 million comprised the corporate
income tax at a statutory tax rate at 25% and the land
appreciation tax at tax rates ranging from 30% to 60%.
The determination of the tax provision involves significant
management estimates about the group companies’ taxable
income and the appropriate application of the tax rates, in
particular when estimating the land appreciation tax. We
focused on this area because the income tax provision
assessment process is complex and involves estimates.

Related disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates”, note 10 “Income
Tax” and note 29 “Provision for Land Appreciation Tax” to the
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We obtained management’s schedules to assess their tax
computation and recalculated the income tax expenses. We
checked the financial information used in these management
schedules to the corresponding accounting records or
other underlying documentation. We involved our internal
tax specialists to evaluate management’s application of the
relevant tax regulations when performing the tax computation.
We also examined the correspondences with tax authorities
and identified if there were any uncertain tax positions or tax
disputes.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had investment properties
amounting to RMB7,518 million which are measured at fair
value. Management engaged an external valuer to determine
the fair values of the investment properties. Different valuation
models were applied by the external valuer on different types of
investment properties held by the Group. We focused on this
area because significant estimation is required to determine the
fair values of the investment properties.

Related disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 14
“Investment Properties” to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency
of the external valuer engaged by management. We also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions, methodologies and parameters
adopted in the valuation. Our internal valuation specialists
independently re-performed the valuation based on the market
value, rental value and capitalisation rates of the properties
located in the adjacent location. We compared the valuation
performed by the external valuer to the range provided by
our internal valuation specialists. We further assessed the
correctness of the property related data used as inputs for
the valuation. We have also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures of the valuation of the investment properties.
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Independent auditor’s report

BIZHEABRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
Acaquisition of the entire equity interest in and a loan due
from Zhongwei Property Zhejiang Co., Ltd.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into an equity transfer agreement with independent
third parties for the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in and a loan due from Zhongwei Property Zhejiang Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhongwei Property”) at an aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB4,104 million. As at the date of acquisition,
Zhongwei Property merely held certain land parcels without
development. Management considered that it was an asset
acquisition because it did not qualify as a business under
the relevant accounting standards. We focused on this
area because the consideration is significant to the Group
(representing 35% of the net assets) and it involves significant
judgement to determine whether this was an asset acquisition
or a business combination in accordance with the relevant
accounting standards.

Related disclosures are included in note 3 “Significant
Accounting Judgements and Estimates” and note 35(a)
“Acquisition of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business
in the current year” to the financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures included the evaluation of management’s
judgement by reviewing any significant contracts signed
by Zhongwei Property to identify if any main contractor
was engaged for the property development project, and
reviewing of the payroll records to assess if any project
development employees were employed. We visited the site
of the property project to observe its physical status. We also
assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of the acquisition.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

BIZHEABRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

150 BNtERGERAF
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

BIZHEABRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chow Chi Chung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
RO RN
Year ended 31 December 2016 2 2016 % 12 A 31 A IF F/E

2016 2015

Notes RMB’000  RMB’000
e AR®TRE ARETT

REVENUE ON 5 13,671,828 10,375,501
Cost of sales SHEK A (8,712,916) (6,666,178)
Gross profit EF 4,958,912 3,709,323
Fair value gain on investment properties, net REYEN AR BN FEE 14 97,392 202,942
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments #7448 T E AR B 85,458 44,583
Other income and gains PN E 5 300,991 235,379
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SEA AR (293,153) (288,573)
Administrative expenses TE R (402,876)  (296,097)
Other expenses EAfthA (190,326) (73,068)
Finance costs BhE AR 6 (442,948) (349,040)
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures EhEE R RBmEE 91,790 (41,965
Share of losses of associates FE(REE N A EsE (8,480) —
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB RIF) 7 4,196,760 3,143,484
Income tax FriS i 10 (2,108,274) (1,475,294)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEF|H 2,088,486 1,668,190
Attributable to: AR & 77 e

Owners of the parent ISYNEIETZEPN 1,774,914 1,656,853

Non-controlling interests FEFERS A 313,572 11,337

2,088,486 1,668,190

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BARERRERSE A

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FEIE EARZ A

OF THE PARENT
Basic (RMB per share) EX (BRARE) 12 0.47 0.45
Diluted (RMB per share) e (BRARK) 12 0.46 0.45
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Annual Report 2016 ~ FEE 153



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEZEWNER

Year ended 31 December 2016 222016 F 12 531 HiF F/Z

2016 2015
RMB’000  RMB’'000
AR®TRT ARETT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

FEAME

2,088,486 1,668,190

Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to

profit or loss in subsequent periods - Exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations

RERMBEER D BERS
Hit 2 HEEE —BINEBHRE
P ERR

(157,295)  (288,857)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEPEWREERE 1,931,191 1,379,333
Attributable to: AR 77 e -
Owners of the parent SRARIEA A 1,617,619 1,371,502

Non-controlling interests

IR AR

313,572 7,831

1,931,191 1,379,333
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R BHIRRR

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 A 31 H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000  RMB’000
e AR®TRE ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEMENEE

Property, plant and equipment e 13 1,061,735 870,632
Investment properties REYE 14 7,518,177 6,470,630
Land held for property development for sale FHEVERBIHERER T 18 215,224 =
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR~ e RE A EWGRIE 21 208,903 —
Goodwill GES 15 100,401 264,666
Investments in joint ventures REEANRIRE 16 7,268,781 88,736
Investments in associates REENFIRE 17 123,580 —
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 30 371,456 412,674
Total non-current assets EMBEEERE 16,868,257 8,107,338
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE

Land held for property development for sale FBEMERBIHER G T 18 883,250 645,673
Properties under development TEEYZ 19 21,156,179 20,849,382
Properties held for sale FEHE R 20 7,369,071 7,417,797
Prepayments for acquisition of land W BE T TR SRIR 1,658,529 1,459,619
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE R hz‘i\&ﬁﬁﬁf e O] 21 2,876,651 2,162,582
Prepaid corporate income tax A S 267,317 57,149
Prepaid land appreciation tax TERT TR ETR 276,268 151,430
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA 26 87,456 46,095
Restricted cash SRR B3R 22 1,818,946 975,525
Cash and cash equivalents He&RReEEY 22 15,598,588 10,973,268
Total current assets MENEEBE 51,992,255 44,738,520
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE

Receipts in advance TEW IR 23 13,857,844 7,221,316
Trade payables B 5 ENF0A 24 5,979,034 6,296,764
Other payables and accruals Hofh e k1A K FERT & 25 7,657,059 5,854,748
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =HERT &ﬁfﬂﬂﬁ“ 27 4,807,778 3,987,373
Corporate income tax payables eSS 1,576,914 1,102,815
Provision for land appreciation tax T I (E A 29 1,448,040 1,162,886
Total current liabilities MENE EBE 35,326,669 25,625,902
NET CURRENT ASSETS BB EFE 16,665,586 19,112,618
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  #&ER RIS EE 33,533,843 27,219,956

—NFEFR

Annual Report 2016 =



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fRE M BRRNE

31 December 2016 2016 FF 12 A 31 H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETRT ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EmEBIE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRIRITMEMEE 27 15,473,629 10,628,867
Senior notes BEEE 28 5,505,386 5,466,883
Deferred tax liabilities IR E 30 882,092 882,851
Total non-current liabilities EmE B ERRE 21,861,107 16,978,601
Net assets BEFE 11,672,736 10,241,355
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BAREE A LR
Issued capital BT 31 324,472 324,472
Reserves 1 33 10,341,639 9,297,330
10,666,111 9,621,802
Non-controlling interests PR i 1,006,625 619,553
Total equity G L 11,672,736 10,241,355
Lam Lung On Kwok Ying Lan
MEZ ]
Director Director
EZE BEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

Year ended 31 December 2016 2= 2016 % 12 A 31 H 1L F/&

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARL
Share  Statutory  Exchange Share Non-
Issued premium surplus ~ fluctuation option Capital  Retained controlling Total
Notes capital account  reseve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
K BafiRs RORER *EERER EXRORE BRERE S4B REWR B FEREE  REEE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETz ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
(note 31) (note 33(i) (note 33(ii)
(hi&E31) (HiEE33()) (HiEzs3(i)
At 1 January 2015 1201551 1A 26439 446456 62642 116,988 5064 147930 7007805 817334 1216475 9,389,799
Prof for the year EETE - - = = = - 1666853 1656853 1337 166819
Other comprehensive loss for the year:  SEEH2TER -
Exchange differences related
to foreign operations B R AR - = - (28631 = = - (28531 (3.506)  (288,857)
Total comprehensive income/oss)
forthe year FRRENE/ (Bl 48 - - - (28531 - - 165685 1371502 781 13793%
Interim 2014 divicend 0145 ERE - (442087) = = = = - (44268) - (42087)
Issues of shares ESh10) 3 8033 595130 = = = = - 63IR - 817
Acquisttion of non-controling inerests e 3EHERR R - - - - - (o488 - (o488 (62925  (736721)
Incorporafion of a subsidlary 1) VA YA - - - - - - - - UN0 24500
Eouity-settled share option arrangements MR MEREZ % 3 - - - - 3959 - - 3959 - 3959
At 31 December 2015 and RO15E12A318 R
1 January 2016 201651418 304472 598908" 62642 (168363  9,023*  40462" 8754658 9621802 619553 10,241,355
Proft for the year ERAR = = = = = - 1TT4914 1774914 313572 2,088,486
Other comprehensiveloss for the year:  EEEH2TER :
Exchange differences related
to foreign operations R RS - - - (157,299) - - - (157,299) - (157.299)
Total comprehensive income/oss)
forthe year FERENE/ (Bl 4% - - - (157,299 - - 14914 1617619 313572 1,931,191
Finel 2015 dividend N155FEHRE - (575,662 = = = = - (575,662) - (675662
Incorporation of a Subsidiary FL211) AR N - - - - - - - - 73500 73500
Eouty-settied share opton amangements hE&S HEREZ %% 3 - - - - 2,352 - - 2,352 - 2,352
Reclassffcation ELipi - 364876 = = - (364076) = = = =
At 31 December 2016 12016%12318 R4472  388122° 62642 (325658  11.975*  (324.414) 10520572 10666111 1006625 11,672,736

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of RMB10,341,639,000 (2015: RMB9,297,330,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZEREREREEAVBERRARPEINNLEA
B AR®10,341,639,0007T (20154 : AR
9,297,330,0007T) °

— =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mOREME
Year ended 31 December 2016 &2 20164 12 A 31 AIF F/E
2016 2015

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR¥TR ARETET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & &EBEARIRSRE

Profit before tax BRI AT 4,196,760 3,143,484
Adjustments for: BLATIE B EH A% -
Finance costs BMEKR 6 245,730 152,269
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (84,156) (85,110)
Depreciation e 7 38,746 42,655
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments T4 & B T AR EKES (85,458) (44,583)
Loss on extinguishment of financial liabilities HiHE B ENEE 6 197,218 196,771
Gain on disposal of investment properties, net ISR E Y K FHE 5 (171,590) —
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary, net of =B Y& — B 2 72 Was -
loss on remeasurement of a pre-existing MEBREHMAER—HEERT]
interest in a joint venture ERRERZEE 35(b) - (128,356)
Impairment of goodwill [EESEAE! 7 164,265 —
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures ElEEE A aERRE (91,790) 41,965
Share of losses of associates FE(EHEE R a8 8,480 —
Fair value gain on investment properties, net EMFEN AR BIREFEE 14 (97,392) (202,942)
Equity-settled share option expense VARR e 4 S B AR i R =2 32(a) 2,352 3,959
4,323,165 3,120,112
Increase in properties under development TEREYIZEAE N (7,458,927) (3,649,471)
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for sale  F{FHERZYIFR
B (3Ehn) 7,678,675 (1,912,187)
Increase in prepayments for acquisition of land ~ HH& + s TR ERIEIE N (698,910) (1,150,029)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits ~ TEFIHK -~ #& R HEA &L
and other receivables FOR (Em) R (1,181,967) 1,045,704
Increase in receipts in advance TE U FRIELE AN 6,636,528 1,145,680
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ESEMZTE ORd) /#Emn (315,568) 1,690,466
Increase in other payables and accruals Hoh S 3RIE K B AT & FR 0 38,752 1,806,730
Cash generated from operations KEETHELENRS 9,021,748 2,097,005
Interest received EUHE 84,156 85,110
Interest paid ERFE (1,562,772) (1,295,125)
PRC corporate income tax paid BHRBEEMSH (818,814) (894,073)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B B S IB (AR (824,755) (460,746)

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities & =&/EBEE (FTA) 2
REREFRE 5,899,563 (467,829)

158 BN ERDBRAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REREMER

Year ended 31 December 2016 2 2016 % 12 A 31 H 1t F/&

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MiiE AR¥Tr ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REFEBELEMNBFERE
(Increase)/decrease in loans to joint ventures mAERRRHZER (gm)
Ve (3,927,047) 312,071
Increase in loans to associates [ A Rl 2 BRI N (39,225) —
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWME BEAZEIER
and equipment 13 (162,422) (111,575)
Investments in joint ventures RELERAIRE (2,031,205) —
Investments in associates REEE R EIRE (92,835) —
Disposal of subsidiaries upon loss of control e |V disdu =1 N RN 36 1,195,988 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B A A 35 (2,047,945) (880,944)
Additions of investment properties NEREME 14 (723,322)  (233,964)
Increase in restricted cash SR 3R &1 0 (843,421) (486,760)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties &R E Y ZEAT1SKE 717,777 —
Net cash flows used in investing activities HEEBFTRARSREF5E (7,953,657) (1,401,172
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BtE/ERBELMBERE
Capital contributions from FEFERRAR R 2 B AR A
non-controlling shareholders 73,500 24,500
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS IR M 2 = (736,721)
New bank and other borrowings FTIGIRIT R EHAMEER 15,531,092 9,782,456
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EBERTREMEER (8,681,757) (4,087,894)
Proceeds from issue of senior notes BB AREMERIE 1,669,956 —
Redemption of senior notes BOELEE (2,120,344) (1,638,112
Proceed from issuance of shares BITRD P15 5/IR - 623,172
Dividends paid BEfRE (157,661) (442,687)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHELENIRESREFHE 6,314,786 3,524,714
NET INCREASE IN CASH Be kRS EYEINFEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,260,692 1,655,713
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#3R & MRS EEY 10,973,268 9,295,977
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ERE B2 HEE 364,628 21,578
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRREEED
END OF YEAR 15,698,588 10,973,268
—2-xE5H 159

Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS IR IRMYEE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

160

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Yuzhou Properties Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at 4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George
Town, Grand Cayman KKY1-1110, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at Units
4905-06, 49th Floor, The Centre, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in
property developments, property investments, property
management and hotel operations in mainland of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China”)
and Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors, Mr. Lam Lung On and Ms.
Kwok Ying Lan, both being directors of the Company, are
considered as the controlling shareholders of the Company.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

1.
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

1. RAREBEN (@)

WEAT2ER
AAREEWBARZFHBEWT -

follows:
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of Equity interest
registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
FEMAR L BRTRER
ARER REERHE BA/EMBRAEE APRIELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Xiamen Yaozhou Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB10,800,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EFENEEREER AR () M/ B AR AR %10,800,0007C = 100% M=ERE
Xiamen Gangyi Real Estate Marketing Agent PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 = 100%  Marketing
Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EFEREERHREERAT () B/ PEAR 7#5,000,0007C - 100% E#
Xiamen Yuzhou Commercial Investment PRC/Mainland China HK$5,000,000 = 100%  Property management
& Management Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EFaMEmEREERERAR (M) B/ B AR 715,000,000 = 100% #MxER
Xiamen Diyuan Bonded Storage and PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Distribution Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EMSTRHEEBRAR" (M) /B RRE A& #:20,000,00070 - 100% WER%
Xiamen Kim International Realty PRC/Mainland China US$113,600,000 = 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. # (Note)
EPISERERREROT (M) B/ KR 113,600,000% 7T - 100% MERE
Xiamen Richville Development Ltd. # (Note) PRC/Mainland China US$55,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFESRMEREERAR (i) B/ KR 55,000,00057¢ = 100% WERE
Xiamen Gangyi Real-Estate Co., Ltd. # (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB160,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EPTEREZFARAR (M) B/ B KR AR #160,000,0007C = 100%  #ERE

—z
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML ERTRAR
ARER REEMILE BA/ERBRATE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3
Xiamen Fengzhou Real-Estate Co., Ltd. # (Note) ~ PRC/Mainland China HK$18,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFYMNESBRARS (fitz) &/ hEARE 718,000,000 = 100% MERE
Xiamen Yuzhou Hotel Invest & Manage PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 = 100%  Hotel operation
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
EFENBEEEAERERARE (M) RE /AR AR#400,000,0007C = 100% JEEEE
Xiamen Yuzhou Grand Future Real PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EFEMEEEREERAR (M) B/ B ARE A& #1,500,000,0007T = 100% M=ERE
Xiamen Skyplaze Realty & Development PRC/Mainland China US$25,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. * (Note)
EFEREHEREERAR (M) e/ AR 25,000,000%7¢ - 100% WERE
Hefei Yuzhou Real Estate PRC/Mainland China US$90,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. # (Note)
AREBNFEHEREBRARH () M/ AR 90,000,000% 7T = 100% M=%
Xiamen Huagiao City Real Estate Co., Ltd. # (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFIERREHEREBR AR (M) B/ B KR AR #20,000,0007C = 100%  #ERE
Anhui Overseas City Construction & PRC/Mainland China US$3,000,000 = 100%  Property investment
Development Co., Ltd. # (Note)
ZHERHRRZRARAAH (M) BB AR 3,000,000% 7T = 100% ¥R
BMNtEERGERAR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ERBRATE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3
Xiamen Yuzhou Group Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB116,064,000 = 100%  Property investment
EFIBNEEBRNERARe () B/ hERE ARH116,064,0007 = 100% #MEEE
Shanghai Kangtai Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
HEERFEREREARAR (M) E/REARE AR#30,000,00070 - 100% MR
Shanghai Jinyue Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
LeaeREREREARAT (M) FE/ AR AR#100,000,0007T - 100% G
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co. Ltd. @ (Note)
HaENEEREBRARE (M) PE/ B ARE%100,000,0007T = 100% MR
Shanghai Yanhai Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB48,450,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
HERERHERSEEEREERTC (F) B/ AR AR #48,450,0007T = 100%  #EHE
Shanghai Liyade Property Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB42,000,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)
HENRGREABRARARG (M) hE /B R AR#42,000,0007C - 100% WERE
Shanghai Yuzhou Hotel Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Hotel management
@ (Note)
HESNBEERERAT (M) R HEIARE ARH2,000,0007T - 100% EEER
Yuzhou Real Estate Service Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property management
BmERBERATE (i) hE/HhEIARE AR #50,000,0007 = 100% #FER
—B-XEFR 163
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

164

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ AMBAEE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# &

Xiamen Yuzhou Property Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB23,600,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)

EFBMEEREERATE (i) B/ B KR AR #23,600,0007T = 100%  #EHE

Fujian Yingfeng Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property investment
@ (Note)

RERREMEREERARE (M) el B AR AR #50,000,0007C = 100% FRE

Fujian Wanlong Property Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Property management
@ (Note)

BREENFERRBERAR (i) el HEIARE AR H#5,000,0007T - 100% YEER

Hefei Ludong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)

ARERFHEREERETAT@ (FiF) /B ARE AR #80,000,0007C = 100% MERZE

Hefei Kangli Realty Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100%  Property development

AETREESERLAR@ (M) HEL/ B ARE AR #30,000,0007T = 100% M=

Goastal Greenland Development (Fujian) Limited PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 = 100%  Property development
# (Note)

HEREREXRE (BR) ARA (W) E/REARE 10,000,000%7C - 100% ¥R

Xiamen Shunzhou Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. # (Note)

BN EREER AR () hE/ B KR AR 800,000,0007T - 100% M=ERE

Xiamen Yuzhou Seaview Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)

EFgMEsiEEERARe (Fiz) el HEIARE AR®1,500,000,0007T - 100% WERE

BNtERGERAF
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M mRMEE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ AMBAEE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3
Shanghai Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)
HeENEERERRARC (M) B/ REAR AR#100,000,0007C = 100% xFE%
Shanghai Nankai Realty Development Ltd. @ (Note) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB90,000,000 = 100%  Property development
HEmEXRRERARG (M) HE /AR AE#90,000,0007 - 100% WERE
Shanghai Kangyi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB48,714,300 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)
HeptaEnEREARARe (M) /R EARE AR48,714,3007 - 100% ¥R
Yuzhou Properties (Beijing) Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100%  Property development
BiMiE (L) ARAF (M) HE/REAR AFE#100,000,0007C - 100% MBI
Yuzhou Properties (Quanzhou) Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Property development
BiMtE (RMN) BRARE (Fiz) B/ EIRRE AR#150,000,0007C - 100% WER%
Xin Yi Fang Tian (Quanzhou) Construction Materials ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Trading of building
Co., Ltd. # (Note) materials
HHRA (ZN) BEMEERAR (Fiz) e N AR #10,000,0007C = 100% EEREMH
Tianjin Yuzhou Jinhai Real Estate Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
REEMEEEREERAR (i) B/ B KR AR #200,000,0007T = 100%  #EHRE
Xiamen Xiang'anwan Baseball and Softball PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 76.25%  Property development
Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. @ (Note)
EFfRgRERELREAGRART (Hi:) el B AR AR #10,000,0007C = 76.25%  WIERE
SE-REER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ERBRATE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3
Xiamen Gangyi Communication Co., Ltd. @ (Note)  PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFEEEAERARG (fizT) VLN AR #5,000,0007T = 100% I
Xiamen Junyu Trade Co., Ltd.@ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Trading of construction
materials
EMEFESERATE (i) HE /B AR AR#50,000,0007C - 100% EFERENK
Xiamen Xin Cheng Li Da Trading Co., Ltd. @ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100%  Trading of construction
materials

EfERIEZSERARG (fizT) VLN AR #20,000,0007T = 100% EBEREMK
Longyan Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 = 100%  Property development

@ (Note)
EEMEREREERAFE (M) i hEARE AR#500,000,0007C = 100% MERZ
Anhui Shengtian Property Co., Ltd.@ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Property development
ZURREZERLAC (i) BB KR AR H150,000,0007 - 100% %R
Anhui Shenghe Property Co. Ltd.@ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Property development
ZHRNEFARLAO (i) i HEARE AR #10,000,0007C - 100% WERE
Huainan Yuzhou Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRG/Mainland China RMB16,000,000 = 100%  Property development

@ (Note)
ERENEHEREERARG (M) /B RRE AR #16,000,0007C = 100%  #ERE
Yuzhou Properties (Shanghai) Company Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 = 100%  Property development

@ (Note)
BNEZ (LF) BRARE (M) VPN AR 600,000,007 = 100% ¥ERE

BMNtEERGERAR
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of Equity interest
registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ERBRATE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3
Fujian Yu Gang Construction Materials Company ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB18,290,700 = 100%  Trading of
Limited # (Note) building materials
REEBERAMBBRAG () VLN AR #18,290,7007T - 100% EERENH
Xiamen Rungang Property Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB18,348,300 = 100%  Property investment
@ (Note)
EFEEREAEEER A (i) M/ B AR AE#18,348 3007 = 100% MEEE
Xiamen Gangzhou Co., Ltd.* (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB300,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFTENERAR (M) BV PN AR 300,000,000 - 100%  MERE
Xiamen Yuzhou City Co., Ltd.” (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,680,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFBMSARAR (M) BB KR AR 1,680,000,0007 = 100%  HERE
Xiamen Honggang Cultural and Creative Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)
EPAEXLAIBERAT@ (MiaT) BB AR ARH1,000,0007T - 100% HER%E
Xiamen Yihai Consulting Co., Ltd.@ (Note) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100%  Property development
EFE#AERARE (fizT) B/ B ARE AR #1,000,0007T = 100% M=ERE
Hefei Shunzhou Realty Co., Ltd.(‘Hefei Shunzhou®) PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000,000 = 49%"  Property development
* (Note)
BIEFNEZERAR ([AREN] ) * (M) +E/ REAE AR #1,200,000,0007 - 49%N  MERE
Fujian Big World Huaxia Real Estate Development  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,110,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd.@ (Note)
RREAREERWEFRATE (i) VPN AR¥1,110,000,0007T = 100% MERE

—m_
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

1. RAREBEN (@)

MEAIEN (#)

Nominal value of

Equity interest

registration issued and paid-up/ attributable to
Company name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ML R ERTRAR
ARER REEERHE BA/ AMBAEE ARARELER TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B3

Yuzhou Properties (Hefei) Eastern Town Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,800,000,000 = 100%  Property development
*(Note)

BNEE (BE) RMARAR (Fiz) M/ B AR AR 1,800,000,0007T = 100% WIERE

Nanjing Bozhou Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,880,000,000 = 100%  Property development
@ (Note)

HRENEHEREERATE (i) VLN AR #1,880,000,0007T = 100%  #EHE

Shanghai Shunhong Real Estate Development Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Ltd. @ (Note)

HangEEREERATe (M) B/ B AR AE#150,000,0007C = 100% M=ERE

Nanjing Xiangzhou Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB130,000,000 = 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)

BARANEEREERATE (i) /B RRE AR 130,000,0007T - 100% #ERE

Nanjing Shunhong Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 = 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd. @ (Note)

BRRERHEREERLT () BV PN ARH150,000,0007 - 51% MERE

Nanjing Haoyi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.  PRG/Mainland China RMB355,000,000 = 100%  Property development
# (Note)

ARERFEEREARAT () RE /AR AR#355,000,0007C — 100%  #%FE

Xiamen Xiangzhou Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 51%  Property development
@ (Note)

EFANEEREERAT (M) B/ B AR AR #50,000,0007T = 51% xR

Great Bonus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Property development

el YN BE BB = 100%  #ERE

BMNtEERGERAR
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

All the principal subsidiaries disclosed above are not audited
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

@ Registered as domestic limited liability companies under the
PRC law.

Registered as Sino-foreign equity entities under the PRC

law.

A The Group considers that it controls Hefei Shunzhou even
though it owns less than 50% of the equity interests in
Hefei Shunzhou. Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of Hefei Shunzhou, the board of directors
is the highest authoritative body of management and the
Group is entitled to appoint a majority of directors in the
board of directors of Hefei Shunzhou. Except for certain
protective clauses which require the unanimous consent
of all directors, all major decisions including operating and
financing activities of Hefei Shunzhou are being determined
by a simple majority vote in the board meetings. The Group
is able to control and direct the operating and financing
activities of Hefei Shunzhou.

Note: The English names of these companies represent the best
effort made by management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

170

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

BN ERDBRAR
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)

BRI REERE105%  BEMBMEED
F12R BB EAE8H (201F) Z2E7]

Amendments to HKFRS 11
BB BREENE R IERT

HKFRS 14
BEMBREEAE145%

Amendments to HKAS 1
BAQHERE1R 28]

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
BAGTENSE165 KB B ERIBI8R 2 1EF]
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
BAEGTENSE16 RBEA R ERBAR 2B
Amendments to HKAS 27(2011)
BRGERFETS (2011F) ZI87]

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
20125 220145 B M v FRACE

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments
to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain amendments included in
the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the amendments

are described below:

172 BMNtEERGERAR
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2.2 SEBERRRBSIRAVES)

REBENAFEY B RERT BIRERA T HIFET
KR BRI HRELEA -

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
REER : BRGEAERZOIMER

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
WL LR n B %

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EEETRE

Disclosure Initiative

K&t

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
BEITE REH TEZ %

Agriculture.: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
BUEB#HE %

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
LB B BREER 2 (B3]

BRTBBVBRMEERE105% - BBEMBRE
BRIE125E RBBT B @ ELERAEF285% (2011
F) 2fE5] - BEMBMELRE 115 2185]
EBMERELRFE145 - BH ST ERIFE 1655
REBGFEAE4R2(EE] - BEGTERE
275 (20114F) Z{&37] » LAK201222014F A
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus

improvements in respect of the presentation and

disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

U)

(i)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may
be disaggregated,;

that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements;
and

that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements

that apply when additional subtotals are presented in

the statement of financial position and the statement of

profit or loss. The amendments have had no significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

174

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate
property, plant and equipment and may only be used
in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible
assets. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a
plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it
is a continuation of the original plan. Accordingly, there
is no change in the application of the requirements in
HKFRS 5. The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the date of
classification of the non-current assets or disposal
group held for sale. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact
on the Group as the Group did not have any change
in the plan of sale or disposal method in respect of the
disposal group held for sale during the year.

BNtERGERAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 ERMEEREBMEBEUHRREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ]l
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IRER E RN % E I IS R E A NI E AR 1
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in RERMZFTE] RS BB MR EAER -

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions?

BAEYBIRELERFE25R 2B KRG T2 X 5.2 78 RE1E?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts®

BB R EERIFE 4R 2NER] R BB IR 2E R F A5 (R & 4085 — G IEFA &) BT 7%
HREEREOT & d T A2

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

BB HREERFEIR LRI A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

and HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*
AU BHREERFE10% KBS SFTER| KEEBRIGE NI A &R A2
F28%% (20114F) Z{&7T HIE B &) T &4

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

BAMBHREERE155% EF & a?

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

BB REERIFEAS 2 IER] BB BB IR ERE 1652
KPP EHIMW a2

HKFRS 16 Leases®

AU BHREERE165% HES

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

BELETERFE TR BT FEEE

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’

BEGETERIFEA1257 2185] Vi N = Tt A =N =Y

—m_
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 BEMBEREVNCEEVHBRSE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al (&)

(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g 201741 A1 Rk 2 & fth 2 FE BRI AR
2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 7201841 A1 H sk 2 1& e 2 G/ AR A3
2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 8 201951 A1 Rk & fts 2 FE AR
2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 I E A AR A H - (BRI R RIERAN

for early adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to T8 AR i 3 FA A AN G2 B /) B VS B 75 3R & ZE RI 0 3 —
be applicable to the Group is as follows: SERAT ¢
176 BN ERDBRAR
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

ERMEBEREMEEUHREE
8l (&)

EB G AEN2016FE8 ABME BT BRE

HEBIF2NE  HE =EXE&HE : FEEEER
AERSEERGNTNRSNTE et

%%ﬁu(%@ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%kﬁﬁ

miﬁ?ﬂ%?@ﬁﬁ) MR RRRBH DR+ B
TJJH,*KZ R R G 2 EBEZ X SR D H
%%%E&%%ﬁn“%:iﬁﬁ’] FTERIE ° ZHER]

71%/@ ETEERGEEROZINNNREEREB
BHNEEFAERRRSEE R
% ZEER]SIA—HERAR Eﬁé%?h#m
ERAT - RERMDFHELEENE (UNEARTE
BRBERB MBS ?é%)%hﬁﬁ KX ]
NEESEARREERMERRZS o N Z
ZEEIRE - WRSEERMDIRRZHEEKRK
RIFHERIER] ME REREERNDNHRZS « Al
ZIAR HBEEF] HHRRARY AR EER S -
$E@ﬁ%ﬁmm¢wﬂa%%mﬁfﬂ TEHA

ZEEITEHAEBNYERREETMEXR
TE -

— =
Annual Report 2016 ~ NEER

177



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

178

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for application now.

BMNtEERGERAR
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on
1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

180

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e.,
the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure
to be provided in the financial statements. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application
for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions
on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2017.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of a joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint vsntures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associates or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
and joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates or
joint ventures.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity transferred by the
Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair
value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
investment properties, properties under development,
properties held for sale, land held for property development
for sale, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 E2ESEBEREIE (|)
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties BAETS

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHERT BRAATBEERANEBENEE
7ot

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZAHAREANERGERIRAZAL

person’s family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group; 0] sk R EE S AL E
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEITEERNTES K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of @iy ABEAREXHEHEARNETEEEAER
the Group or of a parent of the Group; KK E
or %,
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b) FZAHATNINEREEERNERS

conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEAEEALSBERSEENKER
same group; G

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —FREBREXER (H5—FKE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow BHNEATR) - BARIKERKBA
subsidiary of the other entity); 7)) WEEARNEE DR

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy ZEBEKASEABERFEF=TH&EE
same third party; NI

(v) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —REBAF-FERNEERAAM
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; FREBABZF-FEENHER

=]

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBARNSENEASEMABELR
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an K B @A R RN e EFIETE
entity related to the Group;

(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZEEXZ(a)FTiEE AR KL RE
person identified in (a); il
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (continued)

(vl a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

190

Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to

its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Hotel properties

Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment
Motor vehicles

Yacht

Over the shorter of lease terms
and 20 years

Over the shorter of lease terms
and 5 years

Over the shorter of lease terms
and 20 years

2 to 5 years

2 to 5 years

20 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated

on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is

depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents a hotel property under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Property under construction or development for future use as
an investment property is classified as investment property
under construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction
will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or construction is completed.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the period of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development
of a self-constructed investment property, any difference
between the fair value of the property at the completion
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use and its then carrying
amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Operating leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Land held for development for sale

The land held for future development represents parcels of
land owned by the Group for the purpose of development of
properties for sale. The land is initially stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is not depreciated. It is transferred
to properties under development upon commencement of
the related construction work in the property development
project.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost of properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of total land and building costs attributable to
the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

(@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as
other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as other expenses in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set of for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 E2ESEBEREIE (|)
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets RERHMWETREE (&)

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued) BIETTE (18)
(@  (Continued) @ (&)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.

RN BERRES 7R AR D A T AR
SRAENDRBRZ BEMIEE (Y
W BB REERIEOR M IEER) -

HESHASHITETANKEERELE
REFRNMAELEZIMRE  MES
MY SERFIEEBEREHIBEER AR EA
Bzt AEFRSITAETARERNITET
AARRYEAARELE - WERASITET
BERAREFEMAAEEINERRA

R o HAKIRRBBABRE A ESTT
FENREREXKEREEBR AR
ARABRBRNER S BREEMBRE - 7
SEMS -

B R ERIA

ERFEEREREAAEE LA BEEN
F o BEERTSERENIITESRE
E - RYIFHER  ZFEEHERAER
M FOR IR AR DR E R BT & -
SHEEEAAER - S E RERRE T ER
B BEERBRERMNEA DS
MBERIAA - BRMEHBIERARS
REOVEAMBA RS AR © BEEED
BIREBRaRER  REXME  KRE
RARER - RELEREIAM T - REAMH
STHERR

Annual Report 2016

ZE-RFFR 195



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

196

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss s,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

2.4 TESFBEREZE (8)

EREERE
AREERE Bk R R R DB

HREERELE—AXZREMHUZANZAS
BMEENGFTARAKBE S REMEXNTE ISR
Al SEd b - RIFFERUE - BUEBRA 8 —4%
F—EHEBALEGRERMERE  ZBLOFREE
BEMNEIAE - HEBAIERESETHMR
BEM - URAABERGINBIRBRR G AR
BenghRasrE2amd - flinRHRE e &
X 3R B A AR R RO S EAROR

BBERATIRNERMEE
PIREERASIRNEMEENS - AREEL
SRERNELERELBEANSREELZAS
HEGRERNTEBEANTREE  FEREFE
BAE © AR BEREREREELH AN RE
E (BRmAEENEST) YEXBIRBLFE
BE - RIZBEESRA—HAERUEERR
FUENSREER  YHRAFGZASREER
BRFERE - RERFHERENEE - LRER
Be TUBRRREEERAR M TERALE
BEREZA -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of the consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, senior notes, and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

(@  Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
(b)  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive, and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

* when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

204

@)

from the sale of completed properties, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the buyers, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the completed properties, that is
when the construction of the relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered
to the buyers pursuant to the sale agreements, and
the collectability of related receivables is reasonably
assured;

from the rendering of property management services,
when the services have been rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

hotel revenue from room rentals, food and beverage
and other ancillary services, when the services have
been rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

206

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. The
Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group's operations are mainly
in the PRC, the use of RMB as the presentation currency is
more appropriate for the presentation of the Group’s results
and financial position.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising from settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the Company and
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and

owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgement (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and

owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management in determining whether
a property is designated as an investment property or a
property held for sale. The Group considers its intention of
holding the properties at the early development stage of the
related properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted for as
properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after its completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets
if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the properties,
the properties developed for sale are transferred to properties
held for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties
developed to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
are transferred to investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that
investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Classification between business combination and asset
acquisition

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into an equity transfer agreement with independent
third parties for the acquisition of the entire equity interest in a
company. As at the date of acquisition, the company merely
held certain land parcels without development. Therefore,
management considers that the acquisition was an asset
acquisition. Further details of the acquisition are given in note
35(a) to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016
was RMB100,401,000 (2015: RMB264,666,000). Further
details are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Estimation of net realisable value of properties under

development and properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
cost of each unit in each phase of development is determined
using the weighted average method. The estimated net
realisable value is the estimated selling price less selling
expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under

development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such
phase. Costs that are common to each phase are allocated
to each phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase
as a percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire
project. The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor
area in square meter sold during the year multiplied by the
average cost per square meter of that particular phase of the
project.
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214

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to CIT in the PRC. As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts originally
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
The carrying amount of corporate income tax payables
at 31 December 2016 was RMB1,576,914,000 (2015:
RMB1,102,815,000).

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for
LAT is based on management’s best estimates according to
its understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant
PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are
subject to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects. The Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the
tax authorities for certain property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and any differences will have impact on the
land appreciation tax expense and the related provision in the
period in which the differences realise. The carrying amount
of provision for land appreciation tax at 31 December 2016
was RMB1,448,040,000 (2015: RMB1,162,886,000).

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for provision of land
appreciation tax and fair value adjustments from acquisition
of subsidiaries to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets at 31 December 2016 was RMB371,456,000 (2015:
RMB412,674,000).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction are
revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market value,
existing use basis by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar properties is
considered and assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the reporting date are used. Further
details are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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216

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
five reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the property development segment engages in the
development and sale of properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in properties
for their rental income potential and/or for capital
appreciation;

(c) the property management segment engages in the
provision of property management services;

(d)  the hotel operation segment engages in the operation
of hotels; and

(e) the others segment comprises corporate income and
expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
except that interest income and finance costs are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid
corporate income tax, prepaid land appreciation tax,
derivative financial instruments, restricted cash, and cash and
cash equivalents as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, senior notes, corporate income tax payables,
provision for land appreciation tax and deferred tax liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

BN ERDBRAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

4. WEIHEN (#)

DEEBHERER 2 ERAE =T IHENHER
RABRRITHERS

HBZE2016F12831HILLEE

Property Property Property Hotel
development  investment management operation Others Total
NERR NERE NEEE EELE Hitr o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR®Tn AR%ETn AR%T:n
Segment revenue: AEMA -
Sales to external FISNERR P
customers HER 13,345,450 124,151 181,825 20,402 - 13,671,828
Other income and gains LN 6 24,368 167,114 287 - 25,066 216,835
Total 5 13,369,818 291,265 182,112 20,402 25,066 13,888,663
Segment results DR 4,051,934 214,202 1,648 (399) 288,167 4,555,552
Reconciliation: ik -
Interest income FIEBMA 84,156
Finance costs BEKA (442,948)
Profit before tax BREAITE 4,196,760
Income tax i (2,108,274)
Profit for the year FEFIE 2,088,486
Segment assets PEEE 40,299,657 8,765,855 52,089 378,813 5,152,344 54,648,758
Reconciliation: ik -
Elimination of s D SRR
intersegment receivables (4,208,277
Corporate and other PERAMANEEE
unallocated assets 18,420,031
Total assets EEBE 68,860,512

—z
Annual Report 2016 ~ AR 217



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

4.

218

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued)

4. WESHER (&)

HZE2016F12H31HILEE (&)

Property Property Property Hotel
development investment management operation Others Total
VELES NERE NEER BELE Hl At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR AR®TRT ARETR AR®T:R
Segment liabilities AHARE 25,220,582 1,139,894 111,998 45,757 5,183,983 31,702,214
Reconciliation: HR
Elimination of intersegment WsHH BEENR
payables (4,208,277)
Corporate and other rEREMRIEAE
unallocated liabilities 29,693,839
Total liabilties BfERE 57,187,776
Other segment information: Hith D EPEH -
Depreciation weE 10,333 12,214 3,313 4,469 8,417 38,746
Capital expenditure* BARY 10,100 724,314 824 143,186 7,320 885,744
Fair value gain on RENEAAERSFE
investment properties, net - 97,392 - - - 97,392
Goodwill impairment HERE - - - - 164,265 164,265
Share of profits and losses [ElEaEARERE
of joint ventures 91,790 = = = = 91,790
Share of losses of associates (LB &N R E 18 8,480 - - - - 8,480
Investments in joint ventures REBDRIRE 7,268,781 - - - - 7,268,781
Investments in associates REZENEIRE 123,580 - - - - 123,580
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant @ BABS BIEREYVE  BMENREREALIEE

and equipment and investment properties.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EEDEN (@)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F12A31HILFE
Property Property Property Hotel
development investment  management operation Others Total
MERE NERE NEER i Eft 5]

RMBO0O ~ RMBO00 ~ RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMB'O0O
ARETT  AREBTL ARMTT AREBTL ARETR ARETR

Segment revenue: AHYA -

Sales to external customers RSN P

HER 10,157,504 79,651 122,134 16,212 - 10,375,501

Other income and gains Bt ARz 140,419 458 5,925 3,467 - 150,269
Total k] 10,297,923 80,109 128,059 19,679 - 10,525,770
Segment resuts AHHLE 3221210 224529 (3692) [@8) (34205 3407414
Reconciliation: iR -
Interest income BB 85,110
Finance costs BEKA (349,040)
Profit before tax BREAIAE 3,143,484
Income tax FiEH (1,475,294)
Proft for the year EERE 1,668,190
Segment assets PHEE 34,452,496 6,857,819 120,040 287,946 2,680,781 44,399,082
Reconciliation: ik -
Elimination of intersegment AR

receivables (4,169,365)
Corporate and other rERAMANEEE

unallocated assets 12,616,141
Total assets BEDE 52,845,858
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4.

220

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015 (Continued)

4. TEEDLEN (@)

HE2015F12A31B ILFE (B)

Property Property Property Hotel
development investment  management operation Others Total
NERE MERE nEER BEEE Eth Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Segment liabilties pak=L 17,849,711 458,159 78,534 28203 5127566 23,542,193
Reconcilition: 5
Elimination of intersegment HisE 5 SRR
payables (4,169,369)
Corporate and other PEREMANEARE
unallocated liabilities 23,231,675
Total liabilties BEEH 42,604,503
Other segment information: HirniEs
Depreciation g 12,797 14,324 3,248 5 12,281 42,655
Capital expenditure’ BRRL 14004 237817 848 91,901 99 345539
Fair value gain on RENE DA BRSEFE
investment properties, net = 202,942 = = = 202,942
Share of profits and losses NG b b
of joint ventures 41,965 = = = = 41,965
Investments in joint ventures WEERTIRE 88,736 - - - - 88,736
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BEARBEREWE  BERRBEARIKRE
and equipment and investment properties. L ES
Geographical information weER

Geographical information is not presented since over 90% of
the Group’s revenue from external customers is generated
in Mainland China and over 90% of the segment assets of
the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the presentation of geographical
information would provide no additional useful information to
the users of these financial statements.

Information about a major customer

During the current and prior years, no revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to

10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
EMERDERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the gross proceeds from the sale of
properties, gross rental income from investment properties,
property management fee income and gross revenue from

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

hotel operation, all net of business tax, value-added tax and

surcharges, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

WA - ELAUR AR 2

WAEF A EHEMSRIARE REMER

HEWA - MEEEBRANRBEELEBEA
(OMERE R  BER KM NTER) -

REBERMA ~ H WA K Wz i 2 3 551 18

is as follows: ™
2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥Tr ARETT
Revenue WA
Sale of properties eSS 13,345,450 10,157,504
Rental income from investment properties 2R &R EWENTH S WA 124,151 79,651
Property management fee income MEEIBEIA 181,825 122,134
Hotel operation income B E A 20,402 16,212
13,671,828 10,375,501
Other income and gains HAUA R ES
Bank interest income RITAEHA 84,156 85,110
Gain on disposal of investment properties &R E RIS 171,590 —
Rental income from properties held for sale 2R B {EHEMERNTHE WA 868 6,027
Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary, % {E W& —FEIHE A 72 WS
net of loss on remeasurement of a HBREFHTE
pre-existing interest in a joint venture R—Ee&E R FE AR
of nil (2015: RMB105,210,000) 2 ZEE (20154 -
AR¥£105,210,0007T) 35(b) = 128,356
Others At 44,377 15,886
300,991 235,379

Annual Report 2016

ZE-RFFR 221



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

6. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

6. MERE
AR HATIT -
2016 2015

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR¥TR ARETT

Interest on bank loans, other loans
and senior notes
Less: Interest capitalised

RITER - R ER K

BEEENFE 1,585,980 1,299,240
B BAREFE (1,340,250) (1,146,971)

Loss on early redemption of senior notes
Loss on early redemption of
China Life Bonds

245,730 152,269

RAIELEERE 2 EE 28(a) 101,903 196,771
RATER P B ASEZEE

27(b)() 95,315 -

442,948 349,040

222 BMBEROARAT
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. ERRAIAIE

M mRMEE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

REERBATAEINNEA TS BESH

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izE AR¥Tr ARETTT
Cost of properties sold BEEMERAK 8,503,448 6,535,982
Cost of services provided FriR AR 7% 2 B AR 209,468 130,196
Depreciation HrE 13 38,746 42,655
Impairment of goodwill* EESEAEN 15 164,265 —
Minimum lease payments under KEMEE THSEHRERNRK
operating leases 21,064 16,797
Auditor’s remuneration T 3,081 2,700
Employee benefit expense EERHXZE (BEEER
(including directors’and chief TEABEF (f3E8) )
executive officer’s remuneration (note 8))
Wages and salaries ITENEHS 158,021 114,384
Equity-settled share option expense ARG i AL B R IR S 2,352 3,959
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R RIEFIET 25k 21,608 16,009
181,981 134,352
Direct operating expenses (including HREEESKREMEEENEERLE
repairs and maintenance) arising on S (BEFEREE)
rental-earning investment properties 18,377 21,892

* The impairment of goodwill is included in “Other expenses”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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224

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRITHREFEH

AREEEZRITBARFIRE EHRR - FE
NaElEBIE383(1)@) * (b) ~ () RMERAR (3R
BEZMNmER) ROIF2EPHELT

2016 2015
RMB’000  RMB’000
AR®TR  ARETET

Fees e 533 486
Other emoluments: HEie

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYRET 5,588 5,588

Equity-settled share option expense LARES HIREAR R 2 1,246 3,327

Pension scheme contributions BRIRSET IR 70 74

6,904 8,989

7,437 9,475

During the current year and in prior years, certain directors
and the chief executive officer were granted options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial
statements for the current and prior years are included in the
above directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration
disclosures.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

The remuneration of each of the directors and the chief

executive officer is set out below:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

8. EBRITBIRHFH (&)

BENBRRITHANFHEHIIOT

Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances settled benefit
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense contributions remuneration
DREREE
E2 A= 1) HiERE RIKER
ik ENER AX HE 84 Mewm
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR
2016 2016%F
Executive directors: HWITEE
Mr. Lam Lung On* BLSE - 1,544 189 15 1,748
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan DERELL - 1,544 189 15 1,748
Mr. Lin Longzhi MR EE - 1,500 560 18 2,078
Mr. Lin Conghui MBS S - 1,000 308 22 1,330
- 5,588 1,246 70 6,904
Independent non-executive directors: B JEHITES
Mr. Gu Jiande? ERELEA 177 - - - 177
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu WEIE R A& 177 - - - 177
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EEREE 177 - - - 177
Dr. Zhai Pu * 2EEL 2 - - - 2
533 = = = 533
533 5,588 1,246 70 7,437
B A EER 225
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EFBRITHIRHAFTH (&)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

Salaries, Equity- Retirement

alowances Settled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense  contributions  remuneration

ERER

e RRR HRBARIE RIKREA

ik EEn 553 T2l [kt

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARETR

2015 20154
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Lam Lung On* WRRR L E — 1,544 215 15 1,774
Ms. Kwok Ying Lan EEY - 1,544 215 19 1,778
Mr. Lin Longzhi MR A - 1,500 1,326 18 2,844
Mr. Lin Conghui IR 4 - 1,000 1,571 22 2,593
- 5,588 3,327 74 8,989
Independent non-executive directors: B FFHITES :
Mr. Gu Jiande ERESE 162 = = = 162
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MWEIKFEE 162 - - — 162
Mr. Wee Henny Soon Chiang EBEREE 162 - - - 162
486 — - — 486
486 5,588 3,327 74 9,475
Mr. Lam Lung On is also the chief executive officer of the . MEBELR S TR AAR AT 2 I THABE,
Company.
" Mr. Gu Jiande resigned as an independent non-executive & ERELEED BRI TE Y IERTEE - &
director of the Company with effect from 28 December 201612 A28 H B ARK ©
2016.
# Dr. Zhai Pu was appointed as an independent non- # Bt R T AANARIBIYIENTEE - |
executive director of the Company with effect from 28 2016412 B28 HFBA K -
December 2016.
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief RER - BT S TRERNESR R B RET
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration RIE B 25k o
during the year.
226 BMBEROARAT
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2015: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2015: one) non-director, highest paid
employee for the year are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

hBREFES

REA - AEREHEERENA (20165 ¢
mE) B RFEENFMFBEN LXE
8o N —% (20165 : —%) FEFEHZSHE
BOFEHFIFSIT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 1,183 946
Equity-settled share option expense DERSEENERERS 46 =
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIE R 18 10

1,247 956

The remuneration of the non-director, highest paid employee
for the year fell within the band of HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000 (2015: HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000).

During the year, share options were granted to the non-
director, highest paid employee in respect of his services to
the Group, further details of which are included in note 32 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amounts included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director, highest
paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.

L EERSHFREENFEHFIN LB
1,000,001 E B %1,500,0007T (20154 : #E
1,000,001 7 &7 #1,500,0007T) 2 °

RERN - ZAFEEREFHEERNEALKER
o R MR BAE - BRE— SRR
BHRAME32 - ZFBERECREBHERER
AR EARENREL BBEE - st ALRF
BRI RERN BT AN LFEERDHE
BEVFBIE -
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10.

228

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
for the year as the Group has available tax losses brought
forward from prior years to offset the assessable profits
generated during the year. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax had been made for the prior year as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the prior year. The income tax for the subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China is calculated at the applicable
tax rates on the taxable profits for the year.

An analysis of the income tax charges for the year is as

10. BT&

HRARE S EEFEAEHARRNBIAEH
RNEEELENBRHEANE - WA BRAFERE
BRSRIELERE - AR AREEFIEERE
EEEAERRAE - HEFBARBTBNEH
TEL R - RPBERELENMNEB R BNMEH
RIBF AN BRI B @R ERTHE

AREFHMB/BRHODHAT

follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Current; BIHA
PRC corporate income tax B EEMISH 1,082,744 967,011
PRC land appreciation tax (note 29) R HIEERE (F13E29)
- Charge for the year —AFEZH 985,071 591,333
- Overprovision in prior years* —BEFERERE - (120,358)
2,067,815 1,437,986
Deferred (note 30): IEE (Ff5ES0)
Current year REE 40,459 7,218
Reversal of deferred tax assets on LAT ROt BaE FE B RE
overprovided in prior years THPIRERR AR IR E = 30,090
40,459 37,308
Total tax charge for the year ARFEERHIAY HAREE 2,108,274 1,475,294
J Based on the PRC local tax bureau’s assessments in * ERFBEZEHHREEMER TR BEFEL

respect of the LAT liabilities of certain property development
projects that had been completed and sold in previous
years, the Group reversed and recognised an overprovision
for LAT on the relevant property development projects of
RMB120,358,000 in profit or loss in the prior year.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

ENETYHEERER N T IRER A G
il - REEREFNBERE R ERLEEY)
FERBENIWEENNBREBARE
120,358,0007T °



10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FTER (@)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before FRN - FAREEFEEKMENP BARERE
tax using the statutory rate for Mainland China in which the EMERTEEARGRAAENIIER Y BiEE
majority of the Group’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax BHEFENRER S AEER  UREANRE
expense at the effective tax rate, and a recondiliation of the (BMEERE) BERHENEERNT ¢
applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax
rate for the year, are as follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARETT %
Profit before tax BRAERIME 4,196,760 3,143,484
Tax charge at the statutory income tax rate BEEMEHEFE
HOBRIRR S 1,049,190 25.0 785,871 25.0
Tax losses utilised from previous periods SEREA T R IEEE - - (10,228) (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAIHIF X 276,025 6.5 277,637 8.8
Tax losses not recognised AERBIEEE 44,255 1.1 68,782 22
Reversal of overprovision for LAT B TS E R - - (120,358) (3.8)
Reversal of deferred tax effect on BB+ IR E TR
overprovision for LAT BENELT %y & - - 30,090 0.9
LAT provided BRHR L HISER 985,071 235 591,333 18.8
Tax effect on LAT THIEETNH BT E (246,267) (5.9) (147,833) @.7)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEBERHEGE
HBIRR 2,108,274 50.2 1,475,204 46.9

The share of tax expense attributable to associates and joint
ventures amounting to nil (2015: Nil) and RMB96,203,000
(2015: share of tax credit of RMB30,717,000), respectively, is
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures” and

“Share of losses of associates” in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.

JEEBENRSLERARHERYSIAT
(20154 : ) & AR¥96,203,0007T (2015
F o EaHIEERS ARKS30,717,0007T)

BHERERA B
[ A A AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

11.

12.

230

DIVIDENDS 11. iER2
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Proposed final - HK22 cents PR AR AR B — FAR E mAR
(2015: HK18 cents) per ordinary share 221
(20154 : #¥&181l) 741,822 575,662

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of RMB1,774,914,000 (2015:
RMB1,656,853,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 3,815,999,999 (2015: 3,677,917,808) in
issue during the year.

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

12.

RERHRAR RS AFARBRRNERERR
BERSHERDAEER -

4%

NTERESEFEABGLZREN

BREABFSENZINRLTEBEZFAA
FERFAFEARY,774,914,0007T (2015
£ AR¥1,656,853,0007T) MERNDEITE
B INKEF5#3,815,999,9990% (20154 :
3,677,917,8080%) &t & o



12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (Continued)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the consolidated profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent of RMB1,774,914,000 (2015:
RMB1,656,853,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the total of (i) the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and (ii) the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares (see below).

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

BATEBRESRHEARGERETN
(&)

BREERNSENRE AR L BIERSEE ARE
4R A A B ARE,774,914,0007T (20154 :
AER#1,656,853,0007T) & - MatE AT
BRMETHEANRARTESRERBFNNF
NEZFITEBRMETFHIHE 2HE - Ri)RER
FiE BEEHE 1 2 LB AR VE T TR AR
R E A ER A EITH T R INE T HE 2 8
(RT3 -

Number of Number of
shares shares
BHEE IRHE B
2016 2015
Shares ah)
Weighted average number of share options FABEBEITE MR NI -
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, ARt EEREREF
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 3,815,999,999 3,677,917,808
Effect of dilution of share options - B AR S R AR 2 I T 2R
weighted average number of ordinary shares ~— #E#E /2 15,699,096 1,028,532
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ F R 21T E BRI 2 IIEFHE -
in issue during the year, used in the ARt E RS & T
diluted earnings per share calculation 3,831,699,095 3,678,946,340
—E-AEEHE 231
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RRMEE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MERRIE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Hotel Leasehold  and office Motor  Construction
buildings ~ property Yacht improvements equipment  vehicles in progress Total
f -
HELH g RER
ke EENE B ONEEE  BAERE RE  ERIE @it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARETn ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
31 December 2016 20165127318
At 1 January 2016; 01651418 :
Cost A 318,811 147,738 100918 5,176 72,670 41,51 208503 975387
Accumulated depreciation 2 (16,396)  (15,866) (3.431) (2457) (33320 (33219 - (104,755
Net carrying amount FER 302,415 131,872 97,487 2,719 39,344 8,292 288,503 870,632
At 1 January 2016, net RO16F1A1R - Mk ZirinE
of accumulated depreciation 302415 131,872 97,487 2,719 39,344 8202 288503 870,632
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEhBAF - - - - 532 - - 532
Addtions B = = = 900 6,759 1,577 143186 162,422
Transfer from properties under development eRakEnz - - - - - - 56,789 56,789
Transfer from properties held for sale ERAREHERRNTE 5,634 - - - - - - 5634
Depreciation provided during the year ERGHRAAE (14,928) (4,465) (5,531) (135) (8,997) (4,690) - (38,740)
Disposal of subsidlaries REEHERRE
upon oss of control (note 36) HEAR (k) - - - - (1,996) - - (1,996)
Exchange realignment EHEE - - 6,468 - - - - 6,468
At 31 December 2016, net of 12016512318  HIREHHE
accumulated depreciation 293,121 127,407 98,424 3,484 35,642 15179 488478 1,061,735
At 31 December 2016: 2016124318 :
Cost R 324445 147738 100,918 6,076 71,965 53148 488478 1,198,768
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (31,324  (20,331) (2,494) (2599 (42329  (37,969) - (137,039
Net carrying amount HEE 293,121 127,407 98,424 3,484 35,642 15179 488478 1,061,735
BN ERDBRAR
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

13. 9% - MERKIRE (&)

(Continued)
Fumniture,
Leasehold fixtures
and and Hotel Leasehold  and office Motor - Construction
bulldings property Yacht improvements  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
i
RELH HE R*ER
kE:  BEnE B 0ERE WAERE B EEIR @
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2015 2015%12A31A
At 1 January 2015; R2015F1A1A :
Cost A 314,028 147,738 100918 3,685 60,000 38,206 196577 861,152
Accumulated depreciation 2T (3,032 (7,815) (2,621) (2,29) (21,317) (29.447) = (66,528)
Net carrying amount S 310,99 139,923 98,297 1,389 38,683 8,759 196577 794,624
At1 January 2015, R01551 18 - MBRiriE
net of accumulated depreciation 310,996 139,923 98,297 1,389 38,683 8,759 196,577 794,624
Acquisiion of subsidiaries (note 35(0)) WEHEAR (F350) - = - - 1,788 872 - 2,660
Addtions AE 4783 = = 1491 10,882 249 91926 111,575
Depreciation provided during the year ERGHRRNTE (13,364) (8,051) (5,238) (161) (12,009 (3832 - (42,655)
Exchange realignment 3 - - 448 - - - - 448
At 31 December 2015, ROO15E120318 + TREFHAE
net of accumulated depreciation 302,415 131,872 7,487 2,719 39,344 8,292 288,503 870,632
At 31 December 2015: 20155128318 :
Cost R 318,811 147,738 100918 5,176 72,670 457 208503 975387
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (16,398 (15,866) (3.431) (457) (33326 (33279 - (104755
Net carrying amount FHFE 302415 131,872 97487 2719 30,344 8292 288503 870632
—E-REFR 233
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

14.

234

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REYE

Under

Completed construction Total

B2%T = st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 R2015%F1 A1 HREREE 4,958,700 1,001,788 5,960,488

Additions NE 62,046 171,918 233,964

Transfer upon completion AR TR B 43 1,092,778  (1,092,778) —

Transfer from properties held for sale ERAREEERaNYE 60,536 — 60,536

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35(b)) WEEKTB AR (FiaE35() 12,700 — 12,700

Net gains from fair value adjustments N B FRE 202,942 — 202,942
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 MR2015F12 8318 &

and 1 January 2016 20161 A1 BRERMEIE 6,389,702 80,928 6,470,630

Additions INE 273,499 449,823 723,322

Transfer upon completion A VE TR e g 389,553 (389,553) =

Transfer from properties under development 53 B fE i % = 171,566 171,566

Transfer from properties held for sale EEEHEHEREME 601,454 — 601,454

Disposals HE (546,187) — (546,187)

Net gains from fair value adjustments RN EFERBR S 81,095 16,297 97,392

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 2016512 431 HRYEREME 7,189,116 329,061 7,518,177

Notes:

G

(@ At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s investment (a)

properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB968,948,000 (2015: RMB4,447,380,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the bank loans granted to the

Group (note 27(a) (ii).

(o)  The Group’s completed investment properties are leased (b)

to third parties under operating leases, further summary

details of which are included in note 39(a).

BMNtEERGERAR
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited

MR2016F 124318 « NEEE T ERREmA
B4 ARK68,948,0007T (20156 : AR
4,447,380,0007T) BVIREWEDEA TRTT
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©

The Group’s completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were revalued
on 31 December 2016 and 2015 by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers.

For completed investment properties, valuations were either
based on the capitalisation of net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the properties or made
with reference to comparable market transactions and
consider adjustments to reflect differences in transaction

timing, location and tenure.

For investment properties under construction which were
stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period,
valuations were based on the residual approach, and have
taken into account the expended construction costs and the
costs that will be expended to complete the development
to reflect the quality of the completed development on the
basis that the properties will be developed and completed
in accordance with the Group’s latest development plan.

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties
that are measured at fair value, the current use of the
properties is their highest and best use.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the investment
properties were measured at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the fair value
measurement of all of the Group’s investment properties
were using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as
defined in HKFRS 13.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 (quoted prices in active
markets) and Level 2 (significant observable inputs) and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M mRMEE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

14. REYE (@\)

BRE -

()

(%)

AEBHER TIREMENEERENERS
S EELSBRAEMPEBITOET G EEH
ARARN20169F K%2015F12 431 BHEfY ©

MORTREMEMNS @ HEENKRERE
HANHESWAFEENE - WEEFTAER
FERETBEHRRRA - RBEFELLEMISER
5 UEBRHRBARRZ HEH B RBL
HZER °

ARREREERFIZAAEBARNERRE
WEMS  [EERHREE  XEERPER
B B A e PR B B S S OB AR A R BR 2 32 T
REHBNRE  KEEZXFVEBERASHE
YRR FA 35T EIF 3 S ERK ©

EEZRA EAREHENMAREYEM
5 REMENRARZAERREN&KER

& i

R2016F K 2015F12 318 » AEEMAR
BEMENRAENFAIETERNEZH AL
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MF R ML

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©

236

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Descriptions of valuation techniques used and key inputs to

14. REYE (@\)

BEE - ()
© (%)
DAEEHR (&)

LREMEMREEANGERTRE2HAHK

valuation on investment properties: B
Range or weighted average
EE S METY
Valuation technique  Significant unobservable inputs
MBS FAUBENTIERABE 2016 2015
Completed
BT
Retail Income approach Estimated annual rental value/sg.m. (RMB) 1,250-76,800 1,825-73,000
TE W% SR AEHSEE (ARET)
Capitalisation rate 2%-6% 2.5%-6%
BALE
Car parking spaces Market approach Unit price (RMB/unit) 143,000-415,000  90,000-294,000
FES (B0 BE (AR &)
Under construction
Zig =
Retail Residual approach Estimated annual rental value/sg.m. (RMB) 15,000-35,000 12,000-35,000
TE HEE fEetEFARER2BE (ARET)

Capitalisation rate

BAEE

Development profit

FIERIE

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated annual
rental value per square meter in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/(decrease)
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in unit price
would result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value
of the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in development profit in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

BNtERGERAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

15. GOODWILL B

RMB’000
AREBT T
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2015 7201551 18 2 KA R EREFE =
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(b)) g —mM B AR (MI3E35(b)) 264,666

Cost and net carrying amount at 201512 431 H k20161 H1H
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 LA N ERERE 264,666
Impairment during the year FRRE (164,265)
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A831H 100,401

At 31 December 2016: R2016F12A31H

Cost DN 264,666
Accumulated impairment R2EHRE (164,265)
Net carrying amount BREFAE 100,401

Impairment testing of goodwill

The Group’s goodwill acquired through a business
combination was allocated to a cash-generating unit for the
property development segment, which is principally engaged
in the property development in the PRC, for impairment
testing. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
of the property development segment was determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using a cash flow projection
based on a financial budget covering a three-year (2015:
four-year) period approved by senior management.

The development project comprises 2 phases. As at 31
December 2016, both Phases | and Il were completed
and commenced the handover of properties to buyers.
Management estimated that the properties of both phases
shall be completely sold to and handed over to the buyers
by the end of 2019. In view of the expected tenure of the
business, the financial budget only covered a three-year
(2015: four-year) period and no perpetual growth rate was
applied in the calculation of value-in-use. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection of the cash-generating
unit was 11.22% (2015: 19.0%)

BERERR

SETRERNR  AREEBRBEHEE R
BEOREMEREDE (E2RTEEENE
F#E) CREELEN - MERBESITRSESE
BuzraE B NIRRARESRERR (A5
REBEMEZ=F (20165 : W) R
BEAEAEEL) FAENEREEETE -

FMEIEE BEME - M2016F12H31H @+ —Hf
MZHERKZEIVHARABERIE - EEEHET
MEAE K R2019F FRAI T2 EU RN TE
Ko EREBCBBRFH  MUKBBEEERE=
F (20154 : M) iR - AMRFTEFERER
Wl LR K BIE R K « A ERSEEBM 2R
ERETERMMANITEEAF11.22% (20154 :
19.0%) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 531 H

15.

16.

238

GOODWILL (Continued) 15. BE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) BEREAE (8)
Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of FTE EMYERE S B IRNSEABMMR2016F
the above mentioned property development segment’s 12A31A 2 FAEEEERRE - TXHMERE
cash-generating unit for 31 December 2016. The following [BYERIER £ 8 LUETT R E R E R S TR BN &
describes each key assumption on which management had HFERXK :
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:
Discount rate - The discount rate used is before tax and FIRE -FTRINE R AR KRB ERR
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit. K@ o
Business environment - There was no major change in the ¥BRE-REEABMRARESFIENFE 2
existing political, legal and economic conditions in the PRC in MEBUR  FERERCERRI|HIRENEE) -
which the cash-generating unit carried on its business.
Expected tenure of the business - The property development TEHAZES FH — WM IEB TR EE2019
project is estimated to be completed in a three-year (2015: FIE=F (2015%F : [U4F) HAFESERK ©
four-year) period up to the year 2019.
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REEQTNIRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Share of net assets FEIREERE 3,341,734 88,736
Loans to joint ventures BETEERAINER 3,927,047 —
7,268,781 88,736

Notes:

(@  The loans to the joint ventures as at 31 December 2016
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of the directors, these loans are
considered as part of the Group’s net investments in the
joint ventures.

The Group’s other payable balances due to joint ventures
are disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

BMNtEERGERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M EE

31 December 2016 2016 F 12 31 H

16. REENTAMNIRE (&)

BaE : (&)

16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)  Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: ) AEEEEQRMFEBELT :
Percentage of
THREREEDL
Places of registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Company name Registered capital and business interest power sharing  activities
NAER dfEx SREELY gy 443 £ AMERE  EEXE
Xiamen Vanke Maluan Bay Properties  RMB30,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 20% 20% 20%  Property
Limited @ (Note) development
EFMENSREERERARC AR%30,000,0007T HE/EARE 20% 20% 0% MERE
(FizE)
Hefei Ruiyun Reatty Co., Ltd. @ (Note)  RMB19,600,000 PRC/Mainland China 51% 51% 51%  Property
development
AERZEXARATC (M) AR 19,600,007 e/ hE AR 51% 51% 51% WERE
Shanghai Zexiang Real Estate RMB2,3